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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it
is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for a
minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.hk.
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Financial Summary

M=

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZB-RE |ZB-FHF —T-WNF —T—=F —_T—_F
RMB’000 | RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR |[ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR®TRT
RESULTS ES
Revenue ek 676,123 26,066 18,836 16,316 23,987
Other income HA 59,508 7,048 2,051 3,296 2,481
Gain on bargain purchase BREMRE AW 254,040 61,113 — — —
Selling expenses HEMX (599,489) - - - -
Administrative and operating TRREERY
expenses (229,828) | (48,834)  (25269)  (23,650)  (15,586)
Listing expenses WX - - - - (3,633)
Finance costs EATE AR (38,538) (18,640) (6,042) (1,863) —
Equity-settled share-based AR BEER K
payment expenses (UBRAEE) A (68,136) (68,469) (17,001) (2,515) (11,571)
Fair value changes in investment & MELNFEE
properties 19,741 — — — —
Fair value changes in derivative TTHEEMEE
financial assets NEEE) (10,314) (2,326) — — -
Share of (loss)/profit of associate ~ JE{REEE A 7]
(B#8) /&7 (312) 1,054 - - —
Profit/(loss) before income tax FriSFiAnEF (B518) 62,795 (42,988) (27,425) (8,416) (4,322)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfie,/ (%) 27,812 (3,850) (2,758) (2,696) (4,515)
Profit/(loss) for the year REE A
/ (E#8) 90,607 (46,838) (30,183) 11,112) (8,837)
Profit/(loss) for the year N
attributable to: / (E#8) :
Owners of the Company RAFHHEE A 116,084 (47,671) (30,516) (11,172) (9,486)
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS (25,477) 833 333 60 649
90,607 | (46,838  (30,183) (11,112 (8,837)
As at 31 December
R+t=-—B=+-—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZBE-RE |ZB2-FEF —T-NF =% —_T—_F
RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000  RMB’000
AR®TR |[ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BEE 1,824,783 851,325 358,260 291,134 228,405
Total liabilities e (884,890) | (402,168)  (149,692)  (81,428) (31,102
Net assets BEFE 939,893 | 449,157 208,568 209,706 197,303
Non-controlling interests FEE R (368,172) (56,991) (7,416) (7,083) (7,023)
Equity attributable to ARREBA
owners of the Company eGSR 571,721 392,166 201,152 202,623 190,280
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Financial Summary
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present to
all our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the public the annual
report of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

With the market environment full of challenges, the global stock
market is in doldrums and the macro-economy is unclear over the
past year. Investors became conservative towards the capital market.
The Central Government has put forward a series of stimulating
economic measures and has repeatedly eased its financial and
monetary policies which accelerated credit solutions and drove
loan demands. The People’s Republic of China’s economy grew
6.7% year on year in 2016, slightly slower than 6.9% in 2015, but
was in line with the target of around 6.5% to 7% set by the Central
Government. Despite the overall slowdown market, the economy is
gradually stabling. Coupled with the resilient domestic consumption,
the Group’s business is developing steadily and healthily. The Group
is also optimistic about the growth and development of its trading
business.

To fully align with “The Belt and Road Initiative”, and the bilateral
mechanism with the neighbouring countries, the Group take full
advantage of cooperative platforms in the regions to promote the
economic cooperation with the countries along. During the year,
the Group completed the acquisition of equity interest of Nanning
(China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company Limited (“NCCE”).
The Group recorded a substantial increase in net profit after tax as
compared with that of the last corresponding year. Such increase was
mainly due to the gain on bargain purchase arising from acquisition
of NCCE. NCCE is the first commodity exchange to obtain approval
from The State Council and the Government of Guangxi with the
title “China-ASEAN”. This has subsequently provided the Group with
enormous business opportunities. In addition to Indonesia being the
first country to launch its commodity exchange, the Group is fully
prepared to open a new commodity exchange in Vietnam, expecting
to increase Sine-Vietnamese social communication and cooperation
between financial and non-financial enterprises, and act as a bridge
to support cross-border financial services enterprises. Following
Vietnam, the Group will start the preparation work in Malaysia,
Myanmar, Cambodia and Laos. The Group will lay out customised
business plans to accommodate different industries in order to
get through their supply chains. This could expand the Group’s
business scopes to the countries of The Association of Southeast
Asian Nations (“ASEAN”) and broaden its horizon to international
e-transactions markets.
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The Group has also established a long-term strategic cooperative
partnership with the People’s Government of Dongxing City, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region to develop cross-border electronic
transactions and cross-border fund settlement projects. Dongxing
City is the only national class 1 port city in China bordering Vietnam
by both land and sea, and was listed as a National Key Pilot
Development and Open Zone in 2010. By the cooperation, the
domestic cross-border exchange business of NCCE is expected
to further extend. The Group will fully utilise the advantageous
policies of border pilot zone for financial reforms in Guangxi and
together promote the implementation and development of pilot
projects of China-ASEAN regional cross-border transactions for
bulk commodities, financing and cross-border capital settlement
businesses, in order to assist in the infrastructure construction for
cross-border electronic commerce, and promote parallel development
of traditional exchanges and new e-commerce.

Owing to the constant structural change of credit market and the
increasing complexity on risks control, the Group will devote more
resources into the diversified exchange platforms in order to maintain
a stable and steady development of the Group, earning a generous
return to Shareholders.

Looking forward, foreign trade policies are filled with ambiguity in
2017 due to the anticipated interest rates rises by the U.S. Federal
Reserve. With the combined effects of inflation, strong demand for
financing and capital outflows in the Mainland, Renminbi (‘RMB”)
will further depreciate. There is a slim chance for The People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC”) to slash the reserve requirement ratio, and it is
more likely for PBOC to shift away from its relatively easy monetary
policy. In future, the Group will continue to develop more commodity
exchange platforms to support the development of mass commodity
transactions, pioneer innovative product portfolio to cater for the
market needs, so as to further expand its business coverage.

Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s
directors, management team and staff members for their dedication
and hard work, our customers for their confidence and support for
our business, and our business partners, investors, Shareholders and
professional parties for their trust and support.

Pang Man Kin Nixon
Chairman

23 March 2017

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Group is engaged in the business of providing financial guarantee
services and the relevant consultancy services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group obtained control of Beijing
Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited (“dDP”) by holding 60%
of its equity interest upon completion of the capital injection in May
2015 and obtained control of Nanning (China-ASEAN Commodity
Exchange Company Limited (“NCCE”) by holding approximately
52.63% of its equity interest upon completion of the capital injection
in January 2016. The principal activities of JDP are provision of
software development services and online trading platform services,
and the principal activity of NCCE is provision of electronic market
for transaction of commodity including nonferrous metal, ferrous
metal, agricultural products, energy products, chemical materials,
machineries and equipment. The activities of JDP and NCCE have
become new reportable and operating segments of the Group.

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) have been listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange since 6 January 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite slow recovery of the global economy due to a lot of
uncertainties, China’s economic performance has shown signs of
improvement. China’s economy grew by 6.7% in 2016, contributing
up to 33.2% of the global economic growth, and became the major
engine of the world economy. Meanwhile, the pace of China’s foreign
investment has accelerated significantly. According to the Ministry
of Commerce, China has made direct investment of approximately
USD14.5 billion in the countries along the “The Belt and Road
Initiatives”, accounting for 8.5% of its total investment. With the
growing economic influence of The Association of Southeast Asian
Nations (“ASEAN”) and the coordination of national policy, the cross-
border e-commerce develops rapidly.

The Group has actively developed its online trading business.
Through the cooperation with NCCE, the Group will further expand
its business to the ASEAN market and plans to set up more offshore
centers in the ASEAN countries in order to open up new sources of
revenue and profit growth. Major business accomplishments of 2016
are as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 7 January 2016, the Group had completed capital injection into
NCCE. Upon completion of the capital injection, NCCE was held as
to approximately 52.63% by China Assets Group Investment Limited
(“China Assets Group”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Accordingly, the financial results, assets and liabilities of NCCE
are consolidated into the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016. In order to conform to “The Belt and
Road Initiative”, NCCE has started its operation in Jakarta, Indonesia
and plan to commence cross-border trading in 2017, NCCE has
become an international trading platform and its economic benefit
will be maximised. Customers with real names registered under the
Group’s commodity exchanges and trading platforms exceeded one
million.

On 8 March 2016, the Group and Society of Agribusiness &
Agroindustry in Indonesia (“MAI”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) in relation to the on-line physical commodity
exchange business (delivery). Apart from supplying local Indonesia
agricultural products for trading, MAI also had 1.1 million institutional
members and thus represented a great potential business area
therein. Indonesian agricultural product was an important commodity,
MAI's consent and cooperation was a great push for the Group of
the development of the relevant business in other countries of the
ASEAN. Indonesia possesses abundant forestry and fishery products,
with MAI under its wings it will be beneficial to the Group to expand
into fishery, forestry with the MOU in place, NCCE trade has made
a significant step forward in its ASEAN’s commodity exchange
business in Indonesia. As a third-party platform with 1.1 million
trading members, the Group would gain great advantage when it is
given time to develop value-added service for its members in spot
commodity transaction and cooperate with relevant local financial
institutions for providing local and international trade financing.

On 14 April 2016, the Company and IPS International Holdings
Limited (“IPS”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, entered into a joint venture agreement (the “dV Agreement
I”). Pursuant to the JV Agreement |, the Company and IPS shall form
a joint venture company in Hong Kong, of which the Company and
IPS shall hold 51% and 49% equity interest respectively. Through
China Assets Group, the Group holds 51% equity interest in the
Hong Kong joint venture company. The joint venture company will

BEEERWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

be a major platform for the development of the Group’s and NCCE’s
business in Taiwan. The Hong Kong joint venture company will set
up an appropriate operating company in Taiwan. Specific functions
of such Taiwan company include: (i) to solicit business opportunities,
trading parties and other necessary professional services providers; (i)
to provide appropriate training for the Taiwan partners; (i) to develop
and maintain business and political social networks in Taiwan; (iv) to
perform necessary activities in favour of NCCE’s business; and (v)
after gradual commodity trading through three places - the PRC, the
ASEAN countries and Taiwan, the implementation of the commodity
trading securitisation to provide a long-term reliable financing for the
commodity trading. It facilitates the increase of the commaodity trading
volume; on the other hand, it provides an investment vehicle for small
and medium investors in different locations with low entry barrier
and steady income. IPS, which has extensive contacts and business
presence in Taiwan, intends to expand its scope of business to cover
the ASEAN countries. The Company has control of the joint venture
company’s board of directors.

On 25 June 2016, the Company, NCCE and Bull-B Holdings Limited
(“Bull-B Holdings”) entered into a joint venture agreement (the “dV
Agreement II”) in respect of the establishment of a joint venture
company in Hong Kong (the “HK Joint Venture”) and a joint venture
company in PRC (the “PRC Joint Venture”). Pursuant to the JV
Agreement I, the Company and Bull-B Holdings will set up the HK
Joint Venture for investment holding purposes, which hold 60% and
40% respectively. The parties will also set up the PRC Joint Venture
in Nanning for the development and sale of computer systems in
relation to commodities exchange. The registered capital of the
PRC Joint Venture shall be contributed in cash as to 60% by the
HK Joint Venture and as to 40% by NCCE. Such computer systems
can bring together the trading chains of the business-to-business
trading and business-to-customer trading and form a closed loop
of business-to-business-to-customer trading, which can shorten
the trading chain. The computer systems can be used in different
aspects in commodities exchange, including the trading system of
commodities and their derivatives, the platform of fund settlement,
the traceability system to trace the source of the commodities using
Radio-Frequency Identification, the platform of financing, the logistic
management platform which can be used to trace the commodities
via the global positioning system and the platform for business-
to-customer. Bull. B Technology Limited is a subsidiary of Bull-B
Holdings. It provides website design and development services,
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mobile application development services and platform engineering
services. Mr. Chan Yik Hei, the “Star of Tomorrow”, is one of its
founding shareholders. The establishment of the joint ventures
will diversify its business and expand its income sources. It is also
consistent with the long-term strategy of NCCE, which is to promote
parallel development of traditional exchanges and new e-commerce.
The Company has control of the HK Joint Venture’s board of
directors.

On 8 November 2016, the Company and the People’s Government
of Dongxing City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region entered into
a strategic cooperation agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”). Under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the
Company recognised the People’s Government of Dongxing City
as the main partner to develop cross-border electronic transactions
and cross-border fund settlement projects. The principal terms of the
Strategic Cooperation Agreement are set out below, among others:
(1) To establish an electronic trading platform for bulk commodities
targeting to the ASEAN countries using the border trade ports
of the People’s Government of Dongxing City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region as delivery bases; (2) To establish a cross-
border transaction supply chain financing platform especially catering
for the enterprises in Dongxing City; (3) To establish a cross-border
fund settlement center located in Dongxing City as a fundraising site;
(4) To establish a foreign exchange risk hedging platform for Renminbi
- denominated crossborder trade in the core area of Dongxing
City; and (5) To assist in expediting the infrastructure construction
for cross-border electronic commerce in Dongxing City. By the
cooperation, the domestic cross-border exchange business of NCCE
is further extended, and having the strategic position, it is engaged in
the relevant financing cross-border RMB settlement and non-major
currency transactions (exchange) business by means of trading,
which further enhances the advantages of trading of the exchange
platform.
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BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB676.12 million (2015: approximately RMB26.07
million), representing an increase by approximately 25 times as
compared to 2015. Approximately RMB658.13 million was derived
from provision of online trading platform services, approximately
RMB14.45 million was derived from provision of financial guarantee
and consultancy services and approximately RMB3.55 million was
derived from provision of software development services.

Online Trading Platform Services

In January 2016, the Group obtained control of NCCE by holding
52.63% of its equity interest. The principal activity of NCCE is
provision of electronic market for transaction of commodity including
non-ferrous metal, ferrous metal, agricultural products, energy
products, chemical materials, machineries and equipment.

Revenue from online trading platform services of the Group
represented income from provision of electronic market for transaction
of commodity including non-ferrous metal, ferrous metal, agricultural
products, energy products, chemical materials, machineries and
equipment from NCCE and online trading platform services from JDP.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from online trading
platform services of the Group was approximately RMB658.13 million
(2015: Nil), representing approximately 97.34% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Financial Guarantee

Revenue from financial guarantee of the Group represented revenue
from the provision of financial guarantee services and the relevant
consultancy services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from financial
guarantee of the Group was approximately RMB14.45 million
(2015: approximately RMB19.23 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 24.9% as compared to 2015. Approximately
RMB13.04 million (2015: approximately RMB14.24 million) derived
from the provision of financial guarantee services and approximately
RMB1.41 million (2015: approximately RMB4.99 million) derived from
the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

The number of new contracts regarding financial guarantee entered
into for the year ended 31 December 2016 was 56 (2015: 82),
representing a decrease of approximately 31.7% as compared to
2015. Given the increase in the average contract price of financial
guarantee services, revenue of the Group decrease by only
approximately 24.9% as compared to 2015.

Software Development Services

In May 2015, the Group obtained control of JDP by acquiring its 60%
equity interests. The principal activities of the JDP are provision of
software development services and online trading platform services.
The activities of the JDP have become a new reportable and
operating segment of the Group in last year.

Revenue from software development services of the Group
represented income from provision of development and sales of
computer application software systems and provision of maintenance
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from software
development services of the Group was approximately RMB3.55
million (2015: approximately RMB6.83 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 48.0% as compared to 2015.
Approximately RMB1.76 million derived from the provision of
development and sales of computer application software systems
and approximately RMB1.79 million derived from the provision of
maintenance services.
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Other Income

The Group’s other income and gain mainly included the bank interest
income, gain on disposals of properties held for sale and one-off
membership fee income. The Group’s other income for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was approximately RMB59.51 million
(2015: approximately RMB7.05 million), representing an increase
by approximately 7 times as compared to 2015. It is mainly due to
the gain on disposals of properties held for sale and bank interest
income and one-off membership for income totalled approximately
RMB47.37 million (2015: approximately RMB6.49 million).

Gain on Bargain Purchase

For the year ended 31 December 2016, gain on bargain purchase
was approximately RMB254.04 million arising from the acquisition
through equity interest in NCCE which took place on 7 January
2016. NCCE is held as to approximately 52.63% by a subsidiary of
the Company. Accordingly, NCCE is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and its financial results, assets and liabilities are
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses primarily consist of commissions paid to individual
agents and operating centers in respect of the handling charges of
trading earned by NCCE.

Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses primarily consist of (i) salary
and welfare expenses for management and administrative personnel;
(i) depreciation and amortisation; (iii) rental expenses; (iv) business tax;
and (v) legal and professional fees. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group’s administrative and operating expenses amounted
to approximately RMB229.83 million (2015: approximately RMB48.83
million). The increase in administrative and operating expenses was
mainly due to the administrative and operating expenses incurred by
the newly acquired subsidiary NCCE of approximately RMB145.66
million; and increased in legal and professional fees, rental expenses,
staff costs and other related expenses resulting from the business
growth of the Group.
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Finance Costs

The finance costs was mainly incurred from (i) a short-term loan
of HK$100 million, equivalent to approximately RMB89.52 million,
from a related company, which is guaranteed by a director of the
Company. The loan is unsecured and bears an interest rate of
2% per month. Partial payment of HK$20 million, equivalent to
approximately RMB17.15 million is made to the lender in June
2016; (i) the convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$149,500,000 issued on 24 December 2015. Interest is charged on
these notes at an interest rate of 8% per annum which is repayable
semi-annually in arrears; and (i) a short-term loan of HK$30 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB26.86 million, from an independent
third party, which is guaranteed by two directors of the Company in
personal guarantee. The loan is unsecured, bears an interest rate of
15% per annum and repayable on 24 March 2017.

Profit Before Income Tax and Loss Attributable to
Shareholders

Profit before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approximately RMB62.80 million, increased from loss of
approximately RMB42.99 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was approximately RMB116.08 million,
increased from loss of approximately RMB47.67 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015, which was mainly due to the gain on
bargain purchase arising from acquisition of equity interest in NCCE
and gain on disposals of properties held for sales.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents-general accounts amounted to approximately RMB55.12
million (2015: approximately RMB60.14 million) and approximately
RMB15.81 million (2015: approximately RMB73.49 million)
respectively, representing a decrease in pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB5.02 million and a decrease in cash and cash
equivalents-general accounts of approximately RMB57.68 million
compared with 31 December 2015. The Group generated negative
cash flows of approximately RMB249.27 million from operating
activities during the year which was attributable to, amongst others,
the settlements of account and other payables in substantial amount.

Issue of 12,000,000 Shares upon exercise of share options are set
out in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
borrowings which bore floating interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk primarily relates to the interest-bearing bank balances and
pledged bank deposits. The Group did not hedge its exposure
to interest rates during the year, but may enter into interest rate-
hedging instruments in the future to hedge any significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total debts (i.e.
other borrowings, finance lease liabilities and convertible bonds
liabilities) by equity attributable to the owner of the Company, was
59% as at 31 December 2015 and 46% as at 31 December 2016.

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

RBES -
B

RZZE—XRNE+-A=+—8 EHETHF
FERERIBCEEEE 2 —REFHRL
ABARKES55,120,0007T (ZZ—RHF : HHA
K% 60,140,0007T) & # A K% 15,810,000
T (ZZE—RF : HHARKT73,490,0007T)
B2 -—RAF+A=+T—HRLDEMET
TR AR 5,020,000t &R VR RIR
©FEIEH 2 —REPH AR 57,680,000
T ARERFABKEEHELEEES
MEHAREE249,270,0007T ?L_%EEEEA (H
EP@%) AEENEREEMENFIBEESRE
FEETPTEL o

MBERRERRE

12,000,000 B A& AT T BB AR HERE 32617 » &
IS TS [BERRRERT &I | —EL -

BE_T—RFT_A=t—HLEFE XK
SEW BT ERFBZER - AEH
Z R KA E B R BIRITF RN E R IRTT
TFRER - R NEELEG N RETH
o ERRIEGRI A EREHTE  RBE
RSP A ERM R ER o

BELEDEAERR (AEMEE  BE
%ﬂ%&‘ﬁﬁﬂxﬁfﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁfuﬂi A%A

AELHERBAETE B/\*T AF+=
A=+—BA59% MR- —"F+ A
=t+—HE46% -

RAREE
RZE—RNF+_A=+—"H xEETE

EREASAREE -

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al



Management Discussion and Analysis

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

On 7 January 2016, the Group completed the capital injection of
RMB120 million into NCCE. The Group is now holding 52.63% equity
interest of NCCE and has included the business results of NCCE in
the Group’s financial statements.

Significant Investment and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed above in this report, there were no significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Grant of Share Options

On 21 January 2016, the Board resolved to grant to (a) Mr. Pang Man
Kin Nixon, the chairman, an Executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, the options entitling Mr. Pang Man
Kin Nixon to subscribe for 150,000,000 Shares at the exercise
price of HK$0.852 per Share, and (o) Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, the vice-
chairman, an Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the options entitling Mr. Chang Hoi Nam to subscribe for
100,000,000 Shares, at the exercise price of HK$0.852 per Share,
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 1
December 2011 and became effective on 6 January 2012 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), subject to and conditional upon the approval
of the grant of the Options by the independent shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23 March
2016 (the “EGM”).

On 13 May 2016, the Board resolved to grant to Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing
Siu, an Executive Director, share options pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme to subscribe up to 15,000,000 Shares at the exercise
price of HK$1.02 per Share. Details and movements relating to the
share options granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.
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OUTLOOK

China’s economy gradually improves even in the face of political and
market uncertainties that brings challenges to the world economy.
In 2017, The People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) has increased the
interest rate of lending facility, reverse repurchase transaction and
standing lending facility, which reflects the focus shifting towards
lever control. According to International Monetary Fund (“IMF”),
China remains the major driving force of the global economy and is
expected to have an economic growth rate of 6.5% in 2017.

The rapid increase in China’s internet penetration rate constantly
relies on the development of big data and e-commerce. Internet
finance has then become a trend. According to the “China Cross-
border E-commerce Industry Overview 2016”, corporate financing
through internet financing and investment amounted to RMB 90.1
billion last year. China’s cross-border e-business is estimated to reach
RMB 8.8 trillion in 2018 with users as high as 74 million, reflecting
the rapid growth in the transformation of the financial services sector.
The Group has taken the advantage of the opportunities offered by
this innovative business model and will continue to fully utilise the
e-commerce transaction platforms which break through the time
and geographical constraints. The Group then can further expand
ASEAN'’s cross-border e-commerce and open up more business
opportunities for traditional and related industries. In addition, by
the cooperation with the People’s Government of Dongxing City,
the Group will spare no efforts in establishing an electronic trading
platform for bulk commodities targeting to the ASEAN countries. The
Group will also benefit from the expected growth of the commodity
exchange industry in the PRC and other overseas markets, and
thereby increasing the potential benefits.

Following the rapid development brought by “The Belt and Road
Initiative”, foreign investment activities in China have grown
exponentially. At present, China’s trade value with the “The Belt
and Road Initiative” countries accounted for over 25% of the total
foreign trade value. To grasp the market opportunities, the Group
has expanded and set up a cross-border electronic trading network
along the ASEAN countries and Southeast Asia to provide online
trading platforms and financial guarantee services. In addition to the
operation in Indonesia, NCCE is going to launch its cross-border
trading platform business in Vietnam to further expand the Sino-
Vietnamese interbank market, introduce vibrant organisations, and
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rely on the multiplier effects from the finance of both countries.
The next to set up commodity exchanges will be the neighbouring
countries including Malaysia, Myanmar, Cambodia and Laos etc.
The Group will continue to lay out customised business plans to
accommodate different industries in order to get through their supply
chains and further increase its sources of income. The Group also
plans to open up trades and investment with the Islamic countries
along the Silk Route. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to arrange
and set up more physical goods commodity trading platforms
through acquisitions, partnerships and internal business growth, to
further expand its market shares.

The weakened global economy and The US Federal Reserve’s
projection on the three rate hikes become the biggest resistance
to the global bond market. At the same time, as France, Germany,
Netherlands, and Hungary are facing their elections in 2017, political
uncertainties are likely to increase. China, on the other hand, is
dragged by the depreciation of the RMB exchange rate, its inflation
rate is projected to trend around 3%. China’s central bank raised
interest rates for one-year medium-term lending facility (MLF) to
3.1%, the first rise in six years. The expectation on shifting away
from its relatively easy monetary policy will further impose upward
pressure on deposit and lending rates as well as benchmark interest
rates. All these unfavourable factors will hinder financing guarantee
business and bring more risks. The Group will prudently operate
its loan guarantee business, and will shift the focus to expanding
its diversified commodity exchange platform to ensure a stable
development of the Group’s business and to take it up a notch.

The Group completed the capital injection transaction to NCCE on
7 January 2016. This strategic investment enabled the Group to
establish a foothold in Nanning, Guangxi, People Republic of China,
the hub where the Chinese government is implementing its Belt and
Road Initiative. Since then, the Group has branched out its physical
commodities trading businesses to other ASEAN countries with a
view 1o establish a network of exchanges in the region to facilitate the
international trading of real physical goods.

BEEERWR DT

EREMLEE - AEESEBIRTRITE
EITHR - R ETRE R - IR0
WARR - ThatBlintsiA 2 B8 - FAYFH
WERNE S MRE - R - NEBESES
MELRRILELZEERMmIZTE - BiBK
B AERABEBROTA  BERATS
D%

HAREIREERS  EEEHEBEHINE
RBEIR  URIRMETHRARS - A
B Tt FABUNKEST - BUATHE
EEAEER - PEATHEH  XARBEXE
BHER  BREZRERE%  FRRTE
R —F BT HEEERN (MLF) #14E - 7
#E31%  ERFRER LR - AR Hj%%éiéf
W Tffﬁ%&ﬂﬁ‘_ﬂ—rﬁiﬁﬂ
%ﬁaﬂmﬂiéﬁfﬂ%%%?ﬂ EWEFMKE’J
[E P IE AN o AN SR A2 \E*E%ﬁgﬂjﬂﬂ%ﬁ
ﬁ% CEMBERZ T NN TR -
REAEBEEBREER EL—E&-

REER - RF-A+-BEATHKEHE
= (PHE-RE) AmXHMEEER 8
- AEBEEERRNRBIEREETEER

AEREG—ARTZEEHNE  BER

B —% — R B EEME - IR
BOER - A% AEBERRER
BEMBERETHABRAIEMRDER -

MY —AAREmR S84 - BT
BR - BEFREMER  RERRRERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———

20



21

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

The first such overseas physical commodities exchange will be The
Asia Pacific Commodity Exchange (“APCX”). APCX shall concentrate
on trading agricultural products with the support of local partners and
government agencies. Meanwhile, APCX will commence trading of
cattle in Indonesia with import of cattle from South America. APCX
will be the exclusive e-trading platform for such cattle trading. With
cattle in place, APCX will vertically integrate into trading of the cattle
feeds, corns and chicken. The Group believes the privileged position
of APCX on trading Halal meat and food in Indonesia might present
an opportunity for APCX to become an important trading platform of
such commaodities with other Muslim countries.

The Group will commence actions in 2017 in establishing other
physical commodities exchanges, subject to prevailing laws and
government policies and availability of resources, in other ASEAN
countries. The likely target locations will include Malaysia, Vietnam,
Myanmar, Laos and Cambodia. The Group is of the view that with
individual physical commodities exchanges established, the overall
network will provide synergy and greatly facilitates regional trade.
Such regional presence will allow the Group to venture into other
more lucrative business such as arrangement of trade financing
services to traders and establishing authoritative commodity pricing
information whereby the information and intelligence derived from
such trading activities could be disseminated to the trade and the
general public at a fee.

The Group’s cross-border trade business in Dongxing City, the PRC,
will commence in 2017. International and cross-border trade aside,
the Group can ride on this business to apply and obtain a foreign
currency (eight ASEAN currencies) exchange and cross-border RMB
settlement status in China. Such position will allow the Group to
further digress into other potential financial and monetary businesses
in China and abroad.

Looking forward, following the rapid development brought by “The
Belt and Road Initiative”, it will be advantageous for the Group to
provide online trading platform services of NCCE in the PRC which
will extend to the ASEAN countries, aiming to continue to create
brilliant accomplishment in near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Commitments and Capital Expenditure

Capital commitments represent the Group’s commitment in relation
to (i) the acquisition of a property (the “Hebei Property”) situated
at Unit 1 on Basement Level 2, Fortune Centre, No.3 Shi Fu Main
Street West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou, Hebei, the PRC, which is
intended for warehouse storage used by ATt KR ITHER G R A7)
(Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*, “Hebei Da Sheng”),
a joint venture enterprise established in the PRC and an indirect 95%
owned subsidiary of the Company; and (ii) capital injection for the
acquisition of associate.

The capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2016 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately RMB1.76
million (2015: RMB1.76 million) for land and buildings, approximately
RMBS3.5 million (2015: RM3.75 million) for capital injection for the
acquisition of an associate and intangible assets approximately
RMBO0.25 million.

The increment in capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 was approximately RMB15.76 million (2015:
approximately RMB15.72 million). Such increment was principally
attributable to the increase in expenditure in leasehold improvements
and motor vehicles.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 194 employees
(2015: 97 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB20.56 million
(2015: RMB7.58 million). The remuneration policy is determined with
reference to market condition, performance and qualification.
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BEERWR DT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 265,000,000 share options (2015: 367,891,200 share
options) to the eligible persons under the Share Option Scheme.
Equity-settled share-based payments recognised for the year ended
31 December 2016 were approximately RMB68.14 million (2015:
RMB68.47 million). The Group participates in the PRC government-
sponsored social security system as required under the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. The social security system in the PRC includes
retirement, work injury, medical care, unemployment and other
insurance coverage for the employees. The Group also maintains the
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and insurance for its employees
in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by itself to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Charge on Group Assets

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s certain property, plant and
equipment and bank deposits with carrying amount of RMB3.52
million and RMB55.12 million respectively were pledged to secure
finance lease liabilities and for providing financial guarantee services
to the Group’s customers respectively.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
director, the vice chairman, a member of the remuneration committee
and an authorised representative of the Company on 1 December
2011, and was appointed as a director and chief executive officer of
China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 14 September 2012 and 20 November
2013 respectively. He was re-designated from the vice chairman to
the chairman of the Company on 20 January 2016. Mr. Pang is one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for overall strategy
formulation and planning of the Group. Mr. Pang was an executive
director of Aurora Global Investment Holdings Limited (now known
as “Energy International Investments Holdings Limited”) (stock
code: 353) from August 2005 to July 2007 and had participated
in various mergers and acquisitions and company restructuring.
On 9 January 2017, Mr. Pang was appointed as the Chairman and
legal representative of Nanning (China-Asian) Commodity Exchange
Company Limited.

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, aged 38, was appointed as an executive
director, the chief executive officer and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. He was
subsequently appointed as the vice chairman of the Company on 20
January 2016. Mr. Chang is one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for the operation and management of the Group. Mr.
Chang obtained a bachelor degree in business management from the
University of New Brunswick of Canada in September 2000.

Mr. Chang is currently the executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (stock code: 295). Mr. Chang had over 7 years of experience
in property development before he set up the Group with Mr. Pang
Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company. He joined his family business in 2000, served as a general
manager of EFTRMEHEART (Xiamen Xiaoxiang Real Estate
Limited*) and director of A/ 1t 75 20 F5 #h EE F 35 A fR A &) (Hebei New
East Asia Real Estate Development Company Limited*) and JAldb R
ERITHERBR/A 7] (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited®),
an indirect subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chang is also the vice
chairman of SRR AT LKA 2 (Zhangjiakou City Chamber of
Commerce*), the chairman of KRR OTRMEE (Quanzhou City
Chamber of Commerce of Zhangjiakou®), a committee member of
REROAMBFHASE (Zhangjiakou City Youth Federation*) and a
member of the board of supervisors of 3R & A T i ERI TN AR A
A] (Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank Co., Limited*).
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ESREREEAEBERE

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, aged 52, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 11 September 2015. Mr. Chan
obtained the degree of bachelor of business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1988. He further obtained
the postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from The
Manchester Metropolitan University in 2002. Mr. Chan had previously
worked for The Wharf (Holdings) Limited and Caltex Oil Hong Kong
Limited. He had also previously served as an administrative officer
of the Hong Kong Government and an executive director of UDL
Holdings Limited (stock code: 620), and was responsible for debt
restructuring which was completed in 2002. He is also an individual
investor and has investments in the automotive diagnostic industry
in the PRC. He has extensive experience in the fields of investment,
business operation and networking.

Mr. Law Fei Shing, aged 57, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 31 December 2015. Mr. Law is a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), USA and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 27 years of experience in
the audit and accounting services. Currently, Mr. Law is an executive
director, deputy chief executive officer and the company secretary of
Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited (stock code: 922), and a non-
executive director of each of Beautiful China Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 706) and Pak Tak International Limited (stock
code: 2668) (He was re-designated from the executive director to
the non-executive director of Pak Tak International Limited on 16
December 2014). Mr. Law was an executive director and a non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1355) from November 2014 to April
2016 and from April 2016 to December 2016 respectively. He was
also the company secretary of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8001) from February 2009 to May 2016 and
an executive director and the company secretary of Bestway
International Holdings Limited (now known as “Tai United Holdings
Limited”) (stock code: 718) from January 2009 to May 2013 and from
January 2009 to January 2013 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, a Malaysian citizen, aged 47, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 13 May 2016.
He is a shareholder of the Company and holds 6.51% interest in
the Company. He is also a well-known individual investor and has
investments in the stock markets in various countries. He started
his career by setting up a company in Malaysia which engaged in
the wholesale of poultry. He then diversified his business into the
plantation, cold storage, shipping and property investment industries
by founding the Joinland Group in 1990. He has strong network
and influence in Malaysia, particularly in East Malaysia. The property
investment business of Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu has expanded to the
Asia Pacific region, including Singapore, Australia and Papua New
Guinea.

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, chairman of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor
degree of economics from Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia
in April 1986. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is
currently the managing director and founder of Mandarin Capital
Enterprise Limited, a company specialised in provision of financial
advisory, merger and acquisition and fund raising for both listed
and private companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is also
an independent non-executive director of each of China Conch
Venture Holdings Limited (stock code: 586), Bisu Technology Group
International Limited (stock code: 1372), Sino Golf Holdings Limited
(stock code: 361) and Nanfang Communication Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1617). He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise Limited
in 2004 and started to provide financial advisory services to a wide
range of industries, such as real estate development industry and
dairy industry. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst &
Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He was also a director and
the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company (Holdings)
Limited, a listed company in the PRC from 1991 to 1999.

EENGREEAEGRE

EESEHEEABLEE  SRALILAR
475 RZE—RERAT=BEZER
RRABZHITES - BARREZRE - #
B86.51% @ WR—ERLAKRESE  BHAK
BZEREMS BEBRALRRL —KE
DAMBRBEB 2 A ARERESXLE -
7 E 1% M — NN ZF 857 Joinland Group
BEHEBOHEEE - 28 MEBRYER
& HESKALR  FrRREA®RAAMRK
MEEFEN EEZBHBEEEBLEZ
MEKREEREDHREZ D AME (BIFFMN
¥ ORMEREMEIEATD) o

PR SE 5655 R-E——F+=A
—ARZEARARBIZBUINITES - &
REEGRTMEEGCERURRERE
BEIsNE - REER—N/\NFHARR
MEEEBBEREBEGKBERE T 24 -
BRARNSTHMABZEREE - RALER
RXEEARPEERAG ZEFRLERA
BIA  ZAREFIREREBRFEZ £
KL g et gER  HEREES -
RIN AT EIGIZAIZEIEREBR AT (RHK
5%:586) « Lk RBIEEBREBRER QA (K
MR5%:1372) « IBREIZERBR AT (RHK
.36 RE A BEERERAR (KRHNK
G177 E B ZBUEMITES - KN -ZT
TOFRINEEAPEERAGIRB LA
ZETE (NWEHERBITERILEMLSE)
MU BERRS - REEZR—NNNE
E-NN—FEBREBZLKETMER
FREETER o WAMER—NAN—FZ— NN
FRRYPERTE (RE) RIDBRAF]
(—fERFREMZAR) BEESERUKR

BE o
==

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———

26



2/

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEAEBERE

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr.
Lam graduated from the Victoria University of Melbourne, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business Degree majoring in banking and finance.
He also earned a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University of Australia. Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) (He
was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to
an executive director of that company on 17 April 2013). Mr. Lam is
an independent non-executive director of Yin He Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8260). He was an independent non-executive director of
The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145)
from February 2012 to June 2014. He resigned as the deputy chief
executive officer of China Eco-Farming Limited (stock code: 8166) on
17 April 2018.

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chow holds a master degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is currently an independent
non-executive director of Dingyi Group Investment Limited (stock
code: 508). He was an independent non-executive director of China
Oriental Culture Group Limited (now known as “China Chuanglian
Education Group Limited”) (stock code: 2371) from January 2008
to May 2011 and the chief financial officer of Chinese Food and
Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) from February 2008 to
December 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 71, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Li is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group, responsible
for new guarantee product development and business expansion
strategy formulation. He is also the supply chain finance specialist
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from the radio
and automatic control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic
majoring in water acoustics engineering in July 1969. Mr. Li is
currently a consultant of the FEIYREE H{R#EFR L (China
Logistics Productivity Promotion Centre*). From 1990 to 2005, he
was the general manager of China National Materials Storage and
Transportation Guangzhou Corp, a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise which is engaged in securitisation management of pledged
assets for various financial institutions in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) since 1999. During the period, Mr. Li conducted
extensive researches on and has gained extensive experience in
(i) logistics management and project guarantee businesses; and
(i) securitisation of relevant assets along the chain of logistics
management for financial investments.

Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducting researches on mixed
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. He also
published various academic articles relating to “logistics bank and
risk management”. In 2007, as the expert of the logistic productivity
center in the PRC and the editor of the {¥1il7) (Logistics
Technology®), Mr. Li has participated in examination and approval of
the national standards which are issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC, such as (it ¥R M=
[EFTHR4) (Assessment on the Satisfactory Level of the Logistic
Enterprises®), B #8195 REHEE R EK) (Management Requirement
of the Automatic Sorting Facilities*) and {#7;7% F 2 T88IiB A ) (General
Specification for Logistics Quantitative Forecast*) of the logistics
industry standard in the PRC.
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ESREREEAEBERE

Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 51,
Mr. An is currently the chief business supervisor of Jajib KB 1 THE
RAM AT (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
graduated from Hebei Radio and TV University with a diploma
in financial accounting in July 1988. Mr. An also graduated from
Central Party School of the Communist Party of China majoring in
management in party administration in December 1992. Furthermore,
he completed and passed an advanced-level course in risk
investment and corporate finance organised by the Continuing
Education Department of Tsinghua University in March 2011.

joined the Group in September 2006.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 54, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of KE1T(EF9)
ERBMR AT (Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company Limited*), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
obtained a diploma in economic from Xiamen University in June
1984,

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 39, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Xu is currently the chief financial controller of the Group. He obtained
a graduation certificate in construction finance accounting from &
EEESZEHERER (Fujian Construction Vocational School*) in
July 1998. Before joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked as the accounts
manager of a property developer in Xiamen City for 5 years.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 37, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Zhang
is currently the marketing manager of the Group and is responsible
for marketing affairs of the Group. He has more than four years
of experience in marketing area. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma
in construction engineering and pricing management from Hebei
Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering in January 2008.
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Mr. Yu Hong Bin, aged 42, joined the Group in July 2014. Mr. Yu
is currently a joint executive officer of Assurance Finance Services
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Yu
is also the founder, controlling shareholder and chairman of Beijing
Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited (“dDP”), graduated from
Peking University with major in information management and holds
master degree. Mr. Yu has over 15 years of experience in design and
development of software systems for bulk commodity exchanges and
electronic exchanges, and witnesses the growth of the industry. The
majority of senior management of JDP’s development and operation
team are also graduates of Peking University with bachelor or master
degree in computer software and/or business administration, and has
all-round techniques, business acumen and experiences.

Mr. Wei Jinghang, aged 54, has obtained postgraduate qualification.
He was a master degree graduate student and research associate in
investment economics at Guangxi Normal University. Mr. Wei joined
the Group in January 2016 and is currently the president of Nanning
(China-ASEAN) Commaodity Exchange Company Limited. He took the
positions of deputy director of Data Analysis and Testing Centre and
deputy heads of Personnel Department and Industries Department
at Guangxi Normal University. He was also the general manager of
Guangxi Site Technology Company (E7FAE&EHE A 7)), chairman
and general manager of Guangxi Haite Technology Company Limited
(BRI AR AR]) and general manager of Guangxi Ducheng
Investment Group (EFE#MKI%E £ /). He has extensive experience
in administrative management, personnel management, business
operation management and investment projects. He has successfully
completed several dozens of computer network engineering projects
and real estate development projects at the provincial level. In early
2006, Mr. Wei participated in the establishment of Nanning (China-
ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company Limited, and took the
positions of executive vice-president and subsequently the president
until today. During his tenure, he led the staff through ten years of
struggle, in which he insisted in business innovation and created
leading performance in a number of areas amongst the competitors,
and helped the continuous growth of the exchange towards
international development. The commodity exchange has also been
awarded a number of honors including “Guangxi e-Commerce Model
Enterprise” and “Top Ten Professional Market in Nanning City”, etc.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Bi Songmei, aged 60, joined the Group in January 2016 and
she is currently a director of Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity
Exchange Company Limited. She has served in the finance sector
since her graduation from Shandong Province Bank and Finance
College (LLIERE$RITEIBERPR) with university qualification. She took
the positions of unit head, section head and branch manager in
Agricultural Bank of China at Shandong Qingdao from July 1982 to
June 1996. She was the general manager of China Xinhua Chengxin
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (BT H (= ORI BR A F) from
July 1996 to August 2005 and the general manager in the sales
department of China Xinhua Trust (Shandong) from September
2005 to May 2011. She has been the chairman of Shanghai Quanfu
Industrial Company Limited (private enterprise). During her tenure with
the banks, she contributed in a number of areas including substantial
growth in various types of deposits, continuous reinforcement
of financial strengths, standardisation of credit management,
optimisation of loan portfolios, rapid growth of the deposit and lending
business, expansion of business scope, continuous improvement of
the business situation and year over year improvements on economic
efficiency. No bad loan has been associated with her loan portfolios
of Xinhua Trust and she was awarded as the “Model Worker in the
National Finance System” for three consecutive years.

Mr. Peng Peishan, graduated from Beijing University of Information
Science and Technology, and is currently the vice president of
Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company Limited
(A= (PR — RB) BRRSHAARZAT]), which he has served
for more than 10 years. He has been involved in the development
of exchange management rules and business models in Guangxi
Autonomous Region. He is an intermediate accountant, an asset
appraiser, a real estate valuer and a land valuer. He has served
as manager of the operations department of China Construction
Bank’s Qinzhou Branch, manager of the evaluation department of
Guangdong National Publicity Evaluation Consulting Group (&5 &
FREET(A55:8728]), a manager of Media Operations Department of
GroupM (Bt BN 2 E) in Guangzhou. He is one of the few experts
who is familiar with the trading business of exchanges in the PRC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Yonggqiang, graduated from the South China Agricultural
University. Currently he is the chief financial officer of Nanning
(China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company Limited. He has
successfully worked in Shenzhen City Tefa Group Company Limited
CRYIT A EE AR 2 A]) (formerly Shenzhen Special Economic
Region Development (Group) Company(F3I 4 &R SR EE A
fR A A])) and Shenzhen Branch of China Ping An Insurance Group
Co., Ltd., where he was engaged in personnel, underwriting, and
management work of a risk management team. He also served
successively as the vice president of Shenzhen Sanwei Investment
Limited (FYII = &% & BBRAF]), as well as the general manager and
legal representative of Shenzhen Dongze Supply Chain Management
Co., Limited (RYIT R ZHEHEEIRBRAE]). He has a solid
financial strategic background, risks management capability, and
extensive legal knowledge. He is able to make good use of various
financial instruments (banks, trusts, funds, leasing, etc.), and has a
wealth of management skills and practical experience in investment
and finance management.

* For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing financial
and the relevant consultancy services to small and medium-sized
enterprises in Hebei Province and Xiamen City of the PRC and online
trading platform in Nanning and Guangzhou City of the PRC. Details
of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 223.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016. (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Group’s business,
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2016, and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Notes to the Financial Statements” sections of this report and are
set out specially in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well reflected by
our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. Our Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards environmental
protection to the employees. Our Group also implements green office
practices such as promoting the use of recycled papers and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lighting and electrical
appliances.

Our Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of our Group’s businesses and enhance
environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the business
and operations of our Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Our Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, our senior management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between our Group and its business partners.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB263.3 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements, is
set out on page 5. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements in this report.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donations of approximately HK$240,000
were made by the Group (2015: nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company and the
Convertible Bonds as disclosed in the below sections headed
“INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
respectively no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s major
customers are set out below:
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Percentage of total sales

HEHEER DL
Sales SHER
— the largest customer — &REP 0.35%
— the five largest customers combined — BEREFPEH 0.61%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
(re-designated as Chairman
on 20 January 2016)

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam
(appointed as Vice Chairman
on 20 January 2016)

Mr. Chan Kim Leung

Mr. Law Fei Shing

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu
(appointed on 13 May 2016)

Mr. Chen Xiao Li
(resigned on 20 January 2016)

(Chairman)

(Chief Executive Officer and
Vice Chairman)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Chang Xi Min
(resigned on 20 January 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing
Siu shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM”) and being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election as Director at the AGM.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chang Hoi Nam,
Mr. Chan Kai Wing and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki will retire as Directors by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP

Mr. Chang Xi Min resigned as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Company; and Mr. Chen Xiao Li resigned as an
executive Director with effect from 20 January 2016. Mr. Pang
Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director, has been re-designated
from the vice chairman to the chairman of the Company; and Mr.
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Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company, has been appointed as the vice chairman of the
Company with effect from 20 January 2016. Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu
was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 13 May
2016. Further details of the change of directorship are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 20 January 2016 and 13 May
2016.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 24 to 32 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon and Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, executive
Directors, has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years from 6 January 2012 (renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 11 September 2015 (renewable automatically for successive
terms of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms of
the service agreement).

Mr. Law Fei Shing, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 31 December 2015.

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
from 13 May 2016 (renewable automatically for successive terms
of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreement).
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term with effect from 1
December 2016 until 30 November 2017.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the Articles.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 41 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the
end of the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, and the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme. The details of the Share Option Scheme are set out
in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

EBWUFRPTEFHERARARRIRME
W FHE-T-AFT-A-RAEE=F
—tFt—HA=1HL-

EREFHARBERMDAGESELNA
NRRRBFREG LERETE -
BEENRRBFAS LEREFZESRE
BN RIZRR] AR BN AI R —FAER
18 OEERERIN) MR LEZ IR % o

EENRE - ZETENZ
e

B EX RIS 41 FTIREEE SN - R
ARRREFMERR MARMB AR AN
MW EARNEEEBEER MEFHREEE
ECERERIEREEEANGE CEX
R BHHEH  RAFEEMRERIA
FRERINATE

FENBUR

FNZE SRR - AEHRIRREEZ
BE - TIFE  RAXRKBZHRERAEE
CRBEEREZME RHEEFSE - BEFN
AR IR AE AR ot BIUCEHS TR 2 RS A
ARBE A G RABAE S - RS
SIFBHN T [BAETE ] — B

BEEEHN

FRAER S FEERRR]2EHBAED
NEBCERERITHARZEH -

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al



Report of the Directors

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE EER A QAR THAE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE A A& B = H {F{atHE: =B
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES > &0 - HHEAR O R ERH
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ZHEZRRXA

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of RZE—XF+-_A=+—80 FFNAQ
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief Fl&EITHAE ([EETHRAE]) RARQ
Executives’) in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the &) sk E T [ #E A @ (F&E R EBH MBS K
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part ~ FIZEXVEE) Z k& fn - RIS (D R EREZEF -
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded % A 7B e 8RN A2 B 1R 1 35 5 M HA & 1£ 51
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, oras ([ B H R HBEKHI) F352KFE 2 &L
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant it * Sk ZBIRIE &I %R 5 18 B 58 5.46 1§ FTitt
to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuer as ~FMEITAEREITR G ZMTIZE (RS
referred to in rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required ~ #%SFAZ%E |) A& AN &) KB < Fr 2 #E 2k Kook

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———

Standard of Dealings”) were as follows: BT
(@) Long positions in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 (a) SRE{E0.01 BT 2 EER
each and the underlying Shares REBERGZEHR
Number of Shares Total number Approximate
REE Equity of Shares and percentage
Name of Personal Corporate derivatives underlying of the issued
Director interest interest  (share options) Shares share capital
HEBITR
BRAFTETIA 40 K A8 B8 vk
BExpn B AR EEER (BRAE) R A7 48 21 HESL
(Note 3) (Note 4)
(Pf%E3) (Pt 4)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon 256,278,000 659,716,000 140,000,000 1,055,994,000 62.43%
(“Mr. Pang’) (Note 1)
ZXBE ([whE]) (PFiE1)
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam — 659,716,000 100,000,000 759,716,000 44.91%
(“Mr. Chang”) (Note 1)
skl ([REED) (F3E1)
Mr. Chan Kim Leung — - 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.18%
PR&IRE A
Mr. Law Fei Shing — — 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.89%
BB L
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu 89,486,000 5,696,000 15,000,000 110,182,000 6.51%
(“Dato’ Sri Hah”) (Note 2)
EESEMEERBALE GEYS 40
([&2BH 2 Hah))
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EEEHE

Notes:

1. These shares were registered in the name of Team King Limited
(“Team King”), which was wholly owned by Capital Gain Investments
Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”). Capital Gain was legally and
beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang.
Under the SFO, each of Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of Team King
being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain.

2. These Shares were held by Jarmata Profits Limited, which was
owned as to 50% by Dato’ Sri Hah. Thus, he was deemed to be
interested in the 5,696,000 Shares held by Jarmata Profits Limited

pursuant to the SFO.

3. The interests in the share options (being regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) are detailed under the paragraph
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report.

4. The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,691,560,000

Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016.

(b) Long positions in the shares of associated

(b)

PEE

1. ZEBROUANDERAR ((FH)) &
E e aATm@;&§¢hﬁm
A(RE]) 2E%B - BE5H 5
ﬁimiﬁam%ﬁa%&mﬁﬁiA

%&%E%ﬁw% RIEFEH R HE K
Bl AABAERENREEBRBRES
= ﬁi&%ﬁ%iﬂ%&%ﬁ%mq\

{ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ hgEE R o

2. % % % 19 B Jarmata Profits Limited #5
B ZARHEEHEHah#550% °

Bt RIEFEF M E RS

BIRAR

& 7 Jarmata Profits Limited BT # & 2
5,696,000 I 15 B i o

3. BhEzEZ GRIFFLTERERIRE
AOTHETR) WAME [BBREE] —

B -

4. ZELLDER-ZT -

NE+Z

AZ+—RAZ22%TRMHEAE
1,691,560,000 & A E AL & o

RAEBEERGD 2HFR

corporation
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shares held interest in
Name of associated in associated associated
Director corporation Capacity corporation corporation
PR IR £ R IH AR A B RER
EEng M EE E B 54 RSB E 2N B
Mr. Pang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 50,000 100%
corporation
TZRE AN (PH5E) Rt EEER
Mr. Chang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 50,000 100%
corporaﬂon
RAEE e (PREE) 2 EE S

Note: Team King was wholly owned by Capital Gain. Capital Gain was

legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by

Mr. Chang.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or Chief Executives had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and
Chief Executives and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations (other
than the Directors and Chief Executives) in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

BREXPEEEN RZT—RF+_H
=t+—B BEEFIESTHRAERAR
Al EEAERNAE (Ex R EHFRME K
PISEXVER) Z Bty - AR B E

BB ALENANRBIRIER 7 M GRAIFH
352G E 2 Bl - HAREBERFH B TR
EMEARNTE MR P2 (RIS SORE

ARBI2EBZRRRKRGO K
HERG 2BRER AR

RZZE-—RE+A=+—RH BEEFL&K
BITHRABMA  WRBHZAEEFEZ
AR RAREFAZRE  BREERE
BITHABSN - THIATZOEBR D A8
AR ERBLER AR RREESF NS
1GPI5E 336 IRIFE 2 B 2 = AR

Approximate

Name of Total number percentage
substantial of Shares/ of the issued
Shareholder Capacity underlying Shares share capital
37 HERITRAE
FTERRER 514 HHEAR 1D A E ZHABE D
(Note 4)
(M5t 4)
Team King Beneficial owner 659,716,000 (L) 39.00%
A EnEAA
Capital Gain Through a controlled 659,716,000 (L) 39.00%
corporation (Note 1)
HE RIEHEEER (MF7E1)
Prosperous International ~ Beneficial owner 785,000,000 (L) 46.41%
Finance Limited (Note 2)
(“‘Prosperous (FFzE2)
International”)
EEERIMBERLAT EmBEEA
(MEEEER])
Mr. Chan Ting Lai Beneficial owner and interest 816,340,000 (L) 48.26%
(“Mr. Chan”) of controlled corporation (Note 3)
fR&EEE (REE]) BB ARZEHEE#EZR (MF7E3)

(L) denotes long position

L) ZTMFE
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Notes: PR -

1. These Shares were registered in the name of Team King, which was wholly 1.
owned by Capital Gain. Capital Gain was legally and beneficially owned
as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang. Under the SFO, each of
Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Team King by virtue of Team King being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr.
Chang through Capital Gain.

2. Prosperous International was issued the guaranteed and secured 2.
convertible bonds in aggregate principal amount of HK$149,500,000 by the
Company. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at the conversion
price of HK$1.15 per conversion share, a total of 130,000,000 conversion
shares will be issued. Moreover, the share charge entered into between
Team King as chargor and Prosperous International as chargee pursuant
to which 655,000,000 Shares held by Team King was charged in favour of
Prosperous International. Therefore, 785,000,000 Shares and underlying
Shares were held by and in favour of Prosperous International.

3. Out of these 816,340,000 Shares and underlying Shares, 31,340,000 3.
Shares were beneficially owned by Mr. Chan. The sole legal and beneficial
owner of Prosperous International was Mr. Chan. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan
was deemed to be interested in 785,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares
held by and in favour of Prosperous International.

4. The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,691,560,000 Shares in 4.
issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there was no & F X FriE &S

ZEBROURNMIBERER  ZATHEEEE
WE - BEDRBBEEEEREREE51%
KAREERENRERHE 49% © RIFFEH K
HEGRY - ERARZEE RS BBHRE
I%U U ST MR ST R BB AN T 5
BB HEA R

KA aERES B TT$§M%E1495OOOOO
B2 BEREEERZ TRRES - BEH
R R ES - AFRERRMN1.155T
ZRBR(EET - B4 130,000,000 A% 8812 A% 15
18 FEEAT o R - ARBORME (EAMRA) HE
BERKR (EAERMEA) s L 2R 5D
HNED BT 8 2 655,000,000 R A% 15 LATE &
B mZm AETTHER o« F It - 785,000,000 %
Btr KB HESEEHE T UR AT
/\o

$2816,340,000% fx 7 X AB @ IR 1 & + -
31,340,000 R EHPREE B R  BREERE
EEBzH—EEESHAA - RIEFES L
BB - BRI E AR ARNME B BIFR AT A I A
H AT A 2 785,000,000 AL AL & #ARE AL D
PHEEER o

HZADWTER-_F-R"FT_A=1+—RZ
BT B E 1,691,560,0008 AEEH -

N RZF-ARE+TZA

person or corporation (other than the Directors and Chief Executives) =+—8 @ HEA TS E2E (REE MRS
who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying  7TE A B4N) R sk AB B RL (5 o B 1T 1]

Shares as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by — # &

the Company under section 336 of the SFO. BiE

FAR - BRSNARAIRIEES N
P25 336 617 B 2 BEiL it -

OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE E % R EMHHI THMET

SFO

HEES

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there  BR EXFTHEESIN - IBESAA - BIEEM
was no other person who had interest or short position in the Shares A TR D & ABRERL 17 7 7 B 1R 5 75 5 K HA
and underlying Shares that is discloseable under section 336 of the  E1{§&I5 336 (KB T T 2 S sAR °

SFO.

43

————0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited B gI{R S BB E R A

5



RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2016 had the Directors and the Chief Executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) any
interest in, or been granted, or exercised any rights to subscribe for
the Shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 1 December
2011 whereby the Board was authorised, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme) to subscribe for the Shares as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the Listing
Date. Movements relating to the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:
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Number of share options
ERERA
At At
Date of grant Owners/Grantees 1 Jan 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31 Dec 2016 Exercise period Exercise price
5L/ H=B-5E RZB-RE
RS AEA -A-A B Bt AN BB tA=t-R T8 %8
HKS
AT
21 May 2013 Director
Z5-cF EE
il | — ChanKim Leung 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - - 1 May 2015 to 30 Apr 2016 119
—RER —3-§nA-RZ
ZE-AERA=tA
20 Nov 2013 Director
Z5-=F EE
T-A=tE  —ChanKimLeung 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - - 1Nov2015t0 31 Oct 2016 183
—RER “2-nFt-A-BZ
Z2-FTA=1-H
Employees 16,500,000 - - 16,500,000 - - 1Nov2015t0 31 Oct 2016 163
& “2-nFt-A-BZ
Z2-ETA=T-H
Consultants 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - - 1Nov2015t0 31 Oct 2016 163
B “T-RET-A-HE
I
25.Jun 2015 Employees 37,070,000 - - - - 37,070,000 25Jun 201510 24 Jun 2017 2582
—3-3F B8 ZE-RERAZTRAZE
~AZTEA ZE-tERAZHER
160,000 - - 160,000 - - 25Jun 20160 24 Jun 2017 2582
ZERERAZTRAR
ZE-tERAZTEA
150,000 - - 160,000 - - 25Jun 20171024 Jun 2018 2582
Z2-tFrAZTERE
Z5-\§~AZ1TRA
Consultants 21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000 25Jun 201510 24 Jun 2017 2582
Ef ZT-REAACTRAR
ZE-+ERAZTRA
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 Jun 2016 0 24 Jun 2017 2582
ZE-NERAZTRAZ
ZE-+ERAZTRA
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25Jun 201710 24 Jun 2018 2582

“E-tERAtRAZE
“E-\ERAZtEA

China Assurance Finance Group Limited R EIRIR £ BIE B B R A T
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Number of share options
ERE"A
At At
Date of grant Owners/Grantees 1Jan 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31 Dec 2016 Exercise period Exercise price
EaL/ H=8-AF R=%-A%
RS ERA -A-A BRY B BAXN BR# TZA=t-H 8 ke
HK$
AT
12 Nov 2016 Director
31 g2
T-A1zA — Law Fei Shing 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000 12 Nov 201510 11 Nov 2017 1.03
— B8 “3-EEH-AtoRE
5 LEt-At-E
Employees 53,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - 51,000,000 12 Nov 201510 11 Nov 2017 1.03
ER “F-REt-ATAE
“T—tE+-At-8
Consultants 70,000,000 - - - - 70,000,000 12 Nov 2015t 11 Nov 2017 1.03
B “T-RET-AToAR
“T—tET-At-8
17 Dec 2015 Employees 200,000 - - 200,000 - - 17 Dec 2015 to 16 Dec 2016 097
—3-3F Ef —3-5t-AttRE
+ZAttA ZERETZATAA
200,000 - - 100,000 - 100,000 17 Dec 2016 to 16 Dec 2017 097
ZENETZATERZ
ZEtETZATAA
Consultants 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 17 Dec 2015 to 16 Dec 2018 097
Ef —3-5t-AttBE
Z5-\ETZATRA
21Jan 2016 Directors
“E-0F g%
-A=1+-H — Pang Man Kin Nixon - 150,000,000 10,000,000 - - 140,000,000 21Jan 2016 10 20 Jan 2021 0.852
-1 (Note) “Z-"E-B-t-RZ
(M) Z3--F-f=1A
— Chang Hoi Nam - 100,000,000 - - - 100,000,000 21Jan 201610 20 Jan 2021 0.852
— 558 (Note) “Z-’E-B-t-RZ
(M) Z3--F-f=1A
13 May 2016 Director - 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 13 May 2016 to 12 May 2019 1.02
Ik S B2 ZF- FRATZHRE
RAt=A —Dato’ S
Hah Ting Slu ZZ-NERATZA
—EESENE
ERARE
229,270,000 265,000,000 12,000,000 26,100,000 - 456,170,000

46
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Note:

On 21 January 2016, the Board resolved to grant options under the Share Option
Scheme to (a) Mr. Pang and (b) Mr. Chang entitling each of them to subscribe
for 150,000,000 and 100,000,000 Shares respectively at the exercise price of
HK$0.852 per Share, subject to and conditional upon the approval of the grant of
the options by the independent shareholders at the EGM. The grant of options to
Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was subject to the approval of independent shareholders
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Pang, Mr. Chang and their associates and
all core connected persons of the Company had to abstain from voting in favour
of such resolution at the EGM. At the EGM, the resolution was duly passed by the
independent shareholders by way of poll. Details of the grant of options are set out
in the announcement, circular and poll results of the EGM of the Company dated
21 January 2016, 3 March 2016, and 23 March 2016 respectively.

The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to grant options to
the Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group. The Company conditionally adopted a Share Option
Scheme on 1 December 2011 whereby the Board are authorised,
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the Shares of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. The Share Option Scheme will be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the
Listing Date.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible
Person shall pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 28 days from the date on which the Option is granted. The
subscription price for the Shares subject to Options will be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each participant and shall
be the highest of: () the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
Options, which must be a day on which trading of Shares take place
on the Stock Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 Trading Days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the Options; and (i) the nominal value of a Share. For the purpose
of calculating the subscription price, in the event that on the date of
grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less
than 5 Trading Days, the issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any Trading Day falling within the period before the Listing Date.

BT -

RZZB-XRE-A-+—R EXSREERE
e BARE@EEERO)KREERDBERE
B HRERER082BIL ZTTHE DHIRE
150,000,000 A% % 15 £ 100,000,000 & i& {7 2 # F -
R B RAEBR R RIS L #/ER B E
& HEEE LA AET - RIBRIER EHR
A M ROR AR B I AR T R
o L REEREBEALTARAKRRB 2 EBZ
DEEATARBRREHIAS LR ERERE
R - RIRRESRIRE L ORBRC B RERR
RIFFEE - REBREZFH BN ISR AR F R
RIEB—FRF-AZ+—HzAE  ZZE—RF=H
ZHZBRRZE-REZAZT=AZREFHIK

BREER -

BT ERARAATRAEMALTRERE
It - ERREHAKEMERR 2 2B
O - ARAR_F——F+-_A—BEK
HFERMBAERT S Bt EFSERER
WEZBEBISHE - KRB ERT 82 15
BRHARBARFRN < BRETEERA
T - BEASHLETERETFHRN—E
BRI

REZ MBI SR A RB R D 2B
Pt ([BRE]) 12 AER2EEAI
1.00B T TARE - FRERBREZNR
(B - B ZMH AR BRES A e
28 AHAfE - R BHRBESHERS
EE THER2EAL BRAK/TIIZ
B&mE  (RREBERERS (BEAR
BORBRAMETEEZAF (IXSA8]))
B3P A SRERHE 2 Bty W (& ¢ i) R
ERRLBERERZAMOLERS BB e
BRERAE B FHRTE - K i) B
mE- A ERBEMNS - WXRLAE
ARAFETPRAERZRZ A - BLEEARE
R T B BRI EARE MR 5 B 2 WTi(E o
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed
10% of the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval
and issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules,
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under all the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed
30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2016, the Group has entered into the following transaction with
the following party, which is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The following transaction
constitutes a continuing connected transaction which is exempt
from the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

On 2 August 2009, Xiamen Da Sheng as tenant and Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan (“Ms. Ma”) as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
in respect of a property (the “Property”) situated at Suites 23B
and 23C, Office Tower, Zhongxin Huiyang Building, No. 59 Hubing
Road North, Xiamen, the PRC with an area of approximately 200
sg. m. for a term of three years commenced on 8 September 2009
and expired on 7 September 2012. The annual rental payable
by the Group for the Property is approximately RMB84,000. On
7 September 2012, Xiamen Da Sheng and Ms. Ma has renewed the
term of the tenancy agreement in respect of the Property for another
three years commenced from 8 September 2012 and expiring on
7 September 2015 at the same annual rental amount of approximately
RMB84,000. On 7 September 2015, Xiamen Da Sheng and Ms.
Ma has renewed the term for another one year commenced from
8 September 2015 to 7 September 2016 at the same annual rate.
Xiamen Da Sheng ceased to rent the Property after the expiration as
it has moved into it own properties in Xiamen in 2016.
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AR RERE TREFIEITRAE - HREER
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

As Ms. Ma is the mother of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam and the wife of
Mr. Chang Xi Min, she is a connected person of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, the substantial
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 50
to 63 in this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 have been audited by the Company’s auditor,
BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. The Company has not changed
its external auditor since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
China Assurance Finance Group Limited
Pang Man Kin Nixon
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and
enhance its corporate value. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
Company had been in compliance with the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”).
The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiries of the
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

Executive Director

and Chairman
Executive Director,

Chief Executive Officer

and Vice Chairman
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam

Mr. Chan Kim Leung
Mr. Law Fei Shing

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu

Mr. Chan Kai Wing Independent non-executive

Director

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung Independent non-executive
Director

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website and the Company’s website (www.cafgroup.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication to determine overall strategic direction and
objectives and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and
other significant matters. The Board held 12 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the respective Board and committee meetings are set out
in the table on page 59 of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Notices with agenda of the Board meeting are duly given to each
Director. Minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the Company
Secretary and is open for inspection by any Directors.

If a Director has an interest in the resolutions to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the Board will
ensure the resolutions will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than written resolutions and the board will also ensure that
an adequate number of independent non-executive Directors are
involved in the consideration of the relevant resolutions. Independent
non-executive Directors are encouraged to take an active role in
Board meetings.

The Board and the Management of the Company

The Board and the management of the Company (the “Management”)
work together toward synergy in order to strive for excellent
performance of the Company. The Company is governed by the
Board, which is responsible for overseeing the overall strategy
and development of the Company, as well as monitoring the risk
management and internal control systems and evaluating the financial
performance of the Group. The Board sets the overall strategies and
directions for the Group with a view to developing its business and
enhancing the Shareholders’ value. The day to day management,
administration, operation of the Group and adoption of the Company’s
strategies and polices are delegated to the Management. The clear
responsibilities division between the Board and the Management
ensured the power and authority are balanced and not concentrated in
any one individual.

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors which representing more than one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Independent non-executive Directors, together with
the executive Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their independence is in compliance the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Relationships between the Board

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Vice Chairman, is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a former non-
executive Director and the former Chairman. Mr. Chang Xi Min has
resigned as a non-executive Director and the Chairman with effect
from 20 January 2016. Save for the aforesaid, none of the Directors
related to one another.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and
orientation to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations
and business of the Group. The Company also provided detailed
director’s responsibilities and obligations statement pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules for the Director to review and study. In addition,
materials in relation to regularly update on latest development
in relation to the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable regulatory
requirements and the Group’s business and governance policies
(the “Reading Materials in relation to Continuous Professional
Developments”) were circulated to the Directors. Continuing
briefings and seminars for the Directors will be arranged as
necessary. The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills periodically.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors participated #HZE—ZT—<F+_A=+—HILtFE &
in the continuous professional developments in the following manner: ~ E2ETF|EREFHEFE LR 2 F1A ¢

Attending Seminars/
Courses/Conferences/
Reading Materials in In-house Briefings
Relation to Continuous in Relation to Continuous
Name Professional Developments Professional Developments
£ ERESx LEERRFESXRREL
BRZBEMB BHE/ RE/ &%/ WIER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon YNBLE v/
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam el v/
Mr. Chan Kim Leung BRI E v/
Mr. Law Fei Shing ERERLE / v
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu EESENBEERRLE v
(appointed on 13 May 2016) (R=Z-"ERAT=REZT)
Mr. Chen Xiao Li B/ NI A / /
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (RZZ—A"F-A=1+HEL)
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min RESHEE v/
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (RZZ—R"F-A=THEHME)
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUH#EH7TEE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing R E v/
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung mkEEE v/
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEELE v/ v/
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITBER

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon is currently the Chairman of the Board ZXEREARREEESEF - MKRslMEE
and Mr. Chang Hoi Nam is currently the Chief Executive Officer. AERIABREITHAH - BIBEEXEATAIZ
In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the SFAIEXEA211E EFEMITHREE 2 A
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and ~ @RARER % + AR ALTETT ©

exercised by different person.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has taken primary It/ BEESFFEIZEEBREYRTH

LN

responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices ¥ & /8T R MIEfF ©
and procedures are established.

o4
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Each of Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon and Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, executive
Directors, has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years from 6 January 2012 (renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 11 September 2015 (renewable automatically for successive
terms of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms of
the service agreement).

Mr. Law Fei Shing, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 31 December 2015.

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
from 13 May 2016 (renewable automatically for successive terms
of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreement).

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term with effect from
1 December 2016 until 30 November 2017.

In accordance with the article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible
offer themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kai Wing (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lam
Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management, to review
performance based remuneration and to ensure none of the Directors
determine their own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed the
performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Director’s services contracts. The Remuneration Committee
adopted the model which is described in the code provision B.1.2 (c)
(i) of the CG Code, it makes recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table on page 59
of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing
and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (chairman of the Nomination
Committee).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, to access
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee determined the
policy for the nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for identifying potential directors, reviewing the
credentials of the potential director base on his/her qualifications,
skills, experience, credibility and reputation. Once the Nomination
Committee confirmed the potential director(s) is/are qualified to
be the Director(s) and his/her appointments are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, it will make
recommendations to the Board for approval. The director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his/her appointment and shall be subject to re-
election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject to
reelection by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 59 of
this report.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and Mr. Chow
Shiu Ki.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, to approve their remuneration and
terms of engagement, to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards, to review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and oversee financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the Group’s
quarterly reports for the three months and nine months ended
31 March 2016 and 30 September 2016 respectively, interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the Group’s audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and provided
advice and comments thereon. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the Management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 59 of this
report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of
the Board and its respective committees during the year ended
31 December 2016 are as follows:

ESgRHERTR
HE-T-—AFT-A=+—ALFE ¥
FREFERANABRE AR Z SRR
BT

Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual  Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director E5e R¥ZEe  FMzEE  BhzEe
gzg EE EE EE 8% RREEAE KREAAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon RS 1212 NATER ¥3  NATER 11 11
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam By 12112 102 NANER  NATER 11 11
Mr. Chn Kim Leung BARE 92 NATER  NATER  NATER i i
Mr. Law Fei Shing BEGLE 512 NATNER NATNER NATNER 1 1
Deto’ S Heh Ting S SRSENIERALYE 06 NATEE  NATER  NATER  NATER i
(appointed on 13 May 2016) (R=Z- "ERAT=REZA)
Mr. Chen Xiao Li Rl 01 NATNER NATNER NATNER NATNER NATNEE
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (R=Z-"E-F=tHEH)
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min FRATE 0 NATNER NATNER NATNER NATNER NANER
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (R=B-"E-A=THEH)
Independent Non-executive Directors BV #H/TEZE
Mr.Chan Kai Wing B 1/12 2 33 34 1 1
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ipS=pia 9112 20 33 44 11 11
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEELE 8/12 NANER NANER 2/4 11 1
Corporate Governance Function EERHEE
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance =ZEFEEBERBEEEATRZFRIENE
duties in accordance with code provision D.3.1 to the CG Code D3 1EEITHEEERARE  BEEELSE

which are included to develop and review the Company policies
and practices on corporate governance, to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management of the Company, the issuer’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
reviewing the issuer’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, remuneration paid and
payable to the auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are approximately
HK$1,500,000 for audit services and nil for non-audit services
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.

Financial Reporting

The Management has provided to all Directors quarterly updates
with quarterly consolidated financial statement of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the
regular Board meetings. In addition, the Management has provided all
members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and prospects of the Company
and sufficient information for matters brought before the Board. The
Management will spare no effort to provide all members of the board
with more detailed and promptly monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail in coming future.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group has been conducted at least annually, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and
ensuring adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.
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The Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited with
professional staff in possession of relevant expertise to conduct an
independent review of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016, in order to ensure and enhance (i) proper process used to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks; (i) main features of
the risk management and internal control systems were identified; (i)
the systems were designed to manage the risks to achieve business
objectives and provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss; (iv) appropriate process to resolve material
internal control defects; and (v) effective procedures and internal
controls for inside information management.

The Company has an internal audit function. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group annually and considered that
the systems were effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Po Ling Pauline is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial services provider as its
Company Secretary. The primary corporate contact person of the
Company is Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Wong
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put their
enquiries to the Board

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@cafgroup.hk or by mail to the principle
address of the Company at Units 03-05, 17/F., K. Wah Centre,
191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt
with in timely manner. The Shareholders are also encouraged to
attend the AGM and extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”)
of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board directly.
Notices are duly being circulated to the Shareholders in order to
ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the
EGM. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the
senior Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond
to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy forms and
will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and EGM orally in the
beginning of the aforesaid meetings.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may include a resolution to be considered at an
EGM. The requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting”.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company (www.
cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had not been any
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) is
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8090). The Company with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “We”), focuses
on its business in (i) financial guarantee and consultancy services;
(i) software development services; and (iii) online trading platform
services.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) report is our first
report outlining our commitments and strategies to environmental
protection, social responsibility and governance. Our report provides
an overview of the environment, community, employment and labour
practices and operation convention for the year ended 31 December
2016, with a coverage of the Company’s Hong Kong office and its
other operation sites. Our report serves the following purposes:

o Ensuring that our environment, social and governance
performance is clearly and openly communicated with our
stakeholders; and

o Stimulating discussion with and soliciting input from our
stakeholders in the shaping of our business.

° Making disclosure of how the Group complies with the “Comply
or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. (the “HKEX ESG Reporting Guide”) in the current
financial year.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This report covers material issues arising from the Company’s
principal activities in Hong Kong and its other operation sites during
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.
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R HERERERE

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT

In wake of the pollutions to the planet and the sustainable
development of our world, The Group are committed to the
responsible use of resources and waste reduction. We are aware of
our indirect impacts on the environment as we render our services to
our clients and have integrated various environmental considerations
into our daily business operations.

Meanwhile, we always stay alert to the updates in relevant
regulations and guidelines and from time to time review and refine our
environmental protection approach for the purposes of compliance.

We are eager to manage the carbon missions and other emissions
such as paper waste generated from our business activities while
our clients are also encouraged to engage in our campaign of
environment protection.

Below set out our initiatives to reach the goal:

° To eliminate the waste production by introducing 3R concept,
namely, “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”.

° Reduce Carbon dioxide (CO2) emission, which is one of the
major culprits behind the existing abnormal climate change, as
manifested in global warming.

Green Office

We are eager to cultivate a green, healthy culture through the
concerted efforts of our staff. by educating them the awareness of
optimizing energy use efficiency through our all-round corporate
training.

Paper Reduction

We have identified and are aware of the notifiable use of paper
arising from our rendering services to our clients. Therefore, where
practicable, double-sided printing is always adopted at office. Staff
are also encouraged to re-use the one side printed paper to avoid
the extra use of paper. Also, the advent of electronic communication
not only brings us the convenience to our businesses, but also
comes with a remarkable decline in the amount of paper use.
Where possible, E-communication is widely implemented in our
correspondence with clients.
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Electricity

We cherish electricity as an indispensable yet valuable resource
that empowers our business activities, which should be used in an
efficient and responsible manner.

Staff are reminded to turn off the electrical appliances such as
computers and lighting system when they are not in use. Air
conditioning systems are tuned to a room temperature and properly
zoned in our offices to help optimise the use of electricity.

Conferencing call

Where possible, conference calls are preferred to face-to-face
meetings, which serves as an ideal alternative to curtain the carbon
footprints generated from transportation.

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE

The Group is wholly dedicated to creating a diverse, supportive
and rewarding workplace that encourages collaborations and
open communication across different levels of our employees; an
environment that allows our staff to realise their full potentials which in
turn enables them to succeed at work and in life. We regard our team
as parts of our united body in our journey to business growth.

Talent Acquisition and Retention

We strongly value talents as a pivotal asset to the Group in support of
the sustainable development of our businesses. We are determined
to create an appealing workspace that helps garner the potential
talents to help contribute to the success of our businesses.

The Group offers competitive and comprehensive remuneration and
benefit packages to the employees commensurate with their skills,
knowledge and capabilities. Eligible staff are entitled to maternity
leave, paternity leave, bereavement leave and, in the event of work
injury, injury leave, and they are insured in strict compliance with
the national laws and local regulations in relation to insurance and
retirement policies. As a token appreciation to the dedicated staff
for their outstanding performance and professionalism exemplified
at work, eligible staff are entitled to, on top of their basic salary,
performance bonus and allowances which are determined and
reviewed on a regular basis in an open and just manner.
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The Group values staff’'s work-life balance and personal development,
and has set out strict guidelines to discourage our employees
from working overtime. In the event of unavoidable and reasonable
overtime from work, upon approval from the management, the staff
shall be granted the compensation leave equivalent to the overtime or
overtime pay.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and
Anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunities employer, we strive to recruit staff in an
open and fair manner, irrespective of age, gender, race, colour,
descent, ethnic background, nationality, disability, veteran status,
citizenship, religion, sexual orientation and marital status. We uphold
diversity and varieties as the intrinsic factors contributing to the
success and sustainability of our business development. Meanwhile,
the Group has in place comprehensive and transparent mechanism
to review and evaluate the performance of our employees objectively.

COMPOSITION OF OUR PEOPLE
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At all times, we have strict compliance with the Hong Kong’s
Employment Ordinance and other local and national applicable legal
requirements to safeguard the interest of our employees. We show
no tolerance to any unethical labour practices at our workplace,
including child labour and forced labour. For the year ended 31
December 2016, there were no reported cases of child labour and
forced labour in the Group.
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O Reported case of child labour and

force labour during the financial year 2016.
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Occupational Health and Safety

We understand how essential occupational health and safety is to the
sustainable development of our businesses. We strive to safeguard
the safety and well-being of our employees by enhancing their
awareness of health and safety issues at workplace. For example, in
wake of the health hazard brought from passive smoking, staff are
only allowed to smoke.in the designated area. Generally, smoking is
widely prohibited in the Group’s offices.
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Besides, we have standardised procedures and instruction in place
for our staff in the event of safety accidents at workplace. Our staff
are also required to make immediate report to their supervisors to
solicit for the best protective remedy.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has received O
report related to occupational injury from our staff.
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EMPLOYEES WHO RECEIVED TRAINING IN 2016
R=T—"FERENIET

I Middle Management
FEEEAS

B Senior Management
SREEAS

Junior Staff and Technical Staff
MFETFFMAE

Average Hours of Training Per Employee in 2016

Senior Management
Middle Management
Junior Staff and Technical Staff

Training and Continual Development

We value the growth of our employees, they are key to the sustainable
business growth. We have policies and systems in place to nurture
them with comprehensive and continuous training and development,
where they are granted all sorts of learning opportunities that will
equip them with industry-specific knowledge as well as technical and
management skills to help them excel at work and in life.

Our Staff are encouraged to register courses which aligns with their
professional development objectives. They are eligible to apply for
financial assistance or reimbursement to cover the cost of approved
fees in respect of registration of the recognised courses they have
attended.

In 2016, eligible staff received training on the development and
management of the private equity fund, as well as the future trend
and the potential challenges facing the market to improve their skills
and knowledge of providing quality financial guarantee services.
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COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
Supply Chain Management

In line with our commitment to maintaining quality corporate
governance, high standards of ethics, transparency, responsibility and
integrity are ingrained in our core beliefs.

Product Responsibility

Quiality assurance in the provision of our services is one of the biggest
drivers to the Group’s long term business success. We strive to make
our clients confide in us and enjoy the best customer experience with
our following user-friendly and reliable objectives:

(a) IT Support Services to Online Commodity Trading

To support the long-term development of our online commodity
trading business. In 2016, the Company had entered into an
agreement with other parties to set up a joint venture in the PRC
for the development and sale of computer systems in relation to
commodities exchange.

Such computer systems can bring together the trading
chains of the business-to-business trading and business-
to-customer trading and form a closed loop of business-to-
business-to-customer trading, which can shorten the trading
chain. The computer systems can be used in different aspects
in commodities exchange, including the trading system
of commodities and their derivatives, the platform of fund
settlement, the traceability system to trace the source of the
commodities using Radio-Frequency |dentification, the platform
of financing, the logistic management platform which can be
used to trace the commodities via the global positioning system
and the platform for business-to-customer.

With these IT support services in place, our online trading
platform will become more user-friendly that our clients find it
reliable to use that will hopefully bring us with more potential
clients.
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(b) Client’s Data Privacy and Security Protection

Data privacy and security are in our first priority in rendering
our services to our clients. These areas reasonably become
the concerns of our clients when they are, in particular, making
transactions on our online trading platform. We have wide range
of policies and procedures in place and closely adhere to all
relevant laws and regulations to protect our clients’ privacy and
security to ensure they have the best customer experience.

Our staff are also obliged to comply with the code of
confidentiality which stipulates the extent to which how the
sensitive information held at the Group from its normal business
activities should be handled and disseminated to safeguard the
interests of both the Group and our clients.

Anti-Corruption

We allow zero-tolerance toward bribery and corruption in any form
and at any level in connection with the Group’s activities. We have
all round mechanisms to ensure that ethical business practices are
adopted. We have also stipulated the standard behavior expected
on our employees covered in the code of conducts. They are well
advised of our prescribed rules in relation to the acceptance of gifts
or entertainment, conflict of interests and outside employment. Any
persons who violate our company policies and applicable laws and
regulations shall be subject to disciplinary action or even civil or
criminal liability. For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were
no reported cases of bribery and corruption in our Group.

COMMITMENT TO OUR COMMUNITY

As a responsible enterprise, we are keen on maintaining a good
relationship with the larger community which is the foundation of
our businesses. We invest in our community based on the following
values:

° Pose a positive impact on people, cultures and communities in
which we operate.

° Respect cultural and social differences.

° Ensure communities are promptly informed of and involved in
our organizational development that will affect them.

(b)) EFEEBILEBREZEHRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERERE

The Group are aware of the inadequate support received by the ANEBEBRMERAZ FEHGEMEZZEDN
underprivileged group in our community and are committed to giving & * BPIERE A FEEMEETF o TwENHD
them a helping hand. We are proud to be involved in sponsorship on & BIREE @ HFIH L2 BE BT B
a local and national level. To promote our core belief of “Help others = » A#EER M BIA BB 2 & OES
to help themselves”, we provide sponsorship through a local non- @B —RETBFRBNR A Z A IE
profit charitable organisation recognised by the HKSAR government & F|ZE=EEIZHED) - ZBERE 7T :

which aims at:

e helping students from poverty-stricken families in the PRC to o  HEIREREREZ FEIZ LSRN AE
finish their tertiary education so that they are more equipped to HE  FHELFAREXEIETERERE
start their careers; and P54

e providing children who lack family care in Hong Kong with a o  EBEBRESIEAE - ARZRER
better learning environment and diversified learning opportunities Bz BEBREREREEFTRERS T
though the sponsored after-school support programs. {LEEHE -

We are hopeful that our commitment can bring a positive influence to  FFIEIE AT ¥t EAERIEMEMZE - WiRBHE
our community and help foster a culture of philanthropy that makes  EZEEXL @ FAHLEFME « BREERE -
our community more harmonious and sustainable.
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IBDO

EEE 1 +8522218 8288
{8H 1 +852 28152239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHEPI1E
K&HIDL251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
84 to 223, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

BB RS

BRRELEE

REESZEXHE  BREZZHESES
BERRAME G EMBRRTRERE LS
B BEEERGEVBRRABIMESE
RERELEER  MIAERHEERER
BRER -

Key audit matter

FREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

EREMARELER

Valuation of investment properties (Refer to Note 5.8 and

REMEME F2HAGREMBHRAMTS.8%16)

16 to the consolidated financial statements).

The Group has investment properties in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Such investment
properties are measured at fair value and the aggregated
carrying amount of the investment properties was
RMB132.9 million as at the end of the reporting date.
BERERFEARKNE ([PE]) HEREME -
ZEREMERATEGE  ERREHRZAR
HE1E A AR 132,900,000 7T °

The determination of the fair value of the investment
properties was highly judgmental and required significant
management assumptions and inputs, all of which
impact on determining the carrying value of the Group’s
investment properties as at the end of the reporting
date. These investment properties were also valued by
an external valuer using market approach.
REMERNFEZETBRERKBEHE - AFERE
BEEAREZRBARE 22X EINELRH
REVMENRBERRZFREAECET - ZFREY

F B HINEEEMATISAGE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation assessment
performed by management included:

BEFEEEEMETHEARE IR

—  Evaluating the independent valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— BT GER AL 4 REREE
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Key audit matter

FAREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

E ARG e 8]

Valuation of investment properties (Refer to Note 5.8 and

KREWEMLE (F2HEAMBRRMES.8%16) °

16 to the consolidated financial statements).

We have identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the
valuation methodology involves significant management
judgements with respect to unobservable inputs.
EEBREMELERBRERSTE  BAHEY
REMBHRRZEREE  MEBERESRER
Bt T B R ABIRIEEAHIE -

— Conducting in-depth discussions with
management and the independent valuer about
the valuation inputs and comparing the significant
unobservable inputs made by the valuer against
those we had independently obtained;

— BEESASKREEERERERBULGEMETRA
AlER A ERDPTVE L 2 A AT E R 8 A B
BREE T HSE

— Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions; and
— HMEEERRAAERBERE K&

—  Performing land searches on a sample basis to
ensure the investment properties were owned by
the Group as the end of the reporting period.

—  HEETIHEN  BRREMENRE RS
EEEREF -
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Key audit matter

FAREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

E ARG e 8]

Impairment of intangible assets (Refer to Note 5.11 and 18

BIEERE (F2HGFAMBEMRMEES.11518)

to the consolidated financial statements).

The Group had intangible assets with a carrying amount
of RMB1,051 million as at the end of the reporting
period, which relates to its cash generating units (the
“CGUs”) within the segment of online trading platform

services.

Ex@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁ% 051,000,000 7T
LEVEE BEELXSHTaRBITANZREE
FENER -

Management has performed impairment test on these
intangible assets in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies and concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the intangible assets. This
conclusion was based on the value-in-use calculations.

ERBRESEEZSTTHE  BEREEERER
A EmARERTEENRRIE - thiwm S A
REEEERER -

We have identified impairment assessment of intangible
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because
the value-in-use calculations involve significant
management judgements with respect to the underlying
cash flow forecasts, in particular pre-tax discount rate,
cash flows, future revenue growth, of the CGUs.
EEBNNBLEEREN L RARERZEER AR
HUGREUBmECEANRE - M EstEEREE

B RE iiﬁ‘ﬂﬁi*ﬁfﬁﬁmé?ﬁ A (CHEEREES
BUuzBRHAMRE  ReRE LARRKGEER)
VEE R HIE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment

performed by management included:

EEREREMETRENGARZRF B

— Considering the historical accuracy of
management’s budgeting processes;

— BREEEARETNTEERER ZERL

—  Evaluating the independent valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

—  FHMABNLERI EE - e I REEIRE

— Conducting in-depth discussions with
management and the independent valuer about
the cash flow projections used in the value-in-use
calculations and assessing the appropriateness of
the significant assumptions and critical judgement
areas which affect the value-in-use calculations;

— HEAEEAEERER Zfﬁé—a/ﬁéfﬁ\‘ﬁu HEIE
BRB I HEMETRANG® - WalfaF 2R
BEE ZI;ITE”‘“&F'%UIJ“ EARE

— Benchmarking the growth rates and discount
rates used in the value-in-use calculations against
independent industry data and comparable
companies;

— UBYTERBBERRBARREE  LEFEE
REERAZIERRNEERE
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Key audit matter

FAREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

E ARG e 8]

Recognition of gain on bargain purchase (Refer to Note 5.

REREBANE (F2HEE

B SRR MITE5.1 }238) ©

1 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements).

The Group had recognised gain on bargain purchase
with an amount of RMB254 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, which relates to capital injection
of RMB120 million into Nanning (China — ASEAN)
Commodity Exchange Company Limited on 7 January
2016.
ERERBE_ZT—RFT_A=+—HILFE®
RERER AUz A R 254,000,000t + JTHERTE

“E-R"F-AtHMEE (vH- £E) BRRS
FREMR A FEE AR 120,000,000 7T ©

The determination of the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities was highly judgmental and required
significant management assumptions and inputs, all of
which impact on determining the recognition of gain on
bargain purchase during the year ended 31 December
2016. The identifiable assets and liabilities were also
valued by an external valuer.

AIHRIEE KRB R R TE BT B2 SR KRR
THEERBBIEFEARRLBAZRE 2988

NEEEEEREE-_S—"F+A=+—HL
FREERZREBEAWEZ - ZEFFHAIEERAR

e mIMNE L EREE -

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of gain on
bargain purchase performed by management included:

EEHEEEMEIAREBARGZAAZIEFE
SEE

—  Evaluating the independent valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

—  FHMABMEERCEE e I REEEE

— Conducting in-depth discussions with
management and the independent valuer about
the cash flow projections used in the fair value
calculations and assessing the appropriateness of
the significant assumptions and critical judgement
areas which affect the fair value calculations;

— ?ﬁﬁ+§2$ﬁﬁ%1§)ﬂzfﬁéiﬁ§ﬁ°ﬁﬂ HEIEE
KB ERETTRA %1&%% ~FHE

AEZIZRK &?ﬁ%@i#u“ x%?:ﬁ’é;?:
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Key audit matter

FAREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

E ARG e 8]

Recognition of gain on bargain purchase (Refer to Note 5.
REEE AW (F2HGaeMBImREAM 5.1 K%38) -

1 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements).

We have identified recognition of gain on bargain
purchase as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because the fair value calculations involve significant
management judgements and assumptions including
future cash flows and discount rate applied.
EEBNERREBAN S RAREZEE AR
HEBGAMBBMEZIERNEE - MEAERTEY
NERERETARKIR®RE MR RIEE K H G
MR °

— Benchmarking the growth rates and discount
rates used in the fair value calculations against
independent industry data and comparable
companies; and

— UBYTERBEERBEARREE  LEFERQ
FERMAZERELUEE &

— Engaging our in-house experts to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions used in the fair value
calculations.

— EaSZNBERBEEZFFER
Bz E2REEERE -

AEHELT
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Key audit matter

FAREZSE

How the matter was address in our
audit

E ARG e 8]

Impairment of account and other receivables (Refer to Note 5.13 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements).

YRR N EAh R R IR 2 R (B (FE2BI%R & IS iR Mt

F5.13%24) o

The Group had account and other receivables with a
carrying amount of RMB175.5 million as at the end of
the reporting period.
BEEN®EHAREREEARR 175,500,000 7T

2 FEMSBR TR N Ho A FE LR IE -

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, management takes into consideration
the past collection history of the debtors and the current
market condition which may require management
judgements.

HAERTBAREBEZEPRIER  BEEZRET
BEFABE ZEREEEARRE 2B - &R
AT IREEH K -

We have identified impairment of account and other
receivables as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because the impairment assessment involve significant
management judgements.

T E B YRR B A BRI 2 BB AR E
REE AREHGEMBHRERIERNREE - L
BB R EIREIEE AR HE -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
performed by management included:
EEREEEMETRENEEB I EFEE

— Discussing with management of the Group about
the Group’s procedures on credit limits and credit
periods given to debtors;

— NEEEAMETEBAGERBREERMZ
BrHEEEEERERN

— Evaluating the management’s impairment
assessment of account and other receivables; and

—  FHEEIEE B AR R R H M R U R IE 2 R E T
it &

—  Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of account and other receivables.

— BT REWERR N H A R IE R E AT
RER 2 EwE AR -
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

BB RS

FHP 2 HwER

EXRAUEMERAZRR - Rt ERBRE
HRERRFRZER  ENBREEAMTE
WREEZEZRBENRE

BEEHG AV BRRFLCEATERER
ER - MEFTSHEBERBERTAT
WA Ty E
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ZE1E
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

BB RS
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be commmunicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew
Practising Certificate Number P04092
Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SREZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - — X XF+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—NE —T—AhF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B EE ARET T ARETTT
Revenue Wz 8 676,123 26,066
Other income E bl A 8 59,508 7,048
Gain on bargain purchase BREBAYRE 38 254,040 61,113
Selling expenses HER X (599,489) —
Administrative and operating expenses 1T [ ‘&8 5% (229,828) (48,834)
Finance costs B AR 10 (38,538) (18,640)
Equity-settled share-based payment VARRAD B EAES 3R
expenses (A AZR) Ax 37 viii) (68,136) (68,469)
Fair value changes in investment REMENTESE
properties 16 19,741 —
Fair value changes in derivative MTEeREEANTEE
financial assets 34 (10,314) (2,326)
Share of (loss)/profit of associate FERERENTE (B18) &F 21 (312) 1,054
Profit/(loss) before income tax Frisfiana®,~ (E518) 9 62,795 (42,988)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigsise,” (Fx) 12 27,812 (3,850)
Profit/(loss) for the year RER &M, (E1E) 90,607 (46,838)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Efth 2 MYz - HIFRIA
ltems that may be reclassified to ARSI B
profit or loss subsequently
Exchange loss on translation of HIIBIME & TS
financial statements Msmk B EE
of foreign operations (13,805) (1,670)
ltems that will not be classified to “gHAB=EAIER ¢
profit and loss:
Revaluation surplus upon transfer XTEAEEETR
of owner-occupied leasehold b A
buildings and land use rights to WEYFE 2 BfLRBER
investment properties - 50,777
Deferred tax liabilities arising BERMESEEEZ
from revaluation of properties BERIBAE
upon transfer - (12,694)
— 38,083
Other comprehensive income REFHM 2 IR LS
for the year, net of tax HBREIE (13,805) 36,413
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNF[E 2 E W28 B 58 76,802 (10,425)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:  FEE ANF 3 F,~ (B518) -
Owners of the Company PiN/NSIEZ =N 116,084 (47,671)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR R 2 (25,477) 833
90,607 (46,838)
Total comprehensive income fEE R EREE AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARaEER A 102,279 (11,258)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR R 2 (25,477) 833
76,802 (10,425)
Earnings/(loss) per share — Basic BREN (BE) — &K
(RMB cents) (AE#ES) 13 6.90 2.91)
Earnings/(loss) per share — Diluted Bhar, (BE) —#F 84
(RMB cents) (AEES) 13 6.76 (2.91)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z—"F+_-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AREFT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B K& 15 30,981 21,765
Investment properties WEYE 16 132,900 130,990
Land use rights s A 17 3,946 4,135
Intangible assets B EE 18 1,050,686 150,125
Deposits paid [EANE&n 19 23,500 23,500
Prepayments AT FIE 20 37,784 120,750
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 23 1,000 —
Interests in associate iGN - e 21 2,142 2,454
1,282,939 453,719
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FEHEME 22 1,859 42,723
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 23 600 —
Account and other receivables JEU R X K H A fEUN kI8 24 175,494 105,698
Short term loan receivable R HEIE R 25 - 72,300
Amounts due from related parties FEUL R E TS 3R IB 26 105,535 —
Derivative financial assets PESRMEE 34 14,741 23,856
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITES 27 55,120 60,137
Restricted bank deposits SR BRITFER 28 19,197 19,400
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEEHEEAR
— held on behalf of customers REEFFAE 29 153,486 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEEEE
— general accounts — —RRERP 30 15,812 73,492
541,844 397,606
Current liabilities REEE
Account and other payables FERTFIA R HAD B BUR 31 335,095 112,020
Other borrowings HmfEE 32 53,714 110,760
Convertible bonds AR E A 34 130,156 —
Finance lease liabilities mEHERR 33 855 684
Current tax liabilities BIEAfIE & 1 12,651 9,858
532,471 233,322
Net current assets REBEEEEHE 9,373 164,284
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERRBHEE 1,292,312 618,003
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other borrowings Hibg s 32 73,588 —
Convertible bonds AN ES 34 = 118,530
Finance lease liabilities mEHEaRE 33 1,895 979
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEBE 39 276,936 49,337
352,419 168,846
EEFE 939,893 449,157

8 5 Net assets

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z—"F+_-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE AR¥ET T ARETIT
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners ARTEEAEGER
of the Company
Share capital %N 35 13,757 13,653
Reserves 1 36 557,964 378,513
571,721 392,166
Non-controlling interests IR 368,172 56,991
Total equity FERBE 939,893 449,157

On behalf of the Board
REEEE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam ESlE %4
Director %

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon X 854

Director %

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———

86



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
FATRAAERES FERES BEAE
Convertible Property Retained
Share Share Share  bondsequity revaluation Statutory profit
capital premium Exchange option reserve reserve Reserve  (accumulated
(Note 35)  (Note 36(a) reserve reserve  (Note36(b)  (Note 36(c)  (Note 36(d) loss) Total
TRRESRE
R RipEE fife  MEEHHE  tedEE  RERA/
(H3E35)  (KiEE36(a) EiGE  BRERE  (WEeb)  (MEssl)  (HEsed)  (RiER) At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTL  ARETR  ARMTT  ARETR  ARMTT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

At1 January 2015 RZZ-1F-A-H 13,084 167,560 10,675 26,336 - - - (15,503 201,182 7416 208,568
Acquisttion of subsiciares eEnEng - - - - - - - - - 48742 4874

Equity-setfled share-based RENRRBEERH

payment granted (Note 37) ( f737) - - - 68,469 - - - - 68469 - 68,469
Exercise of share options (Note 35) /I(EBRIE (12 21 3014 - [l - - - - 2318 - 2318
Lapse of share options (Note 37) BRI (Hiz£37) - - - (20619 - - - 20619 - - -
Issue of new shares Bakh 548 97,783 - - - - - - 98,331 - 98,331
Recognition of equity component - BT AR EHESR

of convertiole bonds (Note 34) - - - - 33,154 - - - 33,154 - 33,154
Transaction with owners 569 100,797 - 47133 38,154 - - 20,619 202,212 48,742 251,014
Loss for the year TEREE - - - - - - - (47,671) (47,671) 833 (46,83)
Other comprehensive income~~ AFEEM 2

for the year: &

Exchange differences on RERMIZER

iranglation of fivancial fpsieod

statements of foreign ERzE

operations - - (1,670) - - - - - (1,670) - (1,670)
Revaluation suplus on cate of ~ ¥TEAEERT

transfer of owner-occupied REpERERA

leaschold buidings and land ~~~ FEMEREZ

use rights to investment EhRH

properties - - - - - 50,777 - - 50,777 - 50,777
Deforred tax labilties arsng~~ ERENEEREL

from revaluation of JEHERRE

properties upon transfer - - - - - (12,694) - - (12,694) - (12,694)
Totel comprehensive income. - AEE 2 EMEEE

forthe year - - (1670 - - 38083 - ) (11,258) 83 (10425)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-1f

1 January 2016 TZA=+-Ak

“2-~5-A-H 13,653 268,357 9,005 72,469 33,154 38,083 - (42,555) 392,166 56,991 449,157
Acqistion of subsidiaries IEEMBAR (H3E3s)

INote 38) - - - - - - - - - 33,658 336,658
Equity-settled share-based RHRHREERF

payment granted (Note 37) (BRAZEE)(Hza7) - - - 68,136 - - - - 68,136 - 68,136
Exercise of share options (Note 35) /76 BRIE (i:£35) 104 11,993 - (2,957) - - - - 9,140 = 9,140
Lapse of share options (Note 37) R (Hiz£37) - - - (11,793) - - = 11,793 = = =
Appropriations to statutory reserve £ e #3 - - - - - - 2425 (2,425) - - -
Transaction with owners HEARS 104 11,993 - 53,386 - - 2425 9,368 11,276 336,658 413,934
Profi for the year TEFET - - - - - - - 116,084 116,084 (25,411) 90,607
Other comprehensiveincome ~~ AFEEH 2N :

for the year:

Exchange differences on REENMIEER

iranslation of fivancial fp st

statements of foreign EXZE

operations - - (13,805) - - - - - (13,805) - (13,805)
Transfer of revaluation HERENER

surplus on disposals of EEERRG

investment properties - - - - - (5,184) - 5,184 - - -
Total comprehensiveincome - AEF2ANGIAE

forthe year - - (13,805) - - (5,184) - 121,268 102219 (25477) 76,802
At 31 December 2016 RIEE

T-A=1-H 13,757 280,350 (4,800) 125,855 33,154 32,899 2425 86,081 571,721 368,172 939,893

8/
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 ARBT T AREF T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EFFHHEHRE
Profit/(loss) before income tax Fris®isnas, (&) 62,795 (42,988)
Adjustments for: AR
Amortisation for land use rights s PR A 8 17 189 440
Amortisation for intangible assets A A 18 59,889 7,675
Loss on disposals of property, W BE&
plant and equipment RELEER 9 921 125
Depreciation of property, Yz - WE K
plant and equipment BiETE 15 8,462 4,218
Loss/(gain) on disposals of properties ~ F{EHEDELE
held for sale &8, () 9 12,441 (4,090)
Loss on disposals of investment HEREMEEE
properties 9 3,079 —
Bank interest income |ITHBHA 8 (10,270) (2,401)
Equity-settled share-based LARZ D BE R 5K
payment expenses (A AZER) A 37 viii) 68,136 68,469
Fair value changes in derivative MTEemEEATEE
financial assets 34 10,314 2,326
Fair value changes in investment REMENTHEE
properties 16 (19,741) -
Gain on bargain purchase BREB AN 38 (254,040) 61,113
Impairment loss on accounts receivable  FEUBR ZR (B EE 24 - 3,000
Reversal of impairment loss on FEUR BR FURE B 1B
accounts receivable o 24 (1,043) —
Share of loss/(profit) of associate (LB N REE, Cafl)) 21 312 (1,054)
Finance costs BE AR 10 38,538 18,640
Operating loss before working EEESEHA
capital changes ISR (20,018) (6,753)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts EUERFOR A (3Em) -
receivable, net of deferred income BB A 4,526 (14,885)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, EHth B FRIE « FaARTFIA
prepayments and deposits Kizemd, (38hm) 31,083 —
Increase in amounts due from JFE Uk B8 3 X B RIEE hN
related companies (105,535) (24,518)
Decrease in entrusted loan receivables  ERZEEFUR D - 18,000
Decrease in accounts payable FETER SR (618) —
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FEETE A N H b FE T 308
and other payable O g (1,121,489) 3,580
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BB IR TR
bank deposits B, (1) 5,017 (15,388)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted ZRRFIRITIF K
bank deposits L, (3gm) 203 (699)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & K38 S (EIE H #0
— held on behalf of customers REFRHAE 951,886 —
Net cash used in operations KEEIFTA 2 e F58 (254,945) (40,663)
Interest received BUFI B 10,270 2,616
Income tax paid ERETSH (4,590) (1,521)
Net cash used in operating activities && EEBFFAZRE T (249,265) (39,568)

88
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —T-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T AR¥TTT
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Net cash outflow arising from the UWEEKIBARIEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries We w5 38 (79,522) (7,3593)
Payment for acquisition of associate g1 VN A NE-N - (1,400)
Decrease/(increase) in short term loan  JEW G HRE =X
receivable B, (1) 72,300 (72,300)
Proceeds from disposals of properties & {EH E ¥
held for sale PG RIE 191,133 12,215
Proceeds from disposals of investment  H &R EWEFTE
properties I8 14,752 —
Additions to land use rights NE L Hb{F 17 - (210)
Increase in available-for-sale investments AJ it & 1 1 (250) —
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments EETEN IR
for capital injection w (1) 20 82,216 (120,750)
Additions to property, plant and NEYE - WE MR
equipment (13,934) (15,715)
Additions to intangible assets REEFEE (1,077) —
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - BEK
plant and equipment BTSSR 506 116
Increase in receipts in advance FEULFR AL N (47,740) 1,896
Net cash from/(used in) investing RETEEL (FiA)
activities ZBREFHE 218,384 (203,501)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBHRERE
New proceeds from borrowings EEFS IR F5E 44,759 123,052
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (36,270) (58,185)
Repayments of obligations under EIERMEHEIRETEER
finance leases (835) 671)
Net proceeds from exercise TR AR TS R F 5
of share options 9,140 2,318
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHR D PTG 5RIE - 98,331
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT MRES TS
bonds IE - 125,161
Interest paid for convertible bonds BT R ES A E (10,847) —
Interest paid BRFE (24,884) (14,994)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BEES (FTR) EXE
activities ZEEFHE (18,937) 275,012
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBELEEERZ
and cash equivalents CR2) /i mFE (49,818) 31,943
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEERESE 2 EETFHE
changes, net (7,862) (1,336)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZzEER
at 1 January HeLEEH 73,492 42,885
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—H2
at 31 December BeRBEESEEER 15,812 73,492
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The registered office of
the Company is the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 48 to the financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Capital Gain
Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
were approved by the board of directors on 23 March 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

M HRR MR

REER

PERREMEEER AR (XA
A HIZE——F=AT+HRHASH
Sk I EHRRERETRA -
XA )2 7 it 9 B A Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited 2 ## =5z -
#b 1k & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1 —
1111, Cayman Islands ° AN &) Z A% 17
B2 ——F—ANBBREBBER
SHAERARE ([BZA]) 81z ([ Al
MR £ e

RABZ EBEBER/RERER - ARF
B ARz X2 EBFHBRANR I EREK
FiEE48 o AR R EM B AR AT
MIAER] - AAFREERR AR
AlZ &R ER AR R ERE R AR
~E(RE]) —HREBRZES
MR 2 BRAT) e

BE-F-AF+-A=+AILFE
ZUBREDEEF RN - A=
A=t=ABETE -

mEEE
(a) &REH

RAEVBHRAEKEREEER
ZEBUBHREED ([FBMB
BEERA])  FEgs £ (&
BEFER]) MaE (AT5RE
[ERMBHREER]) NEER
ARG 2 X MRS - =50 BF
BHRREEBIMAIERES
MR APTEKABEARKE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq) 2. WMBEE &)

(b) Basis of measurement (b) STEEREZE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, except that investment
properties and derivative financial assets are stated at
their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out in Note 5.5. The significant accounting policies
that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have

A WIS IRIRE L AN E R
B WA IS5 PTE & 5T K
RAT - WEMERITESRT
AR FEYE - ARREZSE
M HmR 2 ERNGF BRI
T BREAEHERHI ZFBRE
RITAFEERER -

been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. #RX#ME A

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) ([ERAMBHHREED D)
3.1 Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — 3.1 BRAFET RIBET &S
effective 1 January 2016 MBHREER — K=
E—RE—A—HAEX
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements BAUBREEN —T—-FF
2012-2014 Cycle (BETXK) etk )
M S i
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative B LA REEHH
EREAEH
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable il BEURIITER
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation F165 R #HEnE
and Amortisation BR G ER
F 3BHEEFI AR
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BB %R BURBREERDE
Financial Statements F2TRETA

BENBRE REEE:
ERIF10% ERE %
BAMBHRE
ERE 125 %

BAGHER
F28RIEFT A

Regulatory Deferral BANBREERN EERLERP

Accounts F14%

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the
Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 14

ROZEETRL TR Y AEH
ZHREEREATE -

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2016 continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

These amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s share of
other comprehensive income from equity accounted
interests in associates and joint ventures is split between
those items that will and will not be reclassified to profit
or loss, and presented in aggregate as a single line item
within those two groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on
revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. This
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset
is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated. The amendments are applied
prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not previously used
revenue-based depreciation methods.

M HRR MR

H
& A
5 o

% A

Bt 15 3R
wEERA]

%

BIR

x 4
([&7
(&)

&1%%%5 E@ﬂ?%
M EHREER -
= —R"FE—F— EIE)&
(&)

1

EREHEAE 1 BETA — 5
BE
ZEETEEL S EMEBE
= B HBM B EE 216 R R AR
EREAE ST ERE RS
PRSI -

BRETEREREGERENE S
REIREEREZ AEREAR
ZREmZ EMEEPA - RE Kk
BT eBEMOBREHEG 2B P
DY WEZFMEHER AR
tERE—IRE 25 -

R
37

AN

ZEER] ANE AR BEHRRIL

o

mh,‘;‘; b=1113

BEAETTERNFI6EREEE
K RSEIBIRIEET AR — BB
SImEREHERS A
ERGEAFE16H 2ERTE
IR BERZ FEHY
¥ WMEREEEEFERATER
E - BB ERNEIHR 2B
SIA—IEAHER BE - B~
EMW SIEREREEBHE &

i o R B E AW T2 sk
A&ﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬂmZﬁﬁT
B R - AL RE&A T
B - ZEERIIRTEHIE SRR -

P AN S [ 5 AT SR A AR U s 4T
BX - BERMZET L N E L
EITEHRER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. F#M T B K H LS %A
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continved) (IEBMEHREED])
(4 )

3.1 Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2016 continued)

F-XE-A—BEX

(%)

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. The amendments are applied retrospectively
in accordance with HKAS 8.

EBETERIE 27 SRIEFT AR 8
SIS IR R R

B AR T EEEEB A
MR NERESELERNE
nEl - BEERBEAAZE
BIEERTRE - BREEIARE
BT ERE B WER -

RAZFETL T ELFHE
WK - BAR AL BN E G
Bk B R AR X ©

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Company has not elected
to apply the equity method in its separate financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2016 continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 — Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements for an intermediate
parent entity is available to a subsidiary of an investment
entity (including investment entities that account for their
subsidiaries at fair value rather than consolidating them).
An investment entity parent will consolidate a subsidiary
only when the subsidiary is not itself an investment entity
and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to provide services
that relate to the investment entity’s investment activities.
A non-investment entity applying the equity method to an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity may
retain the fair value measurements that associate or joint
venture used for its subsidiaries. An investment entity that
prepares financial statements in which all its subsidiaries
are measured at fair value through profit or loss should
provide the disclosures related to investment entities as
required by HKFRS 12. The amendments are applied
prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company is neither an
intermediate parent entity nor an investment entity.

M HRR MR

H
& A

% A

Bt 15 3R
wEERA]

%

BIR

x 4
([&7
(&)

3.1 BTé,%Pﬁﬁ%T §1§ET§/§
M EHREER -
= —R"FE—F— EIE)&
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1

BEBMKEMEERE105 - BB
SR EERNF 12 REEGE
ZRIF 8RBT R — REBRE ¢
FEFHAG?%%

BHEBIRE  RPHEEGRRAE
RBREIEGEMBERE 2 HE =
HARKEEB I HBERAR (8
FiRATFESHE A ARMILE
HHMBRRAGEARZKEER
)  ABEEMBARARHILIFE
BEEEMWBARIZEZEMNR
RHELEERNREEHEH
2% REBEBEARTHE
2B RRISGREAR - HER
REER I BMERRNEGERE
JERERAZIFRERRARE
ZHERNTREEDEENB
NAIBERAZAFEFE - BX
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NTFEFECHAGE - BIARK
BV EMEERE 125 2 E
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

{

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. #x

#

%= A

95

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
Based Payment
Transactions?

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
(Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)?

Leases®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Bt 15 3R
BHE

BIR

& A

(& 211

(%)

1

el 1&g
]

A==

THIEET A

32 E&EM r&jt,mia*&z

BRME

CHESCIE e

R AR B 2 B IR BE
B TR ML B AR H R

BASERZHEMN - NEE B A0
E%EE%%EE'&?&ZHE@EE%
EEE

BAGHER KREE
ENEH TR

BAGHEL RARSREEER
F12REITA  EERIEEE

BAMBRE %R LAJM BEERK
F2RERTA RHZ IR 22

BAMBREERN SMTA?

F9%

BEMBHREEN EPANKE?
F£15%

ERMBEREERN REAONE (B8
F15RETA  BBEREER

F155 2 BE)?

EEMBREER HES
£16%

ERAMEREER REERABENT
F10%K HAEDRZE
BAEEL BENHENER"
F28RBFIA

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al



Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective continueq)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

These introduce an additional disclosure that will enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

These relate to the recognition of deferred tax assets and
clarify some of the necessary considerations, including
how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured of fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions

These provide requirements on the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
that changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at FVTOCI if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are
not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

° Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

° Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarification on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;
and transition requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. In addition, the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective continueq)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

These clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised
when an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate
or joint venture. When the transaction involves a business
the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and financial statements.

4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of
the primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (‘RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year (if any) are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or business is accounted for
using acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure non-controlling interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.1 Basis of consolidation continueq) 51 HFEEX%E &)

103

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRR MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.2 Subsidiaries 5.2 B A7)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the
size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and

Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

B/ A R Ty 48 AN A R AT T{E 12 4
BZWRER - WEFAETHZ
H=ERE= - BIAR T HIHEE
B AT WEIRE ST EREN
FERBWIREH 2R Bk H#E
BERBWHIEEF 2 EZEE
W REEHEREENRTEESR
AR gepk  SESENRENR

FEUR a2 Il 4 P 22 1] A 3R &
@% AlgE R maE
i o

AR AR BRSNS ERE
BRAMEAE  MBARKERZ
g&m@’%ﬁﬁi%&ﬁ%O

EER] 2Rt rak
ARRZREMBRBEERE
no B

RHEMFAEREEALHNEE

n&%ﬂ ZAN/NCIES €Y 30k
D

B 5
N
<

AANR REMBEIREEATA
BFENERBERERE

HiARTHE &

A2 R ZRER -

RH B R R 2 % E B IR AR
EEE (A) sTARRE 2B

MR - HBARZRERAR
AARIER B s e R B B A BB o

104

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———



Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.3 Associates 5.3 Bk&E N T

105
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.3

54

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see Note 5.6), and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

54

9.9

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value-in-use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
derivative financial asset at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.5 Fair value measurement Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.5

109

5.6

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets;

° interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

° investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (except for those classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.6 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

5.7

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see Note
5.4), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-
in-progress (“CIP”), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contives) 5. FEEFTIEEE @)
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5.7 Property, plant and equipment cContinueq)
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Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment,
other than CIP, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3to 5 years

office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
lease term whichever is
the shorter

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.7 Property, plant and equipment continueq)

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is de-recognised and is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

CIP which mainly represents property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct and indirect costs incurred during
the periods of construction, installation and testing. When
the assets concerned are completed and ready for use,
the costs are reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contives) 5. FEEFTIEEE @)
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5.8 Investment properties
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Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. These include land held for future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these are measured at their fair values
using fair value model, unless they are still in the course
of construction or development at reporting date and
their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If investment properties become an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting is its
fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is de-recognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the investment property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in
the period in which the item is de-recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.9 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of properties held for sale is
determined by an apportionment of total land and building
costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
estimated selling price of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred in
selling the properties.

5.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.10 Leases (Continued) 510 *HEE (&)
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Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. Interest element is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line method over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.10 Leases (continued)

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
the lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

5.1 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line method
over their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
expense is recognised as administrative expense in
profit or loss.

Business agreements 10 to 15 years

Trade name 20 years
Business license 20 years
Computer trading and 10 years

clearing system
— Hardware and software

Computer software 3to 10 years
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.11Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 5.11

(Continued)

(i) Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)
Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

° adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

U there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

U the Group is able to sell the product;

° sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of

internal projects is recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.11Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired based on the accounting policy
stated in Note 5.6.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.

5.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have

been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
capital are deducted from capital (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extend they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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M RR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments

i)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and derivative financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the instruments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are initially
recognised at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets
are reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (Continueq)

i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (Continueq)

i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on financial assets has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accruals and
other payables, finance lease liabilities, convertible
bonds and other borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest charges are recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (Continueq)

(ii)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M RR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (Continueq)

(i)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the fair value of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in convertible bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where an option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (Continueq)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. Effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

De-recognition

The Group de-recognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for de-recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued) 5132 ITH &)

(vi)  De-recognition (Continued)
When the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for

(vi) BUERER (&)
RASEEAEFRTESHE
EZA&R - TR —BEREA
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the year. NREzZEZERAFTALEER
5.14 Cash and cash equivalents 514 R ERINEEEEH

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

RekReFEBEEBRERITR
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5.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities 515 BERBAEE

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

515Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

5.16 Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M RR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.16 Income taxes (Continued) 516 FT 5% (&)

127
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Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRR MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.16 Income taxes (Continued) 516 FTS 8 (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary REWB AR -~ BERRRER

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, RHERMEEZERATERE

associates and jointly controlled entities, except where HEeRRARELEHEBERE  EAX
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary EEAEHEREB BRI RE
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference Al gefE A T8 R R g B3 Al

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. BRON o

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when Ffr STHIRERAMER - BRIEA

they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive SR EL P EAth 2 UL a5 R R

income in which case the taxes are also recognised in IE E BEARIERR - MAELLIB)

other comprehensive income or when they relate to items C MBI H A 2 E R INTJE
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are R KRS MIBERNERE
also recognised directly in equity. EHANIEBEEAR mMALER
T ZEBETEERNER AR
5.17 Revenue recognition 517 = TR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the H&/\mﬁAﬂi’il{EﬁT B

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when B 2 &Hﬁl?\ TsEqu 5 1% A

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases: T%ﬁﬁ&am

(@ income from handling charges of trades between the @ 2HELME (FEH - R
participants in eligible commodities transacted on B)EmX2MAERARDT
Nanning (China — ASEAN) Commodity Exchange (IREXZF]) BEEE
Company Limited (‘“NCCE”) is recognised in full on BEmXHER AR
the trade day, upon acceptance of the trades; S8 BN FE2EE

R

(b) income from initial listing fees for commodities are b)) FARBXETERERER
recognised upon the listing of the commodities on B G ATENE_ E TR R
NCCE;

() income from financial guarantee (as the case ) ®BEERABERA (RTHE
may be, including consultancy services related to ME - BIEERTREE
issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised over REBZRERRT) & A
the contract period on a time apportionment basis; b I B 2 42 & 40 HA e

R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.17 Revenue recognition Continueq)

©

income from development and sales of computer
application software systems is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion;

income from provision of maintenance services is
recognised on straight-line method over the terms of
the relevant maintenance service contracts;

income from membership fee is recognised over the
subscription period;

income from management fee is recognised when
services are rendered;

government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense; and

interest income is calculated on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of employees’
salaries to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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MR R MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.19 Share-based payments 519 AR 3 B EE 2 I
Where share options are awarded to employees and EMESRHBRER  RED
others providing similar services, the fair value of the HERZ BIREATFETIREBH
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss RIBEARAER - WS E
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in RIERBIE BT - WIS
share option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting FBEMERARBERENSR
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number EHREBcERTAZEEM
of equity instruments expected to vest at the end of HE - USRRERERBER
each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative ZERFRENERNGEESRB
amount recognised over the vesting period is based RERR BB MatE o MISERE IR
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market Bt AMKEREZ A TFE-
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the REMBAMBBIGHEEN -
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions AT ™SR E IR R EEKX
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the NTEitiEY - RFFEITEH
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative REEXTISHBIRGMIAE -

expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified NI IR 2 R G TR B
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the BRIEIE R - EEEEREE]
options, measured immediately before and after the K&z EREANFEZERTSE
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the #H T BEHARNERRARER -

remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other WiEm TARTREEUINAT R
than employees and others providing similar services, HmRftBEURB AL - 12
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised WM R 2 A ERERE
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for R BRIFEmmEIREE B ER
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity REE- - w2 HIESE INER
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments, R oo ARG AE AR (D AETE
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or ZEmE  AEkRelREm
services received. RIS < A FERER
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M HRR MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.19 Share-based payments (Continued) 519 LU BEB 24K )

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of directly attributable transaction costs up
to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

5.20 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contives) 5. FEEFTIEEE @)
5.20 IN & ()

5.20 Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates or at the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
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not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this F H b 2 TED Lt 2 FE R 1 ] Bl BT
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive )\% & B HE o

income and accumulated separately in the exchange

reserve in equity.

5.21 Related parties 521 BBE R
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family @ fWEATIIER  &ZBAL

LTI FL S EL ol
B AR AEE G

is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group; ) BHAEBEEGI#ESK
H R PR HIRE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or i) HBAEBEEAZE
a1
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) BAEENARQF
the Group or the Company’s parent. NAEEEZEEAER o
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M HRR MR

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.21 Related parties

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

M

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

5. FESEBE »
521 BE T (&)

b) MEATHER  ZEH
44

kma

(5

AR R EANEE A R

U

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

ZEBNASEER
—SEzKE (A%
BRE- WBARLK
CESG) - FNCIERE]L

44,
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>D\HF
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ZERBRASENHE
AEEAHEER

BERA MR B
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 5. FEEEFTEE &)

5.21 Related parties (continueq) 521 BBEFH (&)
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Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5.22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy on “Provisions and contingent
liabilities”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policy on “Revenue
Recognition”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.22 Financial guarantee contracts continueq)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the corresponding liability.

5.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

M HRR MR

5 FESFHEE #)
52 MEEREHN &)

HAKEZLBERER  ERZ
BHRERNIERRELTEA -
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contives) 5. EEZEFBE @)
5.24 B 1 5 BY

5.24 Government grants
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These are recognised when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

5.25 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcome that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities to
be affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

M HRR MR

6. EEEEHIER MG
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 6. F=E=:tHETREET =)
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) FEMEERE

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

139

——— 0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited R R gi{R & BiEE B B R A 7

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU
to which the asset is allocated. Estimating value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will
result in an adjustment to the estimated impairment
provision previously made.

(iii) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is made based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Depreciation
charge is revised if the estimated useful lives of items
of property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Estimated useful lives are reviewed,
at the end of each reporting period, based on changes in
circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iv) Income taxes and deferred taxes

(v)

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of the related
payments. There are many transactions and calculation
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will have
impact on the income tax and/or deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Gain on bargain purchase

The Group recognises gain on purchase from the capital
injection into NCCE, details of which are set out in Note
38 to the consolidated financial statements. Significant
judgement and estimation are required in determining the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities and the
fair value of consideration paid. Where the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the aggregate of
the fair value of consideration paid, the excess amount is
recognised in profit and loss. In determining the fair value,
it requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the identifiable assets and liabilities
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the fair
value. A change in the estimated future cash flows and/
or discount rate applied will result in an adjustment to the
gain on bargain purchase recognised.

M HRR MR
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M RR M

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are
used to make strategic decisions.

During the year, the Group obtained control of NCCE after
having acquired 52.63% of its equity interests (Note 38). The
principal activities of the NCCE are provision of electronic
market platform for trading commodities including non-ferrous
metal, ferrous metal, agricultural products, energy products,
chemical materials, machineries and equipment. The Group
now has three reportable segments which are managed
separately as each business offers different products and
services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments:

—  Provision of financial guarantee and consultancy services;
—  Provision of software development services; and

—  Provision of online trading platform services (New segment
during the year)

For the disclosure requirements under HKFRS 8, the Group
regards the PRC as its country of domicile. All the Group’s
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable to
the PRC, being the single geographical region.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. All revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(a) Reportable segments

Management assesses the performance of each operating
segment based on segment result which represents the
net of revenue, income, gain, costs and expenditures
directly attributable to each operating segment. Central
administrative costs are allocated to the operating
segment as they are not included in the measure of the
segment results that are used by the management for
assessment of segment performance.

M HRR MR
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MR R MR

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. EER @
(a) Reportable segments (Continued) (@) HREDE #)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and RTARFEREERERSE D
results by reporting segment for the year: R M EE DT -
Segment revenue and results PEWRERES
2015
ZE-RE “I-n%
Financial Financial
guarantee Online Quarantee Online
and Software trading and Software trading
consultancy  development platform consultancy development platform
services services services Total senvices senvices sevices Total
BEERR L farz5 REERR B B4
EELi EELT FalkE At R RS Tk it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
AEETT NG S ARETT NG o ARETTL ARETT AREFTRL AREFTL
Revenue W& 14,446 3,550 658,127 676,123 19,233 6,833 - 26,066
Segment profit/{oss) PERF/ (BE) 33,957 (3,183) 189,310 220,134 4052 3439 8,275 (784)
Corporate income — Others ¥\ — Hi 2,316 61,501
Central administrative AT REERA
and finance costs (53,393) (36,760)
Fair value changes in dervative  §T£ 2 BEEATERY
financial assets (10,314) (2.326)
Share option expenses ERERR (68,136) (68,469)
Profi/oss) for the year TEERR/ (BB) 90,607 (46,838)
Segment profit/(loss) represents profit/(loss) earned by D¥EF (BR) BE D ERE
each segment without allocation of corporate income, Z/ﬁﬁﬂ/ (B18) Ko ER
share option expenses, fair value changes in derivative - BRERY  TTEeREE

financial assets and central administrative and finance
costs. This is the information reported to management
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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M HRR MR

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. 2EER @

(a) Reportable segments (Continueq) (@) |WED2E @

Segment assets DEEE
Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and liabilities WESBCEERBENAT
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Provision of financial guarantee RHEE R KA ARG
and consultancy services 345,267 358,689
Provision of software development 12 ft & {459 3% AR 75
services 11,610 17,229
Provision of online trading platform 248 -2 5 F & IRiE
services 1,361,121 146,802
Total segment assets DHREERE 1,717,998 522,720
Unallocated AROBC 106,785 328,605
Consolidated assets MEEE 1,824,783 851,325
Segment liabilities DEEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Provision of financial guarantee RHBE R KA ARG
and consultancy services (93,790) (218,629)
Provision of software development 24 FH 3L AR
services (4,492) (6,356)
Provision of online trading platform 1248 32 5 F & IRiE
services (541,399) (113)
Total segment liabilities NIERERE (639,681) (225,098)
Unallocated vl (245,209) (177,070)
Consolidated liabilities re8aE (884,890) (402,168)
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MR R MR

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 7EER »
(@) Reportable segments Continueq) (@) BWETE @
Other segment information Higp &R
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit/(loss) AES R (B1R) okEE
or segment assets: EROENSE -
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZEZ—R"E+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Financial Online
guarantee Software trading
and consultancy development platform
services services services Total
MERRR g BEXZ
B BB MR LAk &gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR¥TR AR%Tn
Additions to property, plant RENE  BE
and equipment B 5,195 7 7,098 12,300
Additions to intangible assets NEENEE - - 960,450 960,450
Depreciation of property, mE - BERE
plant and equipment e (2,572) (214) (4,412) (7,198)
Amortisation of prepaid BNREFIEEH
lease payments (189) - - (189)
Amortisation of intangible assets B BE#H - (413) (59,476) (59,889)
Interest expenses MERZ (32 - - (32
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M HRR MR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. 7HEER @
(@) Reportable segments (Continueq) (@) BWETE @
Other segment information (Continued) HittpBER (£2)
Year ended 31 December 2015 B2-_Z—hF+=-A=+—H
LFEE
Financial Online
guarantee Software trading
and consultancy  development platform
services services services Total
BMERRK Eages RBERS
AR %R FamR% Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Additions to property, plant RNENE  BE
and equipment B 11,382 2,577 6 13,965
Additions to intangible assets RNEEWEE - 3,800 154,000 157,800
Depreciation of property, mE - BERE
plant and equipment e (2,601) (119) (1) 2,721)
Amortisation of prepaid BNREFIEEH
lease payments (440) - — (440)
Amortisation of intangible assets B BEH - (247) (7,428) (7,675)
Impairment loss on accounts MR R AR
receivable (3,000) — — (3,000)
Interest expenses MERX 69) - - 69)
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M RR M

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 8.

Revenue which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
income from online trading platform services, income from
provision of financial guarantee and consultancy services,
income from development and sales of computer application
software systems and provision of maintenance services.
Revenue and other income recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Wz K EL A A

Wan JREIANER B 2 ‘56 RE - A E R
ZF & R ?‘mf\rﬂﬁ%ﬂ%&m Fialild

% - BRI NIEE

EH- i AEENE S
KRR 2 WA - &

E-F—R

FR_E-RAFT-_A=t—HILLFE
EHER W R E AT

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Revenue sk
Income from online trading platform HLERSFERB WA
services
— handling charges of trading — RHFEE 651,539 —
— initial listing fees of commodities — EmERLETE 6,588 —
Income from financial guarantee and KB REERNM AR
consultancy services Z WA 14,446 19,233
Income from development and sales KB R RIS B E R
of computer application software R F LA R HE RS < WA
systems and maintenance services 3,550 6,833
676,123 26,066
Other income HABKA
Bank interest income ERITHBULA 10,270 2,401
Sales of properties held for sale HERFIEHED S 22,450 4,090
Government grants and sundry income B 0 B Rz FETEU A 859 557
Recovery of doubtful accounts U B FE R BR
receivable (Note 24) 1,043 —
Reversal of impairment loss on [0 H Ath FE Y SR IE RV E B 18
other receivables 2,500 —
Membership fee income gEEIWA 14,648 —
Management fee income ERBIRA 7,738 —
59,508 7,048
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FriSH

10.

Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/

Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRR MR

BER, (&)
FERATRFL (B518) RiNB (3

(crediting): A) LARIEB BT ¢
2016 2015
— X —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AER¥TTT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AT & 1,286 635
Depreciation of property, M - BERRIETE
plant and equipment 8,462 4,218
Amortisation of land use rights b R A 8 189 440
Amortisation of intangible assets & ES 59,889 7,675
Employee benefit expenses EERARX
(including directors’ remuneration (RIEEEME (M:E11))
(Note 11))
Salaries and wages #ﬁi&lﬁ 18,386 6,625
Pension scheme contributions RIKESFHEIER
— Defined contribution plans — TEREMRGETE 2,177 951
Equity-settled share-based payments VARRAR 2 B AET 3R
(Note 37 (viii)) (AR A EEE) (M 5E 37 (vili)) 66,000 36,232
86,563 43,808
Equity-settled share-based paymentto  BEE REEAINZ EEB AL
eligible persons other than employees ST AR BEERFK
and directors (Note 37 (vii) wxm,%::)( BT 5T 37 (viii)) 2,136 32,237
Operating lease charges in respect VERBEKEHEER
of properties 9,117 2,465
Loss on disposals of property, Y - BE M EELEERE
plant and equipment 921 125
Sales of properties held for sale HEREHEDS
— Gain on disposals (Note 22(a)) — HEWE (FIFE22(a)) (22,450) (4,090)
— Loss on disposals (Note 22(b)) — HEEE (H3E22(0)) 34,891 —
Loss/(gain) on disposals of properties HEFEHEYH
held for sale 2B, () 12,441 (4,090)
Loss on disposals of investment properties &% E Y% 7 E1E 3,079 —
Impairment loss on accounts receivable  FEUWER FUREE 1B — 3,000
FINANCE COSTS 10. B & KA
2016 2015
—REF —T-h1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
Interest on other borrowings EMEE TS 24,788 18,271
Interest on convertible bonds Al ES 2§88 13,654 246
Interest on finance leases BEMREZFE 96 123
38,538 18,640
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1. EEMER A EHSEHM
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES At

(a) EEZME

10BEE(ZT—HF:98)
EfSERB I

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2015: 9)
directors were as follows:
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Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share-based scheme
Fees inkind payment  contributions Total
g2 28 URORERMT e
He hHERENNE  CRAER) HE G
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AEET T ARETR ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEoE-7E
TZAST-ALEE
Executive directors; H1ZE:
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nion (‘Mr. Pang’) ~ &2X 844 (%44 ) - 515 36,733 15 37,263
Mr. Chang Hoi Nem (Mr. Chang’)  RslB %4 ([R%4E)) - 495 24,489 7 24,991
M. Chen Xiao L RIS E
(Resigned on 20 Jan 2016) (R=F-"E-A=+HEM) - 17 - - 17
M. Chan Kim Leung RallLs 103 100 - 5 208
Mr. Law Fei Shing ERyrs - 412 - 15 421
Dato’ Sri Hah Ting Siu SRLRHEERARLE
(Appointed on 13 May 2016) (R=B—r%
LAT=REZR) - - 4347 - 4347
103 1,539 65,569 42 67,253
Non-gxecutive director: FHEE:
M. Chang Xi Min RE#EE
(Resigned on 20 Jan 2016) (R=F-"E-B=1HEf) 5 - - - 5
Independent non-executive diectors: BV TEE -
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung WkEEE 103 - - - 103
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FERERE 103 - - - 103
M. Chan Kai Wing REREE 103 - - - 103
309 - - - 309
Total ait M7 1,539 65,569 4 67,567
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1. EEMER A EZ RS H N

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) AX @)
(a) Directors’ remuneration continueq) (a) EEME @
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 28 RIkE
we  REYHG FTEIHT At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-E-1F

+ZA=t—-BLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon ENBRE - 483 15 498
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam R EE - 126 6 132
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BR/ RIS A - 290 - 290
Mr. Chan Kim Leung FRAIRLE - 129 - 129
Mr. Law Fei Shing BERSE - - - -
— 1,028 21 1,049
Non-executive director: HHTEE -
Mr. Chang Xi Min RA#EE 97 - - 97
Independent BUHBTEE -
non-executive directors:

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung MkBKE 97 — — 97
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEERE 96 - - 96
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRUESR S % - - 9%

289 - - 289
Total ait 386 1,028 21 1,435
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1. EEMER A EHSEHM
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) At

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBZRSFMAL

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include four
directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil) whose emoluments are reflected in Note 11(a).

Emoluments of the remaining one highest paid individual
(2015: five) for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as

HE-_ZT—XR"F+=-A=+—8
LHFE AEBRAEERSHHA
THBEENEES (ZE—AF
/) HEe B R 11@d x

Bk o

HE—_ZT—X"F+-_A=+—H
IHFEE  EfR—F&admmAL

follows: (ZE—RF: 7L 22w
™~

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and e RN EDA S
benefits in kind 360 110

Equity-settled share-based VARR 10 R BT SR

payments (LARRA#EE) - 17,942
360 18,052
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M HRR MR

N EEWEREBERSEHTMH
AL @

(b) EEERSHHMAL @

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals continueq)

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals

FMER AT EBEZ &SHMA

whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as TZFESABMT
follows:
No. of
highest paid individuals
BEHFMAL AR
2016 2015
AL —T—hF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0008 7T
(approximately Nil (== AR# 857,500 7T)
to RMB857,500) 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8 7TZ 2,000,000 7T
(approximately RMB1,286,251 (¥ AR® 1,286,251 TE
to RMB1,715,000) AR#1,715,0007T) - 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 % 7T £ 6,500,000 /8 7T
(approximately RMBS5,145,001 (¥ AR® 5,145,001 TR
to RMB5,573,750) AR#E5573,7507T) - 3
1 5

During the year, no director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
(2015: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the highest paid individuals of the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

FRMBEFIRSFMAL
BEXFAEBRETAHH (=ZF
—hE:E) - AKREMERE
EFdEMERHMA LN
B - YERINAASRE 2 SR Sk B
BaE (CT—nf - 8\)-
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1. EEMER A EHSEHM
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) At

(b) Five highest paid individuals continued) (b) EEEESFMAL =
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Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

ENKEMERERAB ZHMH
g

No. of
senior management
EREBEAEAY
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T
(approximately Nil (HZ= AR 857,500 7T)
to RMB857,500) 10 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& T £ 1,500,000 7% 7T
(approximately RMB857,501 (Y AR¥ 857,501 L=
to RMB1,286,250) AER#E 1,286,250 7T) - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T £ 2,000,000 7 7T
(approximately RMB1,286,251 (HIAR¥A1,286,251 LE
to RMB1,715,000) AER#1,715,0007T) - 1
10 6
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

12. FAE8ERE,~ (BAX)

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT

Current tax — PRC BNEAFRIE — A
— Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) — EMEN ([REMEH]) 7,383 5,707
— Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) — TR ER ([ ES ) 9,826 —
Deferred tax credit (Note 39) EERIEE % (HI3E39) (45,021) (1,857)
(27,812) 3,850
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits REERRERBEAERESSIRNASE

arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operated.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2015: Nil).

EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2016
was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits
during the year (2015: 25%).

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the Group’s PRC subsidiaries’
undistributed retained earnings, amounting to approximately
RMB88,313,000 (2015: RMB56,781,000). No deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the dividends
distributed out of the profits generated by the foreign investment
enterprises. No withholding income tax was recognised during
the year as there are no dividends distributed by the PRC
subsidiaries within the Group.

EXRER F“% £<<<Mﬁﬁﬁﬁ=*$ﬂ2é|£ﬁ
s MR PSR

AAREERFALBELRNEL 2L
I FERTRIA » I B BB RIS T
W (—Z—n0F: |-

REBEZT—RF+A=+—HLF
§ - R BIES 2 BEMERIIRESE
NIBEFTEARRBAZ25%E (=F
—HF 1 25%) o

P A¢+:HE+*E’Q$E
M A RIAR D IRTEIN B ERE M AR
BEMIBAG 2 EREENABAR
#88,313,0007T (ZE—HF : ARK
56,781,0007T) ° B A& E AT 42§l 7%
EMBARIZREBR - BZEEET
A#Tﬁ%Xﬁ@ WiEAZE R
RIELEFIBALE -

RETBEDEMERL - HINEREE
FIRIMR B RFTES 2w H 0k 2 B
SRBBRIBMAENR - BRAKEZ
EP!WJ% A IRAR, - B
EIBPTISTHETER -
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continuea) 12. FIBHER (X))@
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit/ BEEMEANE 2 BAMGHATRET],
(loss) before income tax at the statutory tax rate to income tax (E18) 2 TS  BIR B RR A R 5t
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BZAEHA 2 HRAT

2016 2015
—R"E —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Profit/(loss) before income tax FrisBiansFl~ (EE) 62,795 (42,988)
Tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, LT B E EEE

calculated at the rates applicable to wmAl/ (E518) ZEaRE

profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 5T E R RIEE 2 FiE 15,699 (10,747)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REM EEER KL 2 HB AT

operating in other jurisdictions MEARzFE 11,939 8,906
Effect of non-taxable revenue mARTIW S 2 2 (89,630) (15,278)
Effect of non tax-deductible expenses TRl MBS 2 & 23,555 22,228
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR IEEIB 2 RIS 2 830 598
Tax effect of LAT THIRER 2 MG E 9,826 —
Tax effect of temporary difference REREEERB I METE

not recognised (31) (1,857)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisfi (%) FxX (27,812) 3,850
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HAAREE TR B &% AR - I ALK
the unused tax losses amounting to RMB9,297,000 (2015: EABIEEE AR 9,297,0007T (=
RMBS5,979,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit T4 ARMS5979,0007T) R
streams. BEETIREE ©
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13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRR MR

13. ERERN, (FHE)

AATEEAREERER RS R
R (518) Tob THIiE AR -

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners NABHEE AEERF], (EE)
of the Company 116,084 (47,671)
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-A1F

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings/(loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— share options

Weighted average number of ordinary

AAHERERREN (BE)
Z B BRI 8

BEEEYREE LB TE
— BEAE

SrEESREERN (BE)

1,682,549,000

34,077,000

1,640,963,000

shares for the purposes of diluted 2 BT INRE
earnings/(loss) per share 1,716,626,000 1,640,963,000
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HRF

Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARRBF (EB)
(RMB cents) (AREED) 6.90 (2.91)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SREEAN, (EE)
(RMB cents) (ARHEES) 6.76 2.91)
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13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continueq)

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the conversion
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their
exercise would result in an increase in earnings per share.

Diluted loss per share are the same as basic loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2015 as the impact of the
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding has an anti-dilutive
effect.

14. DIVIDEND

The board recommends no payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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13.

14.

BRER, (EHE) =

HEBE-T-A~F+-A=t+—HL
2 SREERTNE  LmEREE
AR RITEZ TARES - BAT
AR AT -

RPN RAREITZEEESEBREEE
TE-RAFTA=+—HIEFEZE
BRERBEENREELE  HEE—
T-RF+TA=+—HILFE 8K
BEEERESRENEE B -

Hﬁ /%\

EEefEaRNEE T —XAF+=
B=+—BUHEEZARERE (==
—HF £E) -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BMEKRE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Computer and office Motor Leasehold in progress
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles  improvements (Note (a)) Total
il - %ER fEIE
BF EMRE  BOZRE RE RENERE (W) fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETr  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost: A
At1 January 2015 R-E-1F-A-H 3,308 - 1,754 9,731 4,366 96,863 116,002
Additions hE - - 3,200 1,963 - 10,492 15,715
Acquired through business EREBANES
combinations - - 9 - - - R
Transfer to properties held for BATRHELENE (W)
sale (Note 22) - - - - - (38,760) (38,760)
Transfer from construction in progress  ERBAR T 68,595 - - - - (68,595 -
Transer to investment ERTRENE (Mie)
properties (Note 16) (61,583) - - - - - (61,589)
Disposals & - - - (19 - - 19
At 31 December 2015 and RZ-R%+-A=1-A
1 January 2016 k=T E-A-H 10,320 - 5,106 11,275 4,366 - 31,067
Additions HE - 1,910 2,197 3414 8,239 - 15,760
Acquired through business EREBAMES (W)
combinations (Note 38) - 1,416 1,628 301 - - 3,345
Disposals it - - (1,585 - - - (1,585)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RETZAZT-8 10,320 3,326 7,346 14,990 12,605 - 48,587
Accumulated depreciation: ZitE:
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1F-A-8 441 - 1,383 2,7% 1,15 - 5,775
Charged for the year FEENR 887 - 1,235 1917 179 - 4218
Transfer to Investment EREREN% (Wit16)
properties (Note 16) (619) - - - - - (519)
Wit back on disposals It 8 - - - (178) - - (178)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RETZA=T-H
1January 2016 Rk=%-7~5-A-H 815 - 2,618 4,535 1,334 - 9,302
Charged for the year REFMR 511 1,936 2,453 2,423 1,139 - 8,462
Disposals e - - (158) - - - (158)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=T-A 1,32 1,93 4913 6,958 2473 - 17,606
Net carrying amount; HEFE:
At 31 December 2016 R TZA=1-H 8,994 1,390 2433 8,032 10,132 - 30,981
At 31 December 2015 RZB-RETZA=+-8 9,505 - 2488 6,740 303 - 21,765
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M RR M

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s buildings are situated in the
PRC with lease terms expiring in 2046 and 2059.

(@)  Upon completion of construction in May 2015, cost of CIP
was transferred to buildings for the self-use portion and
properties held for sale for those signed with conditional
agreements, based on proportion of floor areas.

Subsequently, in July 2015, the Group changed its intention to
only keep 9th and 10th floor of No.2 Aurora Liaohai and 10 car
park spaces as the Group’s office premises and the remaining
portion of the building will be rented out to third parties and thus
these remaining portions are classified as investment properties.

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment includes an amount of RMB3,520,000 (2015:
RMB2,232,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. 1% - MEKRRE @)

R-ZE—RFE+-A=t—H ~&E
ZEFURTE - D RIN ZZFR
FE_ZTRNFEANED -

@ MRZE—RAFRARIH%: G EZE
VI 2 AR B IR IE E A L )8
BEETF (BRED) MFELHE
M (BEITBKGHBEE)

g - R-T-RAFLA-TH &%
EXREEIE  EREBRES _HREDN
NE R BAR HEFEMIE AR EE
ZHRERFT - BT ERIgRE D K A
F=77  MZERNSRBOWD BRRE
SUE

REEYE - BERZEFEREF -
PIEEMERERE AR 3,520,000
T (ZZF—RF : AR¥E?2,232,0007T)
ZEEE

16. IREWE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
At 1 January n—H—H 130,990 —
Transferred from property, HEBEAYE  BENEE
plant and equipment (Note 15) (M47E15) - 61,070
Transferred from land use rights (Note 17) &% &5 + s {F B (FfE17) — 19,143
Revaluation surplus on the date of ¥FEAHEERF R TR
transfer of owner-occupied buildings AR E Y H
and land use rights to investment 2 EHRH
properties - 50,777
Disposals HE (17,831) —
Changes in fair value NEEEE) 19,741 —
At 31 December BR+—HA=+—H 132,900 130,990
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in the PRC.
Pursuant to a business plan approved by management in July
2015, the Group changed the use of certain properties from
self-use to the purpose of earning long-term rentals.

Costs of these properties were previously included in property,
plant and equipment and land use rights. As a result of the
above change in use, approximately RMB61,070,000 and
RMB19,143,000 (based on floor area allocation) of the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment and land use rights were
transferred to investment properties during 2015. In 2016, there
are no changes in use.

These properties were re-measured at their respective fair
values upon transfer. For those properties transferred from
property, plant and equipment and land use rights to investment
properties, the difference between the fair values and carrying
amounts upon transfer, amounting to RMB50,777,000 in 2015
was credited directly in revaluation reserve with related deferred
income tax liability of RMB12,694,000 debited in revaluation
reserve in 2015.

Investment properties were valued at 20 July 2015, 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2016 by LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), an independent and professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates the highest and best use.

M HRR MR

16. REWZ »)

REBZIREMELUNPE - RIFEIR
ER—_ZT-RFLAENEE S
AEERETYENRERERENRS
RIESES -

ZEMENKR 2 ATRME - BE &
EhEIFEREAR - XZEARE
W E M BERRERTH
FAERMER RS REEmERT
BEH#H AR 61,070,0007T B A R
19,143,000 TR —E— R FEEZT K
BME - R-ZT—RF - HERRE
1t »

ZEYERENEEENAFESH
E-HREVE BREEKZRBRT
m@%%h%i&QW%ZW% N
ZE-RF - AV EHEEREERE
R =% AR®S50,777,000 TE H#E A
AEHFE HEEEHAEARE
12,694,000 BN T —HFBHE
fEER R -

AEENRENFEHBIEXAER
EEMABETTRERMAR AR ([ F5
ﬂD%fT—ﬂitﬂ_+E‘:-
—REFFTZA=+—HEZT—R%F
TZRA=1T—B#ETHE - EHEER
AIHERE R B - EAHAREDE
ML E K SRR EA TR - HIR
PIERENE - HRA RSB RERS
BN B2 R
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 16. REWZ »)
Fair value AEE
The following table gives information about how the fair value TRE‘REUEEREMENTELE
of investment property is determined (in particular, the valuation ZEH (AEmsERERTD KRR
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy ABUR) - ARIRA T EF 2R AR
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Level 1 AITERZIEE BATEEREZ
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value NEELR (F1REEIR) -

measurements is observable.

Fair Significant Range of Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs to fair value
EARTEE FABEHA FABRRAER
IS DFERR HER % BAER ERNER BEATEOEE
Office units, commercial ~ Level 3 Market approach ~ Price RMB6,000 - The higher the price,
units and car park per square RMB19,000 the higher the fair
spaces in the PRC meter value
REEAMBATEN . FIR mis BYRER ARKe6000LE  ERER ATEES
EELAmEEL AR%19,0007T
The valuations take into account the characteristics of the HET RMERE - BEAELRR S
properties which included the location, size, and time of the B~ R KRB o

comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on RYEBBZITBORBBE M
characteristics of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/ ORA) - St RERE Of
increase in the premium on characteristics of the properties ) S HEERIREMEATE
would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in fair value of KiE CRA) /3G -

the investment properties.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ NEFTETA LAY E T TE R&T
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual RarEE HERBRAEESR -
use.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 16. REYZE &)

Fair value (continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair

NEE (&)

ERNEIRAFEIBEBZEHN

value measurements are as follows: ™~
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Opening balance HAY 4R
(level 3 recurring fair value) (BIMRAFRATE) 130,990 —
Transfer from property, e - RE MR EER
plant and equipment (Note 15) (M35 15) - 61,070
Transfer from land use rights (Note 17) ¢+t {# FREER (FH3E17) - 19,143
Revaluation surplus on the date of BEFHBEZEFR
transfer of owner-occupied buildings T AEEBE
and land use rights to investment REMEERZ
properties EHER - 50,777
Disposals ak= (17,831) —
Included in fair value recognised in TIAEREEPER
profit or loss AN 19,741 —
Closing balance HR &S £
(level 3 recurring fair value) (BIRAFAFE) 132,900 130,990
17. LAND USE RIGHTS 17. T ERARE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,135 35,596
Additions NE - 210
Transfer to properties held for sale EREREREYE
(Note 22) (M5 22) - (12,088)
Transfer to investment properties EREIREYFE
(Note 16) (KfzE16) - (19,143)
Amortisation charge during the year FREHERR (189) (440)
At 31 December W+_HA=+—H 3,946 4,135

R-B—ARE+-A=1+—0  R$H
2t yofE BRI ARE -

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s land use rights are situated
in the PRC.

162

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———



Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

Computer
trading and
Business Business clearing  Computer
agreements  Trade name license systems software Total
EREZR
[GESE ] [k BRUR REAR Bk ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR  ARET:
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2015 R=—F-hE—-A—H - - - - - -
Acquired through business ~ BBEKAHES
combinations 154,000 - - - 3,800 157,800
At 31 December 2015and W= —1%
1 January 2016 TZA=+-Ak
A 154,000 - - - 3,800 157,800
Acquired through business ~ BBREKAFES
combinations (Note 38) (PizE38) - 77,000 880,000 2,373 - 959,373
Additions nE - - - 1,077 - 1,077
At 31 December 2016 WZE—7F
+=-A=1+-H 154,000 77,000 880,000 3,450 3,800 1,118,250
Accumulated amortisation: B3t £i :
At 1 January 2015 W-E-hF—-A-H - - - - - -
Charge for the year TEEMR (7,428) - - - (247) (7,675)
At31December 2015and ~ R-Z—1F
1 January 2016 +-A=+-BkK
—E-"5-A-H (7,428) - - - (247) (7,679)
Charge for the year TEE M (12,782) (3,698) (42,258) (738) (413) (69,889)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E
+-A=t-H (20,210) (3,69) (42,258) (738) (660) (67,564)
Carrying amount: TREE :
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R
+-A=1+-H 133,790 73,302 837,742 2,112 3,140 1,050,686
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE-0%
+-A=1+-8 146,572 - - - 3,553 150,125
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets comprised computer application software
system, business agreements, trade name, business license
and computer trading and clearing systems.

Computer application software systems and business
agreements were acquired through the capital injection to
acquire 60% interest in Beijing Jin Dian Pai Technology Limited
(“dDP”). The fair value of these intangible assets are evaluated
by an independent professional valuer, LCH by using the Multi-
period Excess Earnings Method. Principal assumptions used
in the valuation are i) the estimated useful lives are 3 to 10
years for computer software and 10 to 15 years for business
agreements and there are no residual value at the end of the
useful lives; i) the weighted average cost of capital structure
and risk profile of similar industry in the market.

Trade name, business license and computer trading and
clearing systems are acquired through the capital injection to
acquire 52.63% interest in NCCE during the year. The fair values
of these intangible assets were evaluated by an independent
professional valuer, Castores Magi Asia Limited by using the
Multi-period Excess Earnings Method. Principal assumptions
used in the valuation are i) the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets is 20.5 years and there are no residual value at
the end of the useful life; ii) the weighted average cost of capital
structure and risk profile of similar industry in the market.

M HRR MR

18. BILEE »

BEEERERERTERG  BX
Wik - B BEARNERE SRS

ERITEWBIL RS AEERTER
AA) (RSB 60% EmmERS

VB S IE RS R R E T e o AT
BmEREEZ A ERBILEEMAE
R FIBE 1T {5 FA 2 BRI SRS VA 5T o 1
BERFEANEERIBE)GBERF
HA3-10F (BHEEMF) X10-156F (7
) 0 BRERF LRSI &R
BREE i) iz EELUITERNE RN
TR ALEERERIER -

B AXARMERESREER
MIOBBFRNIEWNBRARS MR
52.63% & MES - PIESHETE
EZAFERBIEXGEMSM
BRARIERZ BRI A (4
EREANIZRREB)BVEEN
et EREA205F BERNEREF
i RIS W R RIGRE(E i) M5B
TTRNBERN IR A SR L ARE
DL e
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19. DEPOSITS PAID 19. 4% E
The balance as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 represents RZE-—RFERZZE—HF+A
amounts paid for acquisition of properties. =+ —HZERERBEYE 2 B R
In September 2010, the Group entered into an agreement RZZE—FFNA - AEEEDTILFHR
with JATEFTER B EHER AR AR (“F34E”) to acquire a TREMERBEAERAR ([FRIE]) 5
property for a consideration of RMB25,260,000. ¥&IE is a F— 1D e - LAA R 25,260,000 7T
related party to the Company in which #7385 ’s shareholder is WHE— B - IR B ARRR 2 BE
one of the Company’s directors. According to the agreement, AT ARREHA—NEERNRER
the property will be transferred to the Group upon full settlement R oo IRIBZE - ZVEEREEN
of the consideration. The Group had made deposits of REEER TAREE - REED MFTR
approximately RMB23,500,000 to #7818 and the remaining a4 AR #23,500,0007T 2 % &
balance of approximately RMB1,760,000 had been included in i 3 T & e 49 AR 1,760,000 7T E AT
the Group’s capital commitment (Note 40(b)) as at 31 December AEEBR =T —AF+=A=+—H
2016 and 31 December 2015. RZE-—RAF+ZA=1t—HZER%X
¥ (Mi3E40(0)) °
20. PREPAYMENTS 20. TR FRIE
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —EF—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Shenyang Rutal Integrated Property G RENEEERI SO
Rights Exchange Centre Company BRAA (Mzta)
Limited (Note a) - 500
EREXBARBEERAR (“GKRB) EREKBARBRAF
(Note b) (TFEKZF]) (Mi3ED) - 250
Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity M (P — RE) BeXSAH
Exchange (Note ©) BRAR ([REBRZSFT])
(BzEe) — 120,000
PT Asia Pacific Commodity Exchange PT Asia Pacific Commodity
(“APCX”) (Note d) Exchange ([APCX ) (FfzEd) 37,784 —
Classified as non-current prepayments 2 58&3ERENFEN FUB 37,784 120,750
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Notes:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PAYMENTS (Continued)

On 7 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement, pursuant to
which the Group would inject capital an amount of RMB500,000 to
the independent third parties for acquiring of 8.33% equity interest
as capital injection. In 2016, the balance has been transferred to
available-for-sale investments (Note 23).

On 23 October 2015, the Group entered into an agreement, pursuant
to which the Group would inject capital of RMB500,000 into & 7K R
I for acquiring 7.46% equity interests. As at 31 December 2015,
only RMB250,000 was paid by the Group. On 21 September 2016,
the Group injected the remaining balance of RMB250,000 as capital
contribution. In 2016, the whole balance of RMB500,000 has been
transferred to available-for-sale investments (Note 23).

On 11 November 2015, the Group entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which the Group would conditionally agree to inject
capital of RMB120,000,000 into NCCE. Upon completion of the
capital injection, the Group would indirectly hold approximately
52.63% equity interest of NCCE. The capital contribution was made
by the Group on 24 December 2015. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group has not obtained all required approvals from the relevant
government authorities, the balance was accounted for as a non-
current prepayments. The Group obtained all required approvals on 7
January 2016. Thus, NCCE became a subsidiary of the Group on 7
January 2016.

On 8 March 2016, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding pursuant to which the Group will co-operate with
the Society of Agribusiness & Agroindustry in Indonesia through
the on-line physical commodity exchange of APCX. APCX is a
company incorporated in Indonesia. The Group will indirectly hold
approximately 52.1% equity interest of APCX. As at 31 December
2016, the Group has not obtained all required approvals from the
relevant government authorities and thus the balance is accounted
for as a non-current prepayment as at 31 December 2016.

M HRR MR

20. TESFIE @)
GER

@ MZZE—AFEAtH KA&EEGFL
BE Bt AEEEIFTEARE
500,000 L F B F =7 BILUEE S
AU fE8.33% X - W_Z—RF » 4
HOEBREHEERE (H5E23) °

R-IZE—FHF+A-+=8  KEEF]
ShE Bt AEBEEFEARE
500,0007C T & KB - LAYEE 7.46%
BiE - R—ZE—RAF+-_A=1+—8 "
NEEESS ARE 250,000 c R
T—RFNAZ+—H  AEEULE
FERUEABRRAREE 250,000 © A=
T—XNF - BEEH AR 500,0007T
BEEBEHDERE (IF23) -

© RZZE—RF+—A+—H £EEF]
ViR Bl AEEEEKRERE
MERERZAEE AR 120,000,000
TC o AT ER  AEESMBERAER
BRGFT#52.63% R - NEED R
—E-RE+_A-F+HBEETLEE -
R-Z—RE+-_A=+—0 &X&EE
HAREHEBETE BEE 2RI
A WU BRE IR JERNER TR FIB AR ©
REFR-_ZT— A F—A+tBBEEY
Tt - Mt RERGHAN T
—AFE—AtBRAELEEZHBA

o

o)

R-ZT—ANFZANB » KREBFT VR
BB B - REEEEBAPCX
WERRRSMENERPMERRITE
# & (Society of Agri business & Agro
industry in Indonesia) & 1E © APCX &R
ENEREMAR S 2 A F] - AEE B REERE
B APCX#9562.1% I fE - M Z T — R4
TZA=+—8  NEEERIEAEBEH
TERIREE2IAFRE - HUtsRER
—E-ARF+ A=+ —H&3ERETE
MFIEAL -
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE

21. REFE N TV ER

The balance as at 31 December 2016 represents share of net
assets on the associate (2015: RMB2,454,000), details of which

RZE—RNF+_A=+—HZ2&E%TY
JEIEBENRFEE (Z2E—RF : A

are as follows: R#2,454,0007T) ' 1B -
Form of business Place of Principal Percentage of
Company name structure incorporation activity profit share
kS EBEREA TR A L it B FEEK EEFEI T
BMTEEMEEREERAT Corporation PRC Online trading platform 40%
B il BEXHTAE
Summarised financial information MBEREE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR¥TT
Total assets BEE 6,684 11,569
Total liabilities nmeE (1,341) (5,446)
Net assets FEE 5,343 6,123
Group’s share of net assets REEEEERFE
of associate for the year BN BFREE 2,142 2,454
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TT
Total revenue FEE 10,482 12,559
Total (loss)/profit for the year RNFEELR (F518) &F) (780) 2,634
Group’s share of (loss)/profit REBREAFE
of associate for the year &N T (B1R) wF (312) 1,054
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22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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22. HFIEEHEWHE

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETIT

At 1 January n—A—H 42,723 —
Acquired through business FIREBE O

combinations (Note 38) (M95E£38) 162,710 —

Transferred from CIP (Note 15) ERBTEETE (HFE15) - 38,760

Transferred from land use rights (Note 17) #5485 + b5 FA4E (FIE17) - 12,088

Disposals (Note a) HE (FisEa) (40,864) —

Disposals (Note b) e (FisEb) (162,710) (8,125)

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,859 42,723

Notes:

(@) In May 2015, construction cost of RMB38,760,000 (based on floor
area allocation) was transferred from property, plant and equipment.
4 units of the property and 4 car park spaces at the cost of
RMB8,125,000 were passed to the buyers in 2015 upon transfer of
property certificates. During the year, 21 units of the property and 13
car park spaces at the cost of RMB40,864,000 had been passed to
the buyers upon transfer of property certificates. A gain on sales of
RMB22,450,000 (2015: RMB4,090,000) was recognised as other
income (Note 8). The remaining 3 units of the properties have not yet
passed to the buyers as at 31 December 2016. The transfer of titles
has taken place on or before 18 January 2017.

(b) During the year, land use right with a cost RMB162,710,000 and
classified as property held for sale has been disposed. A loss on
disposals of RMB34,891,000 was recognised in administrative and
operating expenses.

@ RZ=ZZT—HF AR¥38760,0007T
(EREEEBESE) 2BEKRAEY
¥ BEREEERE ZWEREBA
R #£:8,125,000 70 By 4 18 ) % & 11 2 4
EEEMNCEEEEEREERERT
B o RAFE @ ZMERSTBARE
40,864,000 7T #y 21 8 4 2 Bz &% 1318
BN EEEEERESEESITE
e BN AR 22,450,000 ==
—HF: AR#4,09,0007T) T B HE
RAEEMKA (HiE8) e RZZT—XF
+=ZB=+—8 " FHIEWEBEMH
REXTER  EESEREAR-ZT—+
F—A+NBH AL -

() RAEFE @ KAABARE 162,710,000
BREARBIELEMEN T HFERED

LRE - HEREB AR 34,891,0007T
ERERATTR MY -
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. [t HERE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETTT

Current BN HEA
Unlisted equity investment, JE LR IEIRE -
at cost (Note a) = A (KisEa) 600 —
Non-current JERNHA
Shenyang Rutal Integrated B R E ER
Property Rights Exchange Centre R5HLBERAT
Company Limited (Note 20) (FF5E20) 500 —
AIKZFH (Note 20) HRBRFB (FsE20) 500 —
1,000 —
Notes: BiaE -
(@)  The balance represented the Group’s strategic 6.0% equity @ HESKEAEEREARLEBRERA

investment interest in ERARLEHERAF]. The balance is
measured at cost less impairment, if any, at the end of reporting
period because it does not have quoted market price in an active
market and the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

AH96.0% BB TR AT E R - IR
SR ZAEBERANRRE (1FH)
e RERZESRNERTISLED
BHRE - BEEERREATEEESE

5 -

24. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, FEWBR AR H b FE U 18
2016 2015

—E—XRE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ETTT

Accounts receivable FEUAR R
Less: Allowances for impairment loss B RERERE

Prepayments SRR/
Deposits Be
Other receivables H th & W K IE

33,247 43,135
(8,457) (9,500)
24,790 33,635
15,884 1,036
2,368 878
132,452 70,149
175,494 105,698
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24. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Accounts receivable represent the financial guarantee and
consultancy service fee income receivables and the receivables
for development and sales of computer application software
systems and maintenance service fee income.

The customers are obliged to settle the amounts according to
the payment terms as stipulated in the contracts, with a grace
period of up to 180 days (2015: 180 days). The balances as at
reporting dates are interest-free and due from a large number
of diversified customers and hence there was no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The directors consider that the fair values of accounts receivable
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because these
balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the transaction date, ageing analysis of the Group’s
accounts receivable (net of impairment loss) as at 31 December
2016 is as follows:

M HRR MR

24. FEWBRFX &% H b FE U 5k 18

(&)

FEUBR R BNFE R E R R BRI RS E
WA MR IR LA I 1 25 R SHE ST B e
FRE R R M AR TS B AU A B IGR
I8 o

BRBEERRAMS - B EKRRBEL
FTRE 2 ERHERENFE - ERBAR
5/&1808 (ZE—H%F :180H) - &
SERBEBBRzEBRIEERKRE—
HEZTILER TESBEAEFEER

)
AA

EERR ARZEEHRNEHARL
5] IR —FAREZ BEAERRZ A
FEEERAEZHLEEAER

REXZBEH  AEER_FT—XF
TZA=1+—B 2R (FORRRIE
B18) 2RO T

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 1,360 5,299
31 to 90 days 312 90H 1,153 2,250
91 to 180 days 91 %180 H 802 2,042
Over 180 days 180 HA 21,475 24,044
24,790 33,635
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24. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable that were
not individually nor collectively impaired is as follows:

24. FEWBRFX &% H b FE U 5k 18

(&)

AREB KRR ERERE EURERZ
BRER DT -

2016 2015
—2-xE| -—T-af
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Neither past due nor impaired Ao R e KRB
1 to 90 days past due @wHI1 =90 H

91 to 180 days past due #HI91 £ 180 H
Over 180 days past due wHAFER 180 H

1,360 440
1,703 7,364
552 2,607
21,175 23,224
24,790 33,635

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

The Group’s other receivables mainly included receivables from
disposals of properties held for sale and other receivables from
third parties. Other classes within account and other receivables
do not contain impaired assets.
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EEHIERREZ RU RIS EAEE
BERIFFEEERECEFPBR - RIE
BELER  HNEEERYERLEXN
23 AESRRE ARSI 2RKE - &
EERAETIALFERIELTMRE
B -

AEHz i RUFIET B2 BREER
TR EYREL N BRI IR R ERE=
JTH E A EURIR - RN BRSO B &
WikAz E BRI N BREREERE
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24. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continues)  24. F&EUN BR FX B2 EL b FE WL 5R 18
(&)

TRETNFAERHESAS()Ez e
AT BUR TR 2 I WIR R 2 R B B 18

The below table reconciled impairment loss of accounts
receivable (recognised based on the accounting policy stated in

Note 5.13()) for the year: iR -
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—FRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥TT
At 1 January ®—A—H 9,500 6,500
Impairment loss recognised (Note 9) EHERREEE (H3E9) - 3,000
Less: Reversal of impairment loss B REEEED (1,043) —
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 8,457 9,500

AREBEFKEBEERRE 2 2HEIK
BRI A MG - IEFPEASRRE
EIEEMAREMERE  AEBEKHE
HHm - REFEREERRKT
AEE - FAERERBELRERR
50% A T ARE LR R B 5 2 IR EE 2 AT W
B (ZF—hH%F :50%) RHEH
H - BRRUKERZCREREEZAF

The Group holds collateral over all its accounts receivable
from financial guarantee services. In the event of default or
failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts by the
customers, the Group will proceed with sale of collaterals. In
order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure
the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount (2015:
50%). At the reporting date, the fair value of the pledged assets

in respect of accounts receivable is as follows: BHT :
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Property, plant and equipment ERN S 1,801,426 1,831,712
Inventories s 1,635,761 1,682,224
Accounts receivable JERBRE R 245,790 192,147
Bank deposits (Note 28) RITFER (F15E28) 4,200 1,000

3,687,177 3,607,083
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25,

26.

27.

SHORT TERM LOAN RECEIVABLE

In July 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
NCCE to advance an amount of RMB72,300,000. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. As
NCCE became a subsidiary of the Group as at 7 January 2016,
the balance has been eliminated on consolidation.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

25.

26.

FEW R & K

R-ZZE-—hFEtAH AREERER
SRR~ ERmE - BHARYE
72,300,000 7T ° ;% AEER A EEM - R 5
FBRBEREER - ARNRER HHN
TR -RF-ALERAREEN K
MIBAR - AT RERARRE R o

FEWBRE S TR

e BAE T SRR A - 8 BN

ERFERE -

Name of related parties Relationships RMB’000
E=HER Bi% ARETT
BREDEHRMERAT Non-controling shareholder of NCCE 22,831
RERZHIERRER
ERHAHREEEERAA Non-controling shareholder of NCCE 28,901
BRFFMIFERERRE
EABHEFHBERAR Related party of non-controlling shareholder of NCCE 21
BRAFMAGEERRROBES
ERBHE FREEARNERAF Related party of non-controlling shareholder of NCCE 2,058
RBRZOIERRRNEER
EEREAREEREARAA Company controlled by the director (Note) 51,724
RESZHMRE (M)
105,535

Note: Mr. Pang, a director of the Company, has significant control in &
BERAKEEZREAR AR, In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company and E BTk Z ¥R AR Q7] are both
controlled by Mr. Pang.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

These have maturities of one year as at 31 December 2016
(2015: one year). Such deposits are pledged to certain banks
as securities for providing financial guarantee services to the
customers. Effective interest rates of these bank deposits as at
31 December 2016 ranged from 0.30% to 2.01% (2015: 0.23%
to 2.75%) per annum.

27.

Mt ARREEZEAHERREKEEER
BRABEGEREIE - AAREER
7 ARRREEBEREERERERA
AR E LS o

EEHERITEX

RZE—R"F+ZA=+T—H%ZE
ERRTERZIESEAR—F (=ZF
—hF:—F) ZEEREERTE
FiR1T - tERAMBEFIRHEE ERRE
ZIRFE-RZE—RE+A=+—
B ZEROTEFFACERENZRESEF
030EZE201E (ZE—FHF:023
[BZE275E)
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29,

30.

Notes to the Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continueq)

As at 31 December 2016, all pledged deposits were
denominated in RMB (2015: all). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts of
the Group as collateral for financial guarantees (Note 43) and
related accounts receivable (Note 24). As these bank deposits
are restricted to the use by the Group, the balances are not
under cash management of the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group held customers’ monies in its normal course of
business. The Group has classified these balances separately
as cash and bank balances held on behalf of customers in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The corresponding
balances were recognised as other payables for each individual
customer.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GENERAL
ACCOUNTS

Included in the balance of approximately RMB6,823,000 as at
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB4,974,000) was denominated
in HK$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and
were kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on the daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

27.

28.

29.

30.

M HRR MR

EEHRITER @)

R_ZE—XR"F+-_A=+—H " FIBE
BEREFRUAREHE (ZE—AF -
FiB)  ARETAERERAEME
% g EENZEES AT EBUT
B2 INERBIFTIRR

ZRHFBITER

ZERITFERIERNAEERPEZ
RITRPIERBERRZERR (M
43) AR YRR (M17E24) AR
AZERITERIRBEANREER - &
TEAEE REERE -

BeERBEEEFEHEER -
RKREFFR

AEEREREEBEEAEEHE -
AEERGA MR P RS
EEREARRECHANRERRS
SEER - PSS E AR RS
R EM OB -

BeRkBEEFEEEB -
—RERF

R_E—RNF+-_A=+—B:t A%
4 AR5 6,823,000 7Ty AB TTEHE
(ZZ2—0F : AR®4,974,0007T) °
FTEEMERTIAARBEHE - W
B{RF - ARBTIEREBRAEME
¥ g EERZEES AT EBLT
B HE 2 INERR HI T HRIR o

RITIFFZ M BT F R AL
ZIRBNRERS - RITFERCFEALS
W EIER AR AR 2 (E MR AFIRTT -
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31. ACCOUNT AND OTHER PAYABLES

3. BN RA R EBEMAFRE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT

Accounts payable arising from the REBEEBEEN LR ZFE

ordinary course of business on EEHE 7 FERTERFK

online trading platform 35,167 -
Accruals and other payables (Note) FEETE A R AR RIE () 267,213 50,792
Receipts in advance TEUFRIA 14,119 47,089
Deferred income from financial guarantee 2% B B #54&{R 2 BT U A 5,404 10,766
Business and other tax payables JER ST R A IR 13,192 3,373
335,095 112,020

Note:

The balance as at 31 December 2016 included accrued construction cost
of RMB3,669,000 (2015: RMB15,352,000) and cash and cash equivalent
held on behalf of customers of RMB153,486,000 (Note 29).

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable presented

B

M_Z—RNE+-A=t+—B2ZE&EHBERT
LR AR 3,669,0007T (—ZF — A4 -
AR¥15,352,0007T) RREZFHFENEH S
;kIREeEEBER AR 153,486,000 7T (Fi 7k

29) ©

RWEHR - ERRZ 5250 ER

based on the transaction date at the end of the reporting BRRHARER AT T -
period:

2016 2015
AL —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
0 to 30 days 0&30H - —
31 to 60 days 31E60H - —
61 to 90 days 61Z290H — —
Over 90 days 90 HM k£ 35,167 —
35,167 —

The average credit period on commission paid is 30 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timefame.
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32. OTHER BORROWINGS

Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRR MR

32. HgE

Current

Loan A (Note a)
Loan B (Note b)
Loan C (Note ¢)
Loan D (Note d)
Loan E (Note €)

Non-current
Loan F (Note f)
Loan C (Note ¢)

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
BNHA

BERA(MEa) 26,857 25,116
ERB(MizEb) = 1,925
B C(MizEce) - 83,719
B D(MEd) 7,162 —
ERE(fizte) 19,695 —
53,714 110,760

JEBNHA
BERF(BEES) 1,970 —
B C(Miztce) 71,618 —
73,588 —
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32. OTH

Notes:

(@

ER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The balance represented an unsecured short-term loan from an
independent third party of approximately RMB26.86 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$30 million), which is guaranteed by Mr. Pang
and Mr. Chang, directors of the Company, interest-bearing at a
rate of 15% per annum and repayable on 24 March 2017. The loan
contains clauses which give the lender the right at its sole discretion
to demand immediate payment.

The balance represented an unsecured short-term loan from an
independent third party of approximately RMB1.9 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2.3 million) which was guaranteed by Mr. Pang,
a director of the Company, interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 1.75%
per fortnight and was repayable on demand. The balance has been
repaid during the year.

The balance represented an unsecured short term loan from a
related company, Excel Precise International Limited of approximately
RMB89.52 million (equivalent to HK$100 million) which was
unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate of 2% per month and originally
repayable on 31 May 2016. An amount of RMB17.15 million
(equivalent to HK$20 million) has been repaid during the year and the
remaining amount of approximately RMB71.62 million (equivalent to
HK$80 million) is now repayable on 29 June 2018.

Mr. Law Fei Shing, a director of the Company, is the director and
shareholder of Excel Precise International Limited.

This is an unsecured short-term loan from an independent third party
of approximately RMB7.16 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8
million). This balance is guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director of the
Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 20% per annum and repayable
on 31 March 2017.

This is an unsecured short-term loan from an independent third party
of approximately RMB19.69 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$22 million). The balance is guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director
of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 1.6% per month and
repayable on 27 March 2017.

This is an unsecured loan from an independent third party of
approximately RMB1.97 million (equivalent to approximately HK$2.2
million). The balance is guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director of the
Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 33% per annum and repayable
on 6 January 2018.

32. HEE @

i3 -

@)
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BHRTREBUE= H 2 EEREHE
T AN R % 26,860,000 7T (18 & 4
30,000,000 7T) - HARBEEE
ERREEER  REF15%E - B
R-T—+F=A_+MAEE - %2
BXSEER - R ERETIIE
ESRENE B o

R TR BB B = 2 EAR IS AP
B AR 1,900,0007T (HE R
2,300,000 7T) * HARRAEZZHRAE
ER BEMBE1.75%:TE  BRENR
RFER o WAERERAFEEE -

ETyRE —HEERRBHERE
RAmzEBEBEHERNOARE
89,520,000 7T ( #8 & A %9 100,000,000
BIL)  ThEIEE R A2%ET B
BAR_T—AR"ERA=+—HHEE-
H e AR ¥17,150,0007C ( #8 & »
#720,000,000% 7t) BE R A F E &
B H#4971,620,0007T (HHE R4
80,000,000 L) B =T — )\F XA
ZHNAEE -

AEEEEEEREERBEERER
RAZEEHRER

R TR BB B = 2 EAR S AP
B AR 7,160,0007C (HHE R4
8,000,000 7T) * HARAIERZHAE
BR EEF20% 2 FIRFE - AR
T—E=-A=t—HBHEK-

HEHRTRABYE= 2 EBREHE
FH N R %19,600,0007T (FHE R L
22,000,000 7T) * BARAIEEFZE
HER HER1.6% 2 FRtE - B
RZE—+F=ZA=-_+tHEE-

HEHTDREBLIE= 2 ERFE
AN R #1,970,0007C (8 E R4
2,200,000 7T) * HARRAIEEZEE
BR - EEF38% 2FRFE - AR
T-N\F—ANBER-
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33. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 33. RiEHEAE
(@ Total minimum lease payments are as follows: @@ =EHEMNRETEWOT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Due within one year —FREH 948 763
Due in the second to fifth years E_ERFANTE 2,013 1,025
2,961 1,788
Future finance charges on BMEME 2 RKAEER
finance leases (211) (125)
Present value of finance BMEHEBERE
lease liabilities 2,750 1,663
(b) The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: b) MEMERERBEWT :
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE-hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Due within one year, included R—FREE -

under current liabilities FARBEE 855 684
Due in the second to fifth years, RE-ZRFRENE -

included under non-current FFAIEREBAE

liabilities 1,895 979

2,750 1,663
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33. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 33. MEHEERE @

179

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al

(b) The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
(Continued)

The Group entered into certain finance leases for its motor
vehicles with remaining lease terms of two to five years.
Interest rates under the leases are fixed at rates ranging
between 3.82%, 4.28% and 13% per annum. These
leases do not have options to renew or any contingent
rental provisions. Under the lease terms, the Group has
the option to purchase the leased assets at a price that is
expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value of the
leased asset at the end of the leases.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying
assets where the lessor has the rights to revert in event of
default. The carrying amounts of the finance lease liabilities
are denominated in RMB and approximate to their fair
values.

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$149,500,000.
Interest is charged at a rate of 8% per annum which is
repayable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds carry a right to
convert the principal amount into shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company at an initial conversion price
of HK$1.15 per conversion share during the period from 24
December 2016 to 24 December 2017. The Company may at
any time before the maturity date redeem the bonds at par (in
whole or in part). Any amount of the convertible bonds which
remains outstanding on the maturity date will be redeemed at
their outstanding principal amount.

(b)

MEHEREREWT - (&)

REEDABEI L E TR THE
HAR—ZRF BEHE - %%
MEZ2FHMNEEE RN F3.82
[E 428 E=13EBTE - 25H
A B AR R R S R S A
SR c RBEHEEBRK - AKE
BRENBHRERBLSEREHE
EEENTEH EREBEHRESR
Eo

MEMEABUEBEEEK
O HEABRERLEEOSMH
R EIHHEER -#mEHEAE
ZIREEAAREIIR - BER
FEMRE -

34. IR EF

n=
NAEBTABRKRES

E-RAF+_AZ+WTAB K
HMASES

149,500,000/ 7T ° ZEEIBIHTFF8%

e

AEBFFXMN—R - EHHHE

A RZZE—R"F+ZAZtHEZE=
T—+F+ = A+ N A BRI SH
KEEFRBEREHSD115ET - A&
BN AR RNARAS FREEOO1
BT Z S o ANA R AT A EIHA B BREES
ZEEEBERES (Borsk2I) - Al
REHFFREIHERREEZ NS
BIEERNAEEZ ASETUED -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 34. TBRRESF @
On initial recognition, these bonds contain liability and equity AR - ZEFEFEEARLER
components. The equity component is presented within MERD o B D N AR E SR
convertible bonds equity reserve in equity (Note 46). The bonds HHR 25| - RYITHERE RS BER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at NEERZEHFRAT -

initial recognition are as follows:

RMB’000
AREFTT
Fair value of convertible bonds AMRESFR_E—AF+-HA=+MmAH
at 24 December 2015 ZNFE 125,161
Equity component (Note 36(b)) B (Misk36() (33,154)
Derivative financial assets PTEEMEE
— company redemption — ARIEE 26,277
Liability component on initial recognition — #)ZERE 2 B EE5H 118,284
Movements of liability component of the bonds for the year are BEHFBERSNAFEE 2 B 40
set out below: ™~
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETTT

At 1 January ®—HA—H 118,530 —
Convertible bonds issued BEITRAIRKRES - 118,284
Effective interest expenses BERMERT 13,654 246
Interest paid B (10,847) —
Exchange realignment bE 5, S 8,819 —
At 31 December W+—HA=+—H 130,156 118,530
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

34

Movements of derivative financial assets of the bonds for the

year are set out below:

AR ESR »

wr

2016 2015
—E—RE —EF-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
At 1 January n—H—H 23,856 —
Derivative financial assets as at REEBHZITESREE
inception date - 26,277
Changes in fair value recognised in FARBRERZ AT EE
profit or loss during the year (10,314) (2,326)
Exchange realignment bE 5, S 1,199 (95)
At 31 December W+=—A=4+—H 14,741 23,856
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE KX}
Notes ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
FrsE T TAT ARETIL
Issued and fully paid: DRTRBEMRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  BIREE0.01 Btz L&
At 1 January 2015 R-E-hF—A—H 1,608,000 16,080 13,084
Issue of ordinary shares upon TR R 1T 2 TRk
exercise of share options 37 2,700 27 21
Issue of new shares (Note) BITHRAN (M) 68,860 689 548
At 31 December 2015 and RZE—AF+=A=1—H
at 1 January 2016 k=E—7"E—H—H 1,679,560 16,796 13,653
Issue of ordinary shares upon RITER RS
exercise of share options Lk 37 12,000 120 104
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+-A=1—A 1,691,560 16,916 13,757
Note: 5T -

In 2015, the Company entered into 2 subscription agreements with Dato’
Sri Hah Tiing Siu and UBP Asset Management Asia Limited (“UBP”),
pursuant to which Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu and UBP conditionally agreed
to subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to issue 50,000,000
and 18,860,000 new ordinary shares respectively with par value of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.75 and HK$1.59 each respectively. The
issued share capital of the Company was thus increased by RMB548,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$689,000) to RMB13,653,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,796,000).

RZZ—AF  ARAHEFTSEHNEEHR
% 4 K UBP Asset Management Asia Limited
(TUBP]) AT MM RE R BUHEESE
MEELARELERUBPEKGERERBMAR
AIBIEHRE D BIREIA1.758 T K& 1.597%8
JT 2 {8 & %% 77 50,000,000 & K2 18,860,000 A%
BREBEOCOT BT LTER - ARAI2E %
FTRE A M 38 h0 A R 6 548,000 7T (FBE R4
689,000/ 7C) = AR 13,653,0007T (%5
A 4916,796,000%7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. RESERVES

Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(@)

Share premium of the Company represents the excess
of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued.

Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the amounts
of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds relating to the
equity component (i.e. option to convert the debt into
share capital).

Property revaluation reserve comprised the revaluation
surplus arising from the transfer of owner-occupied
properties to investment properties at the date of change
in use.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries,
it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual net profits
of the PRC subsidiaries, after offsetting any prior years’
losses as determined under the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory reserves before
distributing any net profit. When the balances of the
statutory reserves reach 50% of their respective registered
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between
the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to the restructuring exercise.

M HRR MR

36. f# &

AEERERDHEHNGAMRED
%O

(@ AREZEMEETIIEMEHA
MRARRIEHTRNEE A
ﬁ%o

b) FERBRESESHEIERITE
AR R AT R R E 5 2 PR 1S
FE (B EHERSRAZE
) o

© VEELREEREZEIARYE
RAZEE AMERERENE
FEAMEM AR -

(@ REBEFBEEARZIEZRITE
fi AR AEBERRARIRE
REHERBEARTE g EAE
EMEBEFERER - AR
TR I A o] 48 K1) Ay 8% o o B8 T
NEFEAEFN10% ERER B
EERER - WEEABERER
EYPRESBEMEARHE0%
EAE — PR TR B

SRTE e

€ EHBHREMVBHBARZE
EFEERBEACETER/R
B RABBAZ EEZ FZERE -
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 1 December 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentive or rewards to any employee of the Company
or any member of the Group, or any other eligible persons (the
“Eligible Persons”) for their contribution to the Group. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 29 December 2011.

Details of share options granted or outstanding

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows:

37. U fp A EEMNRK (MR

REH)

ARRR—_FE——F+ - —HRNE
Borgrt &) ([FERESTEL) - UsiAR
AR AEEERKB AR 2 EARES
EHEMEERAL ([EEKRALD
WASBPTERRUIRHUAEN S AERE) - BB
BAEF B BENARREHA-T
——Ft+Z AT NRZBEEERE -

2 48 I 7 1 R 1T 48 2 BB R
S

REHEIR B MM ARITENBREREE
—E—RE+-A=t+—BHIFEEzH
BEREEMT :

2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
“E-5E
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 share option options option
RoB-7E
W=8-rE tzA=1-H i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECHEM pici BRERLAS BREZRD  SRORE
Note 35) HKS
(M3t ) #T
Director
g2
M. PANG Man Kin, Nixon - 150,000,000 10,000,000 - - 140,000,000 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
YIBRE (Note v 1020 January 2021
(Kigkwi) IRE-fIt-R ZEE-fof-EE
i S g
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam - 100,000,000 - - - 100,000,000 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
Fart (Note i) 1020 January 2021
(Fhi) 23Rz t-B B E-R--BE
i S
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Su - 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 13May 2016 13May 2016 102
SEERRARRRAE (Notevi) 012 May 2019
(Bizhi) TT-AFRATIR CERERATIAE
“E-nERAtTzE
Sub-ote /Pt - 265,000,000 10,000,000 - - 255,000,000
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. UM B EESF (UK
(Continued) P/ fﬁi% ) (&)

- - - kvl \lz V Al
Details of share options granted or outstanding EREMERTEZER
HEFE @
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options LRI E MR AR TENBREREE
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December —E-RNFT_AZtHUEFEZH
2016 were as follows (Continued): BEREEIT : (&)
2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
“E-5E
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 share option options option
RoB-7E
H=B-RE tZAZ+-B i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECEM pici BRERLAS BREZORD  SRORE
Note 35) HK$
(M3t ) #T
Consultants
BB
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - - 21 May 2013 1 May 2015 119
10 30 April 2016
“E-ERAZT-B “E-RERA-BE
ZE-ERAZTA
5,000,000 B B (5,000,000 - - 20 Novernber 2013 1 November 2015 163
031 October 2016
TR=ET-AztRE 0 CE-RET-A-EE
R RETA=T-8
21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
to 24 June 2017

“E-RERACTRE CE-REAA-tREE
S e 1

2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 26 June 2016 258
t0 24 June 2017
“E-RERACTRA ZEERA-TRAEE
Sy e

2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2017 2582
1024 June 2018
“E-RERACTRR CE-tEACTREE
5-/\ERAZTRA

85,000,000 - - - - 85,000,000 12 November 2015 12 Novernber 2015 103
fo 11 November 2017
T-REF-ATZR CE-RET-ATIRE
I R

2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 097
to 16 December 2018

“E-RETCATHA ZE-RETCATHAEE
ZE-J\EtZRTAE

Subotal /Pt 120,000,000 - - (7,000,000) - 113,000,000 1 8 4
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. AR 7 B E SR (AR

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows (Continued):

REH) @)

EREmERITHEZER
EFHE @

HETEIR MR ARTTENBEREREE
R ARFTZAZSTRUEFEZF
BREBMT : (&)

2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
E-RE
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 share option options option
RoB-7E
W=8-rE tzA=1-H i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECEM pici BRERLAS BREZORD  SRORE
(Note 35) HKS
(M3t ) #T
Employees 18,500,000 - - (18,500,000 - - 20 November 2013 1 November 2015 163
- 1031 October 2016
“E-CEP-fotR CE-RET-A-EE
ZE-RETAZT-B
37,070,000 - - - - 37,070,000 25June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
to 24 June 2017
“E-REAAZTRR CE-REAA-tRAZ
i S
150,000 - - (150,000) - - 25June 2015 25 June 2016 2582
to 24 Jung 2017
“T-RERACTRER CE-nERACTRAR
ZR-ERACTRA
150,000 - - (150,000 - - 25June 2015 25 June 2017 25682
to 24 June 2018
ZE-RERAZTRR ZE-tERAZTRAZ
—E-)\§RAZTRE
53,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - 51,000,000 12 Novernber 2015 12 Novernber 2015 103
to 11 November 2017
2 o = e S ¥ o =
3
200,000 - - 200,000 - - 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 097
016 December 2016
SI-RETCATER ZE-RETCATHRE
“E3-nEtZATAA
200,000 - - (100,000) - 100,000 17 Decernber 2015 17 December 2016 097
to 16 December 2017
ZE-RETIATHR CEETATeAE
ZE-rEfIRTAE
Sub-total |G 109,270,000 - 2,000,000) (19,100,000) - 88,170,000
1 8 5 Total B 229,270,000 265,000,000 (12,000,000 (26,100,000) - 456,170,000
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(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December

M HRR MR

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. AR 7 B E SR (AR

REH) @)

ERE M RITEZER
EFHE @

R B MM R TENBRENEE
—E-RE+_A=t+—BIFEZF

2015 were as follows: BEREFHIT :
2015 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZE-1f
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 215 share option options option
#-2-1f
H-%-1F tZAZ+-B i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECEM pici BRERLAS BREZORD  SRORE
(Note 35) HKS
(M3t ) #T
Director
L H)
Mr. Chen Xieo Li 16,400,000 - - (15,400,000) - - 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
RivEs 1022 March 2015
I S B )
S
M. Chan Kz Wing - 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 217
REgiE Note) (Note) 1020 May 2017
(Hiski) (M) Z3-RERAZT-A ZE-IERA-T-RE
“Z-t5RACTH
- 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
(Note ) (Noteii to 24 June 2017
(Histi) (M3t “E-RENAZTRRE ZE-RENACTRAEE
I Y e
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung - 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 217
kERE (Note ) Note) 10,20 May 2017
(Hiski) (M) Z3-R§RA-T-A ZE-1ERA-T-BE
“E-t5RA-TH
- 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 25June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
(Note i) (Note ) t024 June 2017
(Wsti) (Kigti) “E-RERECTRER CE-RERECTEAZ
ZR-ERACTRA
M. Chow Shiu i - 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000} - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 217
BEERA (Note) (Note) 1020 May 2017
(Maki) (M3t “I-RFRACT-R ZE-RFRACT-RE
“E-t§RACTH
- 1,000,000 - = (1,000,000) - 25June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
(Note ) (Note ) 1024 June 2017
(ki) (Kigti) “E-RERECTEA CE-REAECTRAE
i S
Sub-tola /5 15,400,000 6,000,000 - (55400000 (6000000 - 186
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. AR 7 B E SR (AR

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2015 were as follows: (Continued)

REH) @)

EREmERITHEZER
EFHE @

TR B MM R TENBRENEE
ZE-RE+_A=t+-BILFEZF
SREEMT : (&)

2015 Price of
Number of share options shares
“E-1f
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 215 share option options option
#-2-1f
H-%-1F tZAZ+-B i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECEM pici BRERLAS BREZORD  SRORE
(Note 35) HKS
(M3t ) #T
Consultants 66,000,000 - - (66,000,000) - - 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 083
BB 1022 March 2015
B S e B )
3
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000) - - 21 May 2013 1 May 2014 119
1030 April 2015
CE-ZERAZT-B “5-MERA-HE
“E-RFRA=1A
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 21 May 2013 1May 2015 119
030 Apr 2016
) “Z-n§RA-RZ
ZE-ERAZTE
10,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 5,000,000 20 November 2013 1 November 2014 163
t031 October 2016
I “5-MET-A-HE
ZE-ETACT-B
- 37,000,000 - - (37,000,000 - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 217
(Note ) (Note) 020 May 2017
(Hizt) (is3) “E-RERECT-A CE-RERACT-AE
ZE-tERACTR
- 14,000,000 - - (14,000,000 - 11 September 2015 11 September 2015 1.00
Note i) (Noteii to 10 September 2017
(Hiztii) (Bii) ZE-RENAT-R CE-RENAT-HE
“E-tENATE
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. UM B EESF (UK
(Continued) P/ fﬁi% ) (&)

- - - 7 AN P4 4=
Details of share options granted or outstanding B R e RITEZ B
(Continued) EFEE )
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options LRI E MR AR TENBREREE
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December —E-RFT_A=Zt—HUEFEZH
2015 were as follows: (Continued) S REEINT - (48)
2015 Price of
Number of share options shares
-2-1f
EREHE RE
Balance Exercisable Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 215 share option options option
#-2-1f
H-%-1F tZAZ+-B i
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AEEERY  AEECAE  AEECAM  AEECEM pici BRERLAS BREZORD  SRORE
Note 35) HK$
(M3t ) #T
- 34,000,000 - - (13,000,000 21,000,000 25June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
(Note ) (Notei) to 24 June 2017
(i) (Misti) I-REABCTER CE-RERACtEAZ
ZE-tERAZTRA
- 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2016 258
(Note i) t0 24 June 2017
GiR1) Z3-RERACTEA ZEERACTRAEE
S oy !
- 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2017 2582
(Note ) 1024 June 2018
(i) E-REARCTRR CE-ERAtREE
Z5-)\ERAZTRA
- 85,000,000 = - - 85,000,000 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
(Note iv) to 11 November 2017
(Mztw) “E-RET-ATR CE-RET-AToAE
ZE-tEt-A1-H
- 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 097
(Note ) to 16 December 2018
(Biztv) ZE-RETCATHR CE-RETCATHREE

ZE-JEtZRTAE

Sub-total Pt 80,000,000 177,000,000 - (73,000,000) (64,000,000) 120,000,000
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. AR 7 B E SR (AR

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2015 were as follows: (Continued)

REH) @)

ERH M ARITEZBR

S 2

RET BRI T AT R R B
—F-RF A+ —AILERH

EREEWMT - (48)

2015 Price of
Number of share options shares
-%-1f
BREHE RE
Balance Exercisable ~ Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share per share
participant 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 2015 share option options option
H-2-1F
H-%-1% tZA=+-8 BiE
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AERERY  AEECAE  AEEEAM  AEECHEM bics BRERLAS BRECAED  SROGE
(Note 35) HK$
(M3t %) AT
Employees 1,800,000 - 300,000) (1,500,000 - - 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 083
k8 1022 March 2015
CE-ZESATTER ZE-CESACfERE
“3-1%=A-12A
200,000 - 200,000) - - - 23 March 2012 7duy 2014 083
06 July 2015
S “E-MELALAE
ZZ-155ANA
200,000 - 200,000) - - - 23March 2012 1 August 2014 063
to 31 August 2015
TR-CEDACTER “E-MENA-RE
“R-RENA=T-8
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - 21 May 2013 1May 2015 119
1030 Apri 2016
) “E-n§RA-RE
ZE-ERAZTE
18,500,000 - - (18,500,000 - - 20 November 2013 1 November 2014 163
to 31 October 2015
“E-ZEt-f-tB CE-ME-F-BE
ZR-RETA=TR
18,500,000 - - - - 18,500,000 20 November 2013 1 November 2015 163
to 31 October 2016
“I-=ET-A-1R “E-REf-A-HE
“E-RETAZT-B
25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 - - 10July 2014 10July 2014 150
t09July 2015
ZE-MELATR “E-MECATRE
ZE-RELANA
- 56,000,000 - - 56,000,000 - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 217
(Note ) (Note ) 1020 May 2017
(Wit (M3t ZE-RERACT-R CE-RERACT-AE
“E-t5RR-TR
- 800,000 - - (800,000) - 21 May 2015 21 May 2015 247
(Note ) (Note ) 1020 May 2016
(Hzt) (Hsti) ZE-RERACT-B CE-RERACT-BE
1 89 “2-ERATR
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. UM B EESF (UK
(Continued) P/ fﬁi% ) (&)

- - - 7 AN P4 4=
Details of share options granted or outstanding EREMEARTEZER
(Continued) s
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options LRI E MR AR TENBREREE
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December —E-RFT_A=Zt—HUEFEZH
2015 were as follows: (Continued) S REEINT - (48)
2015 Price of
Number of share options shares
-%-1f
BREHE RE
Balance Exercisable  Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share per share
participant 1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 2015 share option options option
H-2-1F
H-%-1% tZA=+-8 BiE
SEAZBERAR -f-Bz&h  AERERY  AEECAE  AEEEAM  AEECHEM bics BRERLAS BRECAED  SROGE
(Note 35) HK$
(M3t %) AT
- 800,000 - - (800,000) - 21 May 2015 21 May 2016 217
(Note ) (Notei) t0 20 May 2017
(Hizt) (Rist) I-RERACT-A ZEAERACT-AE
I 5
- 40,000,000 - - 2,930,000) 37,070,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
(Note ) (Notei) to 24 Jung 2017
i) (M) I-REARCTRER Z3-RERACtARE
Sy e !
- 150000 - - - 150000 25 June 2015 25 June 2016 2582
(Note ) to 24 June 2017
(Kisti) ZE-RE5AZTRA ZEEARCTRAE
“E-CERAZTRA
- 150,000 - - - 150000 25June 2015 25 June 2017 2582
(Note ) to 24 June 2018
(Wit e STy 1= B S o oy 1= -
“2-)\ERAZTER
- 33,591,200 - - 33,591,200 - 11 September 2015 11 September 2015 100
Note i) (Note i) 010 September 2018
(M) (Maki) SE-RENAT-B ZE-RERAT-EE
“5-/\EhATE
- 53,000,000 - - - 53,000,000 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 108
(Note iv) to 11 November 2017
(Hiztw) “E-REt-ATZR E-RET-AfIRE
I !
- 200,000 - - - 200,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 097
(Note ) to 16 December 2016
(Kisky) TI-RETCATER CE-RFtAteRE
ZE-RETIATAR
- 200,000 - - - 200,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2016 097
(Note ) to 16 December 2017
(Hskv) ZE-RETCATCR ZERRFTCATERE
SEHETDATAR
Subrlotel | ¢ 66,200,000 184,891,200 2,700,000) (45,000,000) (94,121,200 109,270,000
Total £t 161,600,000 367,891,200 2,700,000) (133,400,000) (164,121,200 229,270,000
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191

(Continued)

The annualised volatility used in the valuation model of the share
options granted, as set out below, is based on the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price and by reference to
other similar industry as listed in the PRC, adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management’s best estimate. The fair values
for all share options were determined by LCH, an independent
valuer.

Notes:

(i) On 21 May 2015, the Company granted an aggregate of 97,600,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$2.17 per share of the
Company to Eligible Persons. On 4 June 2015, all of the 97,600,000
shares were cancelled due to the total number of share options
granted would be in aggregate exceed 10 percent mandate limit of
the shares in issue of the Company. No equity-settled share-based
payment is recognised for the year ended 31 December 2015.

(i) On 25 June 2015, the Company granted 82,300,000 share options
at an exercise price of HK$2.582 per share of the Company to the
Eligible Persons. On 14 September 2015, 18,930,000 share options
out of 82,300,000 were cancelled as the total number of share
options granted would be in aggregate exceed 10% mandate limit
of the shares in issue of the Company. The remaining 58,070,000,
2,500,000 and 2,500,000 share options are exercisable from 25
June 2015 to 24 June 2017, from 25 June 2016 to 24 June 2017
and from 25 June 2017 to 24 June 2018 respectively. Equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately RMB1,590,000 (2015:
RMB27,105,000 has been charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The fair value for these share options was
determined with certain key inputs as described below:

REHE) )

TXFTR B &R 2 B ERA A
ZERACRKETIAZR R RIBUE 2 FE 2K
fEARERE  W2ERE EHHEMRRAT
¥ WIRAFREMBARINIE 2 (EA TR
HIZEHmAE - RAMARPFHEIR
B EREMGAT T AR - 2EERE
ZAHEHRBLEEMNRITEE -

Bt -

() RZZE—RAFHRA=Z+—H ARFMA
EEBATEBEHTEEASRARAR
f& 17 2.17 7% T 2 & $£97,600,00017 &
- RZT—RFNANB  ATA
97,600,000 & f& 15 7 215 88 (E3 A B AR
TR EE LR AER T - BDANA R BT TR
P210%) s REE-_ZT—RAE+_A
=+—HIEFE - WERRURD AR
R (ARALEE) -

iy MZZE—RAFASAZT+HB ARAFMA
EEBATEEITEEATRARAR
i% 15 2.5827% 7T 2 & #£82,300,0001%
HERE - R_T—RAFNLA+TEA -
82,300,000 17 &% A% #& = 18,930,000 17
BIRER ST (AR R HERERE
BHREREE AR RBITRMZ
10%) ° E £: 58,070,000 7 B A% 4 7] 72
—E-RFEXRNA-tHAE-_Z—tF
NAZ+ M HE#EATEE 2,500,000
MIEREIR_Z—RFA=-THA
E-ET—+EXNA-TNEBBERNT
5+ LAK 2,500,000 BERETA-E
—tFEARNAZTRAEE=ZZ—N\FA
Z+ B HMRITE o ARG HELEN
K (ARAREEE) 49 AR 1,590,0007T
T —HF: AR¥27,1050007T)
REBEE_ZT—R"EF+A=+—HILHF
EzBmPRE ZERBREZATE
ETEE & TEZEHAZIRN TR
i
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. UM ABEENST (UK
(Continued) REH) @)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : ()

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4
EF—it -ty 4 E=4t Emt

Grant date flag=n -t 25 June 2015

—E-RFANAZTHA
Option pricing model used FARERREE RN Binomial option pricing model
ZIEAIREE ER
Weighted average exercise price INEFITTEEE HK$2.582 77T
2.582 7T

Annualised volatility FERIEE 56% 56% 56% 59%
Risk-free interest rate R p A = 0.36% 0.36% 0.36% 0.58%
Total indicated option value (HK$) R iEiE Iz EE (BJT) 1,940,000 41,040,000 1,740,000 2,280,000
Expected life of the option HE AR FE /O 78 HA 41 B 2 years 2 years 2 years £ 3 years fF
(i) ~ On 11 September 2015, the Company granted an aggregate of iy RZTE—AFILA+—HB EAQAA
47,591,200 share options at an exercise price of HK$1 per share EEBATEHITEERBRAAR
of the Company to Eligible Persons. On 14 September 2015, all of B& 7178 7t 2 & 47,591,200 17 i A%
the 47,591,200 shares were cancelled as the total number of share B-RZTE—RAFHLATIE  FIE
options granted would be in aggregate exceed 10% mandate limit of 47,591,200 FR AR 17 K BaE 88 (A PTR
the shares in issue of the Company. No equity-settled share-based B R R AR R L MR BE - B
payment is recognised for the year ended 31 December 2015, AIBITRHZ210%) - REE=ZT—Hh

FHZA=+t—RLLFE - WEAERA
Befn REER R (CARRALEHE) -
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

37. UR P BEENF (LR
REH) @)

BiRE « (&)

On 12 November 2015, the Company granted 138,000,000 share vy RZZE—RAF+—A+=ZH TAFL
options at an exercise price of HK$1.03 per share of the Company TEESRARAFRMD1.03E TR D
to the Eligible Persons. 22,000,000 share options are exercisable 138,000,000 17 FE R #E T & EIE AL ©
from 12 November 2015 to 11 November 2017 upon completion 22,000,000 17 f& A% # 3 78 A% [A) 3R B8 &2
of the capital injection into NCCE, completion of NCCE’s relevant SFEE - REXZHARETEITIR
registration procedures with the local Administration authority and BB A FERE@EMFERAR
completion of the Group’s holding of 52.63% equity interest of NCCE. SEERIFEREAX S FT52.63% K 1#E
The remaining 116,000,000 share options are exercisable from 12 % AR —ET-RAF+—A+ZHEZ
November 2015 to 11 November 2017 without vesting conditions. T—tHF+—A+—BHETE &
Equity-settled share-based payment of approximately RMB702,000 #:116,000,000 D EERERT N =T — A
(2015: RMB34,313,000) has been charged to profit or loss for the F+—A+-_HE-_Z—+t&%+—A
year ended 31 December 2016. The fair value for these share options +—HEBEITERETREBEG - A
was determined with certain key inputs as described below: BAZBEW RN G2 RKBLHAEA
R¥702,000t (ZFE—HF : AR
34,313,00070)  EREBE_ZT—<F
TZA=tT—BIEFEZBEPIE -
ZERBBRE AN TEIR N A
FEEHAHEET :
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4
E—it EoHt =it Emt
Grant date flag=n -t 12 November 2015
—T-AF+—A+=H
Option pricing model used FARE R E ER Binomial option pricing model
ZIEAIREE ER
Weighted average exercise price IEFHTTEE HK$1.03 77T
Annualised volatility FERIEE 71.57%
Risk-free interest rate B A 5 0.41%
Total indicated option value (HK$)  FER%IEIEIZAEE (BJr) 21,394,000 5,718,000 1,640,000 14,823,000
Expected life of the option SRR AR T AR A 2 years 1.8 years & 1.8 years & 2 years £
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

v) On 17 December 2015, the Company granted 2,400,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$0.97 per share of the Company
to the Eligible Persons. 2,000,000 and 100,000 share options are
exercisable from 17 December 2015 to 16 December 2018 and
from 17 December 2016 to 16 December 2017 respectively. Equity-
settled share-based payment of approximately RMB55,000 (2015:
RMB553,000) was charged to profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016. The fair value for these share options was
determined with certain key inputs as described below:

M HRR MR

37. UR P BEENF (LR
REH) @)

BieE « (AF)

v RZE—RAF+=-—A+LEH AAQF
RITEESERAAGRKRG0.97E LI
i 2,400,000 D FE IR IE T & A& AT o
2,000,0001% % 100,000 5 B A& #E 5> 51l 7]
R_EBE—AF+-_A+tHEZE=ZF—N
F+ZA+RNBERZZE—XR"F+ZA
+tEEZFT—tF+ZA+NHEHE
111 o B A& E I LA S 1 2 5RIB
HABAREES5000T (ZE—HF + A
R¥553,000T) ' EREE=ZZT—XF
TRt HILFEZIEZEPI -
ZEBREZ AFEDR TS

TEZHABEET :
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£—4#t £ E=Ht

Grant date s qang=p 1

Option pricing model used Fir PR AR E B R =
Weighted average exercise price IETFHTEE
Annualised volatility FERIEE

Risk-free interest rate o B ) 2

Total indicated option value (HK$) A EEIZAEE (Br)
Expected life of the option R AR A TR HAF A

17 December 2015
—E-RF+-ATtAR

Binomial option pricing model

TIEAIREE ER
HK$0.97 & 7T
65.21% 93.61% 71.74%
0.57% 0.10% 0.40%
624,000 61,000 72,000
3 years 1 year & 2 years £
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. LA B EENF (AR
(Continued) REH) @)

Notes: (Continued) sk : ()

(vj  On 21 January 2016, the Company granted 250,000,000 share (Vi)

options at an exercise price of HK$0.852 per share of the Company
to the Eligible Persons. The remaining 240,000,000 share options
are exercisable from 21 January 2016 to 20 January 2021 without
vesting conditions. Equity-settled share-based payment of
approximately RMB61,222,000 has been charged to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The fair value for these share
options was determined with certain key inputs as described below:

RZTE—RNE—AZ+—8  "QFMN
TEEBESRARRRG0.852 8 T H
& #£250,000,00017 B B #E T & B & A
=+ o E$£4240,000,00017 B AE R 1 =
EZ—RF—A-_+—BE-_ZT-—%F—
A=+ BB E BT RBBIEE o A
BRI BERSR (UBRAEE) HAR
#61,202,000LERBE T —NF
FTZA=TBILFEZIESTIE -
ZEBEBREZ AFEDNR T2 E

FEEHAHEET :
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£—4#t £ E=Ht

Grant date s qang=p i

Option pricing model used Fir AR AR E B R
Weighted average exercise price IETFHTEE
Annualised volatility FERIEE

Risk-free interest rate o B ) 2

Total indicated option value (HK$) B EEIZAEE (Br)
Expected life of the option R IR R TR HAF
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21 January 2016
—T-REF-A=+—H
Binomial option pricing model
ZIEBREEERR
HK$0.852 87T
69%

1.56%
71,400,000
5 years £
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii)

(vii)

On 13 May 2016, the Company granted 15,000,000 share options
at an exercise price of HK$1.02 per share of the Company to the
Eligible Persons. The 15,000,000 share options are exercisable from
13 May 2016 to 12 May 2019 without vesting conditions. Equity-
settled share-based payment of approximately RMB4,347,000 has
been charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The fair value for these share options was determined with certain
key inputs as described below:

M HRR MR

37. UR P BEENF (LR
REH) @)

p

w

()

Vi) M-ZE—XERA+T=8 KAFAT
FEETFRARQTNRM 1.02787T - Rt
#015,000,000 5 FERRE T A EBAL ©
%% 15,000,000 17 B AR 2B —Z— R
FRATZHE-ZT—AFRAT=H
HARITTIE o AR BEEEA IR (AR A
EHE) M ARBE4,347000tEREE
—E-XFEt-A=t—HIFEE
PR ZEERECATEDNET
XAz ETEEHASIEET

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£—4#t £ E=Ht
Grant date s qang=p i 13 May 2016

P FRRE A R B AR

Option pricing model used

Weighted average exercise price IETFHTEE
Annualised volatility FEIRIER

R
fElrRRREE O8n)
BN TEHF S

Risk-free interest rate
Total indicated option value (HK$)
Expected life of the option

“ZE-RFRAT=H
Binomial option pricing model
ZIEBREEERR
HK$1.027%87T
64%

0.66%

5,070,000
3 years £

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses comprise: Vi) ABRHD BEENR (URALE) 25
HRIE

2016 2015

—E—XRF —ZE—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFT

Equity-settled schemes to employees MR BIRME 2 AR A E AT 8 66,000 36,232
Equity-settled schemes to eligible REBREZUINZAEEE
persons other than employees ATREAREEEE

and directors 2,136 32,237

68,136 68,469

In 2015, certain share options were granted to the consultants in
light of their contribution and services to the Group. The Group
measured the fair value of services received from the consultants with
reference to the fair value of those provided by eligible employees as
management considers that the services provided by the consultants
and employees are similar in nature.

R-T—RHE  BTHBREDRTER AL
BfIEAREEREL 2 BB RRHRZIRE - &
RNERERRERMMEE Rz REENEE
ERE BMAEE2ESERERRE ZRYE
ZAFHEM ERERENIRE 2 2 FE
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. UM ABEENST (UK
(Continued) REH) @)

Notes: (Continued) sk : ()

(ix)  Share options outstanding and weighted average exercise prices (ix)
during the year are as follows:

F IR EARTTE 2 R I N 1917 (8
BE25WAT

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
nfEFEH hniETH
B 1T1EE A 1B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A— B 4R 229,270,000 1.16 | 161,600,000 1.08
Granted during the year AEFEEH 265,000,000 0.86 | 203,770,000 1.52
Exercised during the year REEFEBEITE (12,000,000) 0.88 (2,700,000) 1.04
Lapsed during the year AEED KN (26,100,000) 1.60 | (133,400,000) 0.98
Outstanding at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

= AR TE 456,170,000 1.12 | 229,270,000 1.16
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options FRITEBRES B Z EFEHRER

exercised during the year was HK$1.19 (2015: HK$1.51). 1198 (ZZ—RF 1.51%85T) °
Out of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31 RZE—RE+A=+—HEKR{TE
December 2016, 453,670,000 (2015: 202,420,000) had been vested 2B RE@ B - 453,670,000 (=
and were exercisable at the end of the year. T — R4 202,420,00010) BERRED

KRB A RERTTE ©

(x)  The exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year X RER BWROTEZERESTEES

ranged between HK$0.852 and HK$2.582 (2015: HK$0.97 and
HK$2.582) and their weighted average remaining contractual life was
31 months (2015: 20 months).

197

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al

0.8528TLE2.5828 L (ZE— A& ¢
0.97 BLE 2582 7T) + MeR T2
FHEHFHAEA (ZT—HF
201@A) -



Notes to the Financial Statements

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 7 January 2016, the Group acquired 52.63% of the issued
share capital of NCCE pursuant to capital contribution of
RMB120,000,000. NCCE is principally engaged in the provision
of electronic market platform for trading commodities including
non-ferrous metal, ferrous metal, agricultural products, energy
products, chemical materials, machineries and equipment.

The fair values of net assets acquired at the date of completion

M HRR MR

38. WEEHMIE 1 A

R-T—R"F—A+tH  KEEITEA
R # 120,000,000 T B R BB X S FTE,
LTI 2 52.63% c R FHEE
HEABELE  SHoE - BER-
REREM - (LEBRERBARMMEESS

EERREETRHTA -

BRZEEFENEETKARZ AT

of the acquisition are as follows: (ERONNE
RMB’000
ARETF T
Net assets acquired BEZEETE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15)  #1% ~ = M & (3£ 15) 3,345
Intangible assets (Note 18) mrEE (MiiE18) 959,373
Available-for-sale investments (Note 23)  AJ &R E (s 23) 600
Property held for sale — land use rights ~ #{EH &% — b (H A
(Note 22) (BEE22) 162,710
Other receivables H b pEUs KT8 76,340
Prepayments and deposits TN RIERIZE 33,384
Cash and cash equivalents Re kFeFEIER
— general accounts — —fRERP 40,478
Cash and cash equivalents HeReEEEE
— held on behalf of customers — REBEPHEA 1,105,372
Accounts payable FEATER TR (35,785)
Receipts in advance TR IR (14,770)
Accruals and other payables FEFTE A R HALME IR (1,344,272)
Business tax and other tax payables BN R EMERTIA (3,457)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 39) EERIEAE (MHEE39) (272,620)
Net assets BEFE 710,698
Non-controlling interests IR AR (336,658)
Net assets attributable to the Group rEEEEEEFE 374,040
Gain from bargain purchase arising WHBEE & 2 BRIBREA
on acquisition: Wz
Consideration transferred FregR A (E 120,000
Less: Net assets acquired B R EETE (374,040)
Gain on bargain purchase recognised RiFE 2 ERERER
in the consolidated statement of <2 RREB AR
comprehensive income (254,040)
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Net cash outflow acquiring on acquisition

38. WEEMI B 8] ()

WEIRE L 2 HER HFHE

RMB’000

ARBETF T

Cash consideration payment RERERK 120,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEEZRe RIReEEIER (40,478)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WHEEA 2R e ML FRE 79,522

The fair value of other receivables as at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB76,340,000, which was the same as the
gross contractual amount.

Since its acquisition, NCCE contributed revenue of
RMB655,884,000 and net loss of RMB40,325,000 to the Group
for the period from 7 January 2016 to 31 December 2016. Had
the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2016, revenue and the
net profit before income tax expense of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would have been RMB709,564,000
and RMB62,376,000 respectively. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2016, nor intended to be a projection of future
results.

The Group has engaged Castores Magi Asia Limited, an
independent valuer, to assess the fair value of the assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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RUEE B Bt GRTE 2 A EAA
R #76,340,0007T @ EHEA XS EE —
ﬁ o

BEHKBUNR REXFHAR_-Z
—ANE—RAtHE-_ZT—XF+=
A=+ —BHHEALAEB TR KE
A R #655,884,000 T M FE B AR
¥ 40,325,0007T ° & Ik & OF 8 £ R
“E-RF—H—H AEEEEC
E-ARF+ZA=+t—HLEFEZK
mABRATERANF RS IABAR
709,564,000 7t &2 A R # 62,376,000
7T o WEEERHEMR - W PREE
BN =T —R"F—A—HBTRASE
EERA BRI R EEE - ThIE
HIARIREE 2 TBA -

AEEEERB I HENEBTNER
AR IERIAE R A R B 2
AT -
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B R R T M EE
39. DEFERRED TAX 39. IEZEFIE

Movements of deferred tax liabilities recognised during the year AREFCHRRELEHIEBE ZEIN

are as follows: N
Revaluation
Revaluation Revaluation of property, Revaluation
of intangible  of investment plantand  of properties
assets properties equipment held for sale Total
% BER BELE
BREEEM  RENEEH REEMR NEEH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-f-H - - - - -
Acquired through business BBEHANES
combinations (38,500) - - - (38,500)
Revaluation reserve of investment RENZEREE
properties - (12,694) - - (12,694)
Credit o profit or loss for the year SAREEER 1857 - - - 1857
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-2F+-B=1-H
1 January 2016 k=%-7%-5-A (36,643 (12,694) - - 49,337)
Acquired through business FREBAMES (M)
combinations (Note 38) (239,075) - (402) (33,143 (272,620)
Credit/[charge) to proft or loss A/ (BE) RERES
for the year 14,683 (3.207) 402 33,143 45,021
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-AEtZA=1-H (261,035) (15,901) - - (276,936)
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40. COMMITMENTS

()

(b)

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings with
independent third parties as at 31 December 2016 are as

40. EIfE
(a) REHERIE
N-ZE—RNE+-_A=

+—8"

REBAEERBIE =772 7
B ERERBFT 2 RRHZKKE

follows: JERFEEMT :
2016 2015
—~E —FH4&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Within one year —F A 7,156 2,409
Within two to five years ZENF 18,637 1,089
Later than five years AFMUE 2,279 -
28,072 3,498

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. These leases run for an initial period of one to nine
years (2015: one to three years), with options to renew
the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective landlords.
None of these leases includes any contingent rentals.

Capital commitments

AEERBEEHEHBAETY
% HE ’F)J*FF%HE ENF (=

C AEER

AR ASEERREETE
BHE AHEE - MEEES

EERSAEE

(b) BEAHEIE

The Group had the following capital commitments as at RZE—RF+=ZHA=+—8"
31 December 2016: REBBUTERRKIE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Contracted, but not provided for: B ET4) » {EARRE -
Land and buildings T KRBT
— related parties (Note 19) — @ER (M13E19) 1,760 1,760
Capital injection for acquisition BLUHE —fEIHE & A R
of an associate (Note) AE (Fsk) 3,500 3,750
Intangible assets mAE 250 —
5,510 5,510
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40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments (continued)

Note:

On 7 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement, pursuant to
which the Group will inject capital of RMB3,500,000 in 1t A4 Fr
BHEER AR (“/R&A7”) for acquiring 35% equity interests. Upon
completion, 7K FT will become an associate of the Group. As at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no payment was made by
the Group.

41. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Balances and transactions

Other than the related party balances and transactions
disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material

M HRR MR

40. 7EIE
(b) EAREE

GEX

RZZE—AF+tA+A AEEFL
—HHE BUHASEEERLERKRS
IRt ERAR ([Re)) ZEAR
# 3,500,000 7T+ LAEB 35% BRHE o B
TRRIE  REFTHERAREB ZBEA
Ale RZEBE—XRF+_A=+—"HRK
—E-RFFT-A=t+—H " AEET
REHEMFROA -

M. BEFIRE
(a) RS

BRIMR B B IS IR A B 0 P 3
BeBETEHEIRZIHIN K
SERFRNBUATERBEETR

transactions with related parties during the year: UK
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETFT
Rental expenses paid to ENEEFESRY
related parties (Note i) (MF3ED 69 100
Interest expenses paid to EfEERF B
related party (Note ii) (B &Eii) 18,351 9,653
Notes: PitsE

i) The Group entered into one year lease in respect of certain
leasehold properties from related parties. With reference to
the terms negotiated between the related parties, the Group
paid rental expenses for office premises to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan,
mother of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, and certain related companies,
of which the Company’s shareholders are also the major
shareholders of these related companies.

(ii) As disclosed in Note 32(c), Mr. Law Fei Shing, a director of
the Company, is the director and shareholder of Excel Precise
International Limited.

@iy  As disclosed in Note 32, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang, directors
of the Company have provided personal guarantee to the
Company for obtaining other borrowings.

)  AEEREESETHEWET
FZHEE - K2REREN
ERZGF . ARERHAE
EnSMNELE CRIBEEZ
88 RETHEARXNES
A ARRZBRRITAZERH
BABZEERRE -

(i) B FES2c) ATl - AEEE
SRBHEERBEBBEBEERR
RIZEFRE -

(i) FEAMIEE 32 FrERAL - NARIESE
THhEERKREERDRGHMEE
MDA BHREFLALER

202

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 s o———



Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

41. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) M BELINE »

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EEEEAE 2 FHH
The emoluments of directors who are also identified as EE(RAXEEZTEZEEERK
members of key management of the Group during the B) REE-_ZE—R"FRk=_F
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are set out in —RAFE+-_A=+—HIFEZ
Note 11(a). B ZBARAKIEE 11(a) ©

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. T TE (IREA)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RZE—XR"F+=A=+—H ' 5|
instruments as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: SRMTEZERBEENT
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT

Financial assets EREE

Loans and receivables B EWRR

Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE 1,600 —

Accounts receivable R BR X 24,790 33,635

Other receivables and deposits paid Hi R EE N B iRd 134,820 71,027

Short term loan receivable FEURE BRE 3R - 72,300

Amounts due from related parties JEWEE = 77 718 105,535 —

Pledged bank deposits BERIRITFR 55,120 60,137

Restricted bank deposits XBRHISRITIFR 19,197 19,400

Cash and cash equivalents Re kBFeFEIER

— held on behalf of customers — REREFEFA 153,486 —

Cash and cash equivalents He kReEEEE

— general accounts — —MERP 15,812 73,492
510,360 329,991

Fair value through profit or loss ERBEREATEE

Derivative financial assets MESMEE 14,741 23,856

Financial liabilities - =R

Financial liabilities at amortised costs RE#HERAFIRZSREE

Account and other payables JE ST RR BN E AL FE < 5B 302,380 50,792

Other borrowings EfEE 127,302 110,760

Finance lease liabilities MEHEEERE 2,750 1,663

Convertible bonds Al ES 130,156 118,530

562,588 281,745
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise accounts
receivable, other receivables, deposits paid, short term loan
receivables, derivative financial assets, amounts due from
related parties, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents — held on behalf of customers, cash
and cash equivalents — general accounts, accruals and other
payables, other borrowings, convertible bonds and finance
lease liabilities. These financial instruments mainly arise from its
operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximate to their fair values as at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept
to a minimum level, the Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of the directors of the Company reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and these
are summarised below.

M HRR MR

43. B EREEERREE

REEZFESMTABERKERR -
HAtWHIR - EfNRE - BYFEEE
B TEEREE  BRE=7TFE
EEMIRITFR - RRBIRITFR - R
ehReFEER - KREPHEA -
RekREeEEERE - —REF B
SEANMAMENRE  HaEE Al
BEESFULBEHRERE - ZFT/
TAFZRAHEKERR -

RERERR - AEBSRTAZE®
BREE 2 AFERE - XA FE[BETD
REERHEREZSFSRTHE BT
SSERHEDL ©

SEMA BT HEBE B - SR
TR R RAEREAHIE 2 58
R EXIBHEETE - REBRIEEHH]
ERICRE ESCIBEDNZ

BRAEESHTAZ T 2RAM /TR
R SMNEREE - EERR MR ES
R - R ASKES DR 2 AED
BRI - AR B B AMEROTAET
AR HM T AR AR - REBEILE
RANETITELE SR T AEEERER
7w BRI YRBER &R
ZIBR - BT o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. i B REEE B ERBE

205

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest
rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances and other borrowings with fixed interest
rates which are all short-term in nature. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate but may enter into interest rate hedging instruments
in the future to hedge any significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in PRC.
The functional currency of the Group is mainly RMB with certain
of their business transactions (e.g. sales and purchases) being
settled in other currencies. The Group is exposed to currency
risk arising from fluctuations on foreign currencies, primarily HKS$,
against the functional currency of the Group.

Foreign currency risk exposure

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated financial liabilities at the reporting dates are as
follows:

(%)
B

MExERECRIARNFESAKRES
MERENEREE MK 2R - FEF
RTAKERAEEAERZ IS RE
PR

AREBF R R B RS2 5T B RTT
BHRLEMETEMNERIEERH - A%E
35 PR 0 8 M) R b B DA S EL T 2 R
R - G AR R EAR R R LR
EERRIENREHTA -

S L B

SNERRIEE B T AN FEIARRRE
mERINEE R B IKE 2 B o A
SEERNPEEERS - AREZI)
RRERTIER/RARE  METEHBRRS
(WHERBE) NEMEREE - 5)
B (EBRAET) AAKENGEEEZ
FEE O B G BN S B R A FE R AL o

SN LR
REBEZINEFESBABNHRE R
ZEREEMT -

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
—E-RF —T-0fF
tZA=t-B | t=A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Current and non-current liabilities REBRERBERS
Other borrowings EfpfEE 127,302 110,760
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

M HRR MR

43. EEREEBREREE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (%)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SN R (&)
Foreign currency risk exposure (Continueqd) SNEERBS (48)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
profit after tax for the periods and equity in regards to a 1%
appreciation in the Group’s functional currency against HK$.
The rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. There is no impact on other components of combined
equity in response to the general fluctuation in the following
foreign currency rates.

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk at the reporting period has been determined based on the
assumed percentage changes in foreign currency exchange
rates taking place at the beginning of the financial periods with
all other variables held constant throughout the period.

NREFIREBE AR R S A2
S AREBEINEER L ABTTIHE 1% H)
GURRE - DR EBERABRERE
SN R P E R 2 URE LR - WK
IR T Y08 R T] e B 2 ARG © Sb
TIE R ERINENH & Hr i 2 H AR B

=)

N
WEE -

AR BRI SRR BRE S
T TH R RSN BB S B B SR 8 2 3
EAOLED - MAA LS ENBEN
BT -

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
HE-E-~% HE-_T-1F
+TZA=t-BHLEE TZRA=1t—RIL%E
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates earnings rates earnings
HRBiR HERRR
y-51)53 T )5
ExtH/ RERF | Extr/ RE B
('FE2) L7 (%) ZHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
HKS BT 1% (1,279) 1% (1,108)
HKS BT (1%) 1,273 (1%) 1,108
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. i B REEE B ERBE

207

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain
financial guarantee from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the bank the repayment of the loan
by customers of the Group. The Group has the obligation to
compensate the bank for the loss it would suffer in the event
of default by the customers. The Group’s maximum exposure
under the financial guarantee contracts is disclosed in “liquidity
risk” below. To mitigate such risk, the Group requests its
customers to provide collaterals as appropriate. In the event of
default or failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts
by the customers, the Group will proceed with the sale of
collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level,
the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to
ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s exposures under
unexpired financial guarantee contracts were secured by the
pledged assets of the customers as follows:

(%)
FEREE

AEBEZBRERMARBAEEES
BERRZBEFHUEHEEESEMR - K~
SEEIERERRELN  BUAEE
BRERFPRRITERZERIELER -
AEEFETERFAREZREER
TEZZEBX - AEEREEREY
BIZERRBEER T [RBED
B BREZER  AEBERE
FPREEE 2B - MRFELHSK
BEEETAREMNERE A£G
HEEMR AfFEBEERRKK
o REBEZ FHERGEEL REES
FAB50% AT « ARER KRB EREZ
AREE e RZE—RF+A=+—
B AEBERIARELRENHER
AT ZBEREEEER :

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—FRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment E Y 1,398,773 1,874,426
Inventories "rE 1,069,319 13,281,440
Accounts receivable JFEURBR TR 254,263 301,075
Bank deposits (Note 28) HRITFER (F1sE28) 19,197 19,400
2,741,552 15,476,341
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
holds collaterals to cover its risks associated with accounts
receivable. Accounts receivable arising from the financial
guarantee contracts were secured by certain assets of the
customers. The fair value of the pledged assets, which are
also pledged to secure the Group’s exposure under unexpired
financial guarantee contracts as mentioned above, as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

3. M REMEERE

M HRR MR

ERER
()

EERk =)

FEYSRA SR REES - MAKEZ
ERRRIETEX - AEESAER R
e B R AR 2 B - BB R

BRELRYERTINEF 2 ETEEE
Eﬁ RIE-—REN_E-—RF+=
A=1t—H BEERFREE BARHLE
BRI ERRE K 2 R HER
(B EXCFrt)) 2 RFERT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment E S 708,013 1,037,913
Inventories 58 572,699 1,033,629
Accounts receivable f H&Zﬁﬁ%’\ 100,946 173,615
Bank deposits (Note 28) TR (Fiak28) 2,700 1,000
1,384,358 2,046,157

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise of other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents — held on behalf of customers and
cash and cash equivalents — general accounts, arises from
potential default of the counter-party, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Credit risk
in pledged and restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is mitigated as cash is deposited in the banks of
high credit rating.

AEEAMEREE (TEBEEME
WoskE ~ RS =TT 508 E,’E\ﬁifﬁﬁ
T XRHBTERERE LIRS
BHE — Tt%E?HﬁLA&EEi&EE
FEERE — —KREF) 2ZEERA
REHF AR Z BN /H\Eiﬁﬂ
RAFNZETAZREE - FRET)
FRRSEEFRZRT 2DEHRR
BE%‘J%E«TT ANRRE NIREEFERELZ
= B E R A R E
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

43. EEREEBREREE

()
REBESRER

AEEEEEERARMERRSESR
2 RAKERFERERSHE
NENEHERARPESER -

TRAAREERIFES QREAFEZ
TRBEZZHER

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within One year Repayable
amount cash flows 1 year orabove  ondemand
BHRE
BEEHE
REE &% R-FR  —-FIUE  REREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
2016 ZE-XE
Account, accruals and FERERR - BT ERR
other payables EthEMFIR 302,380 302,380 302,380 - -
Other borrowings HfsE 127,302 172,887 98,594 2,674 71,619
Convertible bonds ARES 130,156 144,490 144,490 - -
Finance lease liabilities HEMEAE 2,750 2,961 948 2,013 =
562,588 622,718 546,412 4,687 71,619
Financial guarantees issued BRITRERR
Maximum amount guaranteed BERRATE 548,250 548,250 - = 548,250
2015 —E-1f
Accruals and other payables [T BRREMERFE 50,792 50,792 50,792 = =
Other borrowings AfhfaE 110,760 118,467 92,175 - 26,202
Convertible bonds ARRES 118,530 145,272 10,144 135,128 -
Finance lease liabilties WERERE 1,663 1,788 763 1,025 =
281,745 316,319 153,874 136,153 26,292
Financial guarantees issued ERTREER
Maximum amount guaranteed EERGATE 540,750 540,750 —~ - 540,750
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using information from
observable current market transactions, categorised into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement.

M HRR MR

43. EEREEBREREE

(%)
ARE

EREENGEMBANKPRIEEE
IR RELRFE 13 [ A FEAE] R
EZ RN HERNRATHERE - A FHE
FRABINERY A HEFEMNSBE
RZEEBHABRET °

AEEEREE 2 N HEDRBEARE
BRI EREAKEABRERTS
RHNEMETNRRRSRONTE
T OBRAEAMBmEERFE 135
[AFEE] RENAFESFHFE=

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ et 1} E=H &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTL ARETT ARETT ARETR
2016 —E-RE
Financial asset at fair value ERBEERATE
through profit or loss HEZERMEE
Derivative financial assets TESREE - 14,741 14,741
2015 —2-1F
Financial asset at fair value ERERENTE
through profit or loss HEZEREE
Derivative financial assets TEeREE - 23,856 23,856

During the year, there were no transfers between instruments
in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

RAFE  F—RME_RTAZEL
EER NEERASBBLE=R -
AREERNBER RN E LSRN RE HE
RIER R FEFR 2 BHERE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. i B REEE B ERBE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (%)
Fair values (Continued) NEE ()
Below is a summary of significant unobservable input(s) to the REZFAECCREERSRAER
valuation of financial asset and financial liability measure at Level 3: BENERTA R AERANT
Significant Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
Financial asset/liability Fair value and key input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
TIERHAEHE
SREE/8F NYE HEREREERAER EXTUBRAAER  AVENEE
Financial assets at fair value  Derivative financial assets The fair value of company The fair value is based The higher the call
through profit or loss — company redemption redemption options is on call premium premium, the lower
options on convertible calculated using the Binomial the fair value
bonds Option Pricing Model
BRBREATENEL TEEREE NAEEERE ATE NHENERREEEHE WEEEES -
TREE — AR ES 2 A7 PR-_ESRTRESHE NTEBIE
Bz
Key input:
— Risk-free rate;
— Stock price;
— Credit spread;
— Volatility; and
— Dividend yield.
ELLIN-CCE
— EERAE
—RIAEE
—REEE:
—KB%E: R
—REMHE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

If the volatility is 10% higher while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of the derivative financial
assets (Company redemption options), would increase by
approximately RMB6,443,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
approximately RMB896,000). If the volatility is 10% lower while
all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of
the derivative financial assets (Company redemption options),
would decrease by approximately RMB2,294,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: approximately RMB1,272,000).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by total equity.

M HRR MR

43. EEREEBREREE

()
NEE &)
R IR FH 0% i Bt B B 4 2 B -

PTESREE (REEEERERE) K=
TR E+-_A=t+—BZEEEH
# g AR 6,443,000 (—E—H
F o ARMEBE,0007T) © &I IR
L10% MEMEEYEES  TES
BMEE (REERRERE) RZF—X
F+-A=+—AZERAEBEMNHA
R#2,294,0007C (ZZT—FHF : HHA
R#1,272,0007T) °

EXREE

FEBEERER 2 TEBBRRERE
BB NIZFEREEELENETR
FZERLE  ARAEEBERIL I
=BCRER °

AEERBEERE 2 B LA EE
ZRBFEEEEERERIL AR
B o RERHABRENGRE - AKEA
BEAABEN TRRZRE - MAREE
BARREITHR - RFA - BRAEEE

AEBEFERAELE (AR ERRERA
SR KEREAL -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continueq)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing

43. EEREEBREREE

(&)
EXEE #)

REREMR - NEE 2 RIS
Bz BELE - AR AR - A%E
REZ T2REE/RETNRNEF AR
REn8BRMATRIHERS 2 8

RIS A HIRTTRIE E B /KT RAER
Bit IR AR & (WFR) - iR
AEEREEEKFZEAIFHE

plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable % o
level of capital to support its business.
The gearing ratios are as follows: BELEAT -
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Other borrowings and total debt HinfgERAERTE 260,208 230,953
Equity attributable to the owner RAEHRA AEGERE
of the Company 571,721 392,166
Gearing ratio BELX 0.46 0.59
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group issued performance guarantee contracts for which
the Group agreed to provide guarantees to its customers who
enter into contracts with third parties for services to be rendered
or goods to be supplied within an agreed time period. The
Group has the obligation to compensate the third parties for
their losses arising from the defaults in contracts by the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2016, there were no unexpired
performance guarantee contracts as these contracts were all
completed (2015: Nil).

The accounts receivable under these contracts amounted to
approximately RMB4,800,000 (2015: RMB6,760,000) as at 31
December 2016. The Group’s exposure of these outstanding
accounts receivable was secured by the inventories of the
customers. The fair value of these inventories as at reporting
date is RMB29,716,000 (2015: RMB26,966,000).

There is no significant concentration of risk under performance
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

M HRR MR

44. BHEREN

REEBITROEREH - BHLAKE
FRIEREE PR E BRE A Tt
ZRIGIMEZERBE =TI zA
K REER - AERBBERERFE=T
AAEBz EFROMES 2 BRRE
B - RZT-—ARF+-A=+—HAL
ERIHBEOERAL  IRZEFEH
EETK (ZT—0F : ) -

R-T—XRF+-A=+—H %54
22 FEMBR R &) B A\ R 4,800,000 7T
(ZZ—h%F : AR®6,760,0007T) °
REBRZEHREZBRKENRME
HrRkE UEFP2HEREM - %
EEERNREBHZATFEAARKE
29,716,000 (ZE—HF : AR
26,966,000 7T )

R-E—XE+-A=+—0 BH
BEREAETIEEAEFER (ZF
—hFE )
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45. A B B i AR &

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-XREF —T—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B5E AR® TR ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RIRE 51,110 51,110
Current assets REBEE
Account and other receivables JRE U BR RN B A FE IR 13,743 21,876
Amounts due from subsidiaries i) NEIE 423,053 426,773
Derivative financial assets PTEEMEE 14,741 23,856
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 6,580 2,879
458,117 475,384
Current liabilities REBEE
Account and other payables JE AT BR R K LAt JE A< 5RIE 3,576 8,192
Other borrowings HipfEE 26,857 83,719
Convertible bonds AR ES 130,156 —
160,589 91,911
Net current assets REEEFR 297,528 383,473
Total assets less BEERRBERS
current liabilities 348,638 434,583
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Other borrowings Hitg s 71,619 —
Convertible bonds Al E S - 118,530
71,619 118,530
Net assets EERE 277,019 316,053
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 13,757 13,653
Reserves {1 46 263,262 302,400
Total equity ERAE 277,019 316,053

On behalf of the Board
REEFS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RELEE £ 4
Director 2%

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon X2 %%
Director 2%

China Assurance Finance Group Limited Bl gi{R & gt 5B G R A Al



46. RESERVES — COMPANY
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46. e — AL F]

Share  Convertible
Contributed Share Exchange option  bonds equity  Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TEkES
BaEh RitRE EiflE  BRERE BhGE ZithR At
(Note 36¢) (Note 36a)
(Ritsee)  (Hfii3ca)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-A-A 51,110 167,560 304 25,336 - (64,758) 189,052
Equity-setled share options REARAEENRIRE
granted (Note 37) (Fzkar) - - - 68,469 - - 68,469
Exercise of share option (Note 35) ffEEmRE (i) - 3014 - (17 - - 2297
Lapse of share option BREL N - - - (20619) - 20,619 -
Issuance of new shares ki - 97,783 - - - - 97,783
Recognition of equity component ERRARESERTS
of convertiole bonds - - - - 33,154 - 33,154
Transaction with owners EEARS - 100,797 - 47,133 33,154 20619 201,708
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - (89,045) (89,045
Other comprehensive income for the year A E M2 EIE - - 190 - - - 190
Total comprehensive income for theyear — AEE2AUAEE - - 190 - - (89,045) (88,855
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016~ A=E-FF
+ZA=1t-Bk
“E-7E-A-H 51,110 268,357 494 72,469 33,104 (123,184) 302,400
Eauity-settled share options granted RiRA LS
(Note 37) BIRE (E37) - - - 68,196 - - 68,136
Exercise of share option (Note 35 T ERE (H38) - 11993 - (2,957) - - 9,036
Lapse of share option BREXTR - - - (11,799) - 11,793 -
Transaction with owners EEARS - 11,993 - 53,386 - 11,793 77,172
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (111,032 (111,032
Other comprehensive income for theyear A E fh 2N - - (5.278) - - - (5,219)
Total comprehensive income for theyear — AEEREUALE - - (5.278) - - (111,032) (116,310)
At31 December 2016 RIB—7E
t-A=t-H 51,110 280,350 (4,784) 125,855 33,154 (222,429 263,262
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47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

217

———0 China Assurance Finance Group Limited A Bl {R & BB B R A Al

Hebei Da Sheng, a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company,
Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited, a 60%
owned subsidiary of the Company and NCCE, a 52.63%
owned subsidiary of the Company, have material non-controlling
interests (NCI). The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not
100% owned by the group are considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of Hebei Da
Sheng, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

47. FERESR

AL RERTT (AR BlHEH 95% AR i 2 it
BAR]) - kRS HEBRMAR AR
(R BEER 60% A iE B AR KR
BR 5P (AR A A 52.63% & i 2 Fff
BAR))  GHEEAIEERER - FTEH
M B A A2 IR W IER A E
%H 100% A%t - R AW TEK -

BRI KRBT 2 FHER s TS E
FHEE (REREPE sHAT) FHaT

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
For the year ended 31 December BEZ+-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue Weas 13,927 17,906
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANFE%HF| R 2 E W R B EE
for the year 5,240 4,937
Profit allocated to NCI A R b 25 o B 8 V) 262 247
Net cash outflows used in KEES R
operating activities T F R (1,393) (21,725)
Net cash inflows from investing activities & /&8) 2R &
MAFER - 3,111
Net cash outflows e FeE (1,393) (18,614)
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥TTT
As at 31 December RT+=—A=+—H
Current assets mEBEE 132,962 133,096
Non-current assets EREBEE 84,507 86,220
Current liabilities mENAE (59,957) (67,041)
Net assets BEFE 157,512 152,275
Accumulated NCI RETIEIERE R (7,876) (7,614)




Notes to the Financial Statements
B R MY EE
47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 47. FEERER )

BRI RS I SRS 5 E
FHtE (REAEPL 8EAT) EIImT

Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of JDP
Group, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=t—BHLEE
Revenue Wz 5,793 6,833
Loss and total comprehensive REEEER
income for the year EHNEEEE (13,291) (5,744)
Loss allocated to NCI M IR = D BL R B 1R (5,316) (1,558)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 4 & E8) 2 IR & A F5E 445 407
Net cash outflows used in KEEB 2R FEE
investing activities (1,038) (3,983)
Net cash outflows WE ML FEE (593) (3,576)
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TT
As at 31 December R+=HA=+—8H
Current assets MENVEE 8,801 8,126
Non-current assets IEMEBEE 142,333 155,904
Current liabilities MEEE (47,376) (46,982)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE - —
Net assets BEFE 103,758 117,048
Accumulated NCI RET IR R (41,503) (46,819)
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47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq) 47. IEERER @)
Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of NCCE, EBRRBER P2 IR EROIAEE
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: B E (SEASLHERT) ST -
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
AR® T
For the year ended 31 December BE+-—A=+—HLEE
Revenue Uz 655,884
Loss and total comprehensive AEFEEEBREEW A
income for the year (40,325)
Loss allocated to NCI MBI = D BC RS 18 (19,102)
Net cash outflows used in KR IRe R TR
operating activities (380,961)
Net cash outflows used in KEES IR ML FE
investing activities (7,077)
Net cash inflows from financing activites @& &8 2 IR &7 A F5E 94,676
Net cash outflows Raent #58 (293,362)
2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
As at 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H
Current assets MBEE 269,008
Non-current assets IERBEE 956,136
Current liabilities V=R (335,178)
Non-current liabilities JERBAE (227,587)
Net assets BEFE 662,379
Accumulated NCI RET IR (313,769)
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Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements

48. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

M HRR MR

48. R B A TR
B AR AEIKIE - B RIZEX

B8 -

R-ZB—RFE+_A=+—HWBRA

are as follows: ZEEIEAT
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMAL BB R ERTRARE ANRER TEEBR
ACIEL ERERCER hENA=d FHEzER EEY
Interests held directly
EREARER
Hero Praise Limited Incorporated in the 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% Investment
British Virgin Islands, holding in
limited liability company Hong Kong
REBRAT REBER A ST - TREEETZEBR 100% RERR - BE
BREERA
Interests held indirectly
MEsEER
Aurora Logistics Capital Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$200 100% Investment holding
Assurance Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
IBRRERRERAA REBTMAL - 1B 20072 Llk 100% REBR - BE
BREARTA
Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Incorporated in the PRC, US$13,800,000 95% Provision of financial
Company Limited a Sino-foreign joint venture guarantee service,
(‘Hebei Da Sheng”) performance guarantee
service and consultancy
service in the PRC
IR TRERERAR NGl AvAR 13,800,000% T 9%  RESHERERS
(DAL RBEST]) hIEBRE BARBRBIEIAR

BRRE - TE
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48. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 48. NMEB A FHERE @)

221

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMAL BB R ERTRARE ANRER TEEBR
ACIEL ERERCER hENA=d FHEZER EEME
Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Incorporated in the PRC, RMB110,000,000 97.55% Provision of financial
Company Limited a Sino-foreign joint venture guarantee service,
(“Xiamen Da Sheng”) performance guarantee
service and consultancy
service in the PRC
KRBT (BF9) BRERAT NlETE RV ARH110,000,000 7T 97.65%  REGRERRE
(TEFIRETT]) PGB RE BHAERREA R
BRRS - PE
Guangzhou Jun Yan Enterprise Incorporated in the PRC, RMB1,000,000 97.55% Investment holding
Management Limited limited liability company in the PRC
BNTR2CREBERAA  RPBEEMmAL AEH1,000,0007T 97.55% REER - FH
BREARA
China Assets Group Management  Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
TEHEREEEEARAA REBTMAL - H{E100/872 BBk 100% RERR - BE
BREERA
Emerge FinTech Group Limited Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 60% Investment holding
BREBHNEEBERAH limited liability company in Hong Kong
REBTMAL - EfE1008 T EER 60% REBR - BE
BREARA
China Assets Group Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
mHERERREARRA REBTMAL - H{E 100872 BBk 100% RERAR - BB
BREERA
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48. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

48. A B A TR w2

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMAL BB R BRTRER ERRER FTEXBR
REER ERERCER hENA=d FHEZER EEME
Nanning (China-ASEAN) Incorporated in the PRC, RMB211,111,000 52.63% Provision of
Commodity Exchange limited liability company online trading
Company Limited platform services
in the PRC
ME (PE—RE) A AL - AR®E211,111,0007C 52.63% REB LR
HmRAMAERAT BREERTA FaRS T &
ASEAN Economic Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 51% Investment holding
Development & limited liability company in Hong Kong
Trade (HK) Limited
REBEE (B8) BRAR REBMAL - H{E100/8 T2 Bk 51% RERR - BE
BREERA
Rentop Limited Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary share of HK$1 100% Investment holding
limited liability company in Hong Kong
ERERAR REBTMKL - HE 1AL BBk 100% REER  BE
BREARA
Assurance Finance Services Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 in Hong Kong
RRERBRBERLDF BB - E1E 10,000/ T2 EiER 100% RERK  BE
BREARA
Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information Incorporated in the PRC, RMB20,000,000 60% Provision of software
Technology Limited limited liability company development services
in the PRC
EReHAEERMAERRR  RAPBEEMAL - AR 20,000,0007T 60%  REMEEERS
BREERA R
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48. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 48. RKMIE N R #)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMAL BB R ERTRARE ANRER TEEBR
ACIEL ERERCER hENA=d FHEzER EEY
WEEEHELARS Incorporated in the PRC, RMB500,000 60% Provision of online
RBEERLA limited liability company trading platform
services in the PRC
A EIEEMAAL - AR 500,0007T 60% REE LR
BREALA TR - HE
RIS e UL ERER AT Incorporated in the PRC, RMB800,000 30% Provision of retail
limited liability company (note)  business in the PRC
A B AL - AE#800,0007C 0% REUTERE $
BREEAF CiEd)

Note: 1t FINSE LR AR AR is 50% held by Beijing Jin Dian Pai
Information Technology Limited and it has control of 1t iN5& 3¢
(LB R AR A F)’s board of directors. Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information
Technology Limited is 60% held by the Group. Therefore, it is
classified as a subsidiary of the Group and the effective shareholding
is 30%.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended

31 December 2016 have been examined by BDO Limited for
the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Mt bR S e X EERFE AR HILRE
HARERRMABRARRA 0% ° It
EHPEERMARARNOAEERA
60% ° [k » ZARFRASAEEER
FEA30% EV B A F] ©

MEBRARBE_T—RF+T_A=1—
HILFEZ M HRACEHBRBILER
SEETEEBAERRRIZE - AR
HREE 2 FEMEHREK o
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